NASSGP

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE SCHOLARSHIP AND GRANT PROGRAMS

12th ANNUAL SURVEY

1980 - 1981 ACADEMIC YEAR

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE SCHOLARSHIP & GRANT PROGRAMS

NASSGP

12th ANNUAL SURVEY 1980 - 81 ACADEMIC YEAR

State/Territory Funded Scholarship/Grant Program to Undergraduate Students with Financial Need to Attend Public or Private Post-secondary Educational Institutions.

Prepared by:

Kenneth R. Reeher
Executive Director
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency

James L. McKelvey Special Assistant for Planning Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section of the sectio

| SECT | TION 1 - CUMULATIVE HISTORY | | | | 1 74 VV | <u>Page</u> |
|------|--|--------------|---------|-------|---------|-------------|
| | History since 1969-70 of State Funded Need Undergraduate School/Grant Programs . | | | | | 1 |
| | Historical Data | | | • • | | 2 |
| | SSIG Involvement | | | • • | | 3–4 |
| , | Comparative Report for 1979-80 and 1980-81 | Academic Ye | ars | | | 5–7 |
| SECT | TON 2 - AGENCY DESCRIPTION/ORGANIZATION | | | | | |
| | Structure of Agency | | | | | 8 |
| • | Governing Body of Agency | | | | | 9-12 |
| | Agency Head Reports To | | | • • • | | 13 |
| | Primary Advisory Body | | | • • • | | 14–18 |
| | Other Groups from which Input is Regularly | Sought | • • • | | | 19–20 |
| SECT | ION 3 - CURRENT PROGRAM CHARACTERISTICS | | | | | |
| | Program Title - Year Initiated - Frequency Appropriation Decisions | | | | | 21–23 |
| | Application Schedule | | | | : | 24-27 |
| | Program Eligibility Criteria (1980-81) | | | | | 28–30 |
| | Other Program Eligibility Criteria | | | | ; | 31–32 |
| | U. S. Citizenship Requirements - State Resi | dency Requi | rements | s | : | 33–36 |
| | Budgets Utilized in Computing Need Based St | ate Awards. | | | : | 37–39 |
| | Approach to Funding | | | | 4 | 40–43 |
| | Eligibility Priority Given for Funds For . | | | | 4 | 14-48 |
| | Forward Funding? - Affective Date - Criteri | on | | | 4 | 19–51 |
| | Financial Aid Packaging Philosophy of Agenc | су | | | | 52 |
| | Program Procedural Arrangements | | | | | 53–55 |
| | Method of Incorporating SSIG Funds Into Pro | gram | | | | 56–58 |
| | Maximum Awards Made to Individual Students | are Based On | n | | | 59-62 |

| -2- | |
|--|---------|
| Agency Policy Areas | 63–66 |
| Comments to Aid Survey Readers to Better Understand Your Agency's 1980-81 Position | 67–68 |
| Student, Institutional, or Aid Programs Administered by Responding Agency that are not Undergraduate Need Based Programs with a non-Refundable Grant | 69-70 |
| State Funded Student Aid Programs Administered by State Agencies Other than the Responding Agency | 71-72 |
| Program Procedural Arrangements | 73–75 |
| SECTION 4 - AGENCY PERSONNEL | |
| Personnel Distribution | 76-77 |
| SECTION 5 - POLICY MATTERS | |
| Is Trend in State Toward More or Less Funds? - Would Increased Federal Funds be Matched? - Will New State Funds be Available if Federal Funds are not Increased? | 78–79 |
| Prefer More Federal Control or More State Involvement in Student Aid? - Direction You Feel Schools in Your State Prefer for Control of Financial Aid | 80–81 |
| Impact Anticipated on Programs from the Proposed Single Federal Needs Analysis | 82-83 |
| Multiple Data Entry Participation | 84 |
| States Who Would Use the Single Federal Need Analysis to Drive Its Programs | 85 |
| Significant Changes Planned for Program or Operations in 1980-81 | 86-87 |
| Higher Education Planning Coordinated Through | 88-90 |
| Role of Agency in Higher Education Planning | 91-93 |
| Higher Education Planning Director | 94–96 |
| Court Action Pending | 97 |
| What Specific Decisions Highlight the Purpose of "Access" in Your Program? | 98 |
| What Specific Decisions Highlight the Purpose of ''Reasonable Choice'' in Your Program? | 99 |
| SECTION 6 - SURVEY RECOMMENDATION | |
| Agency Surveys of Campuses | 100–101 |
| States Preferring Fall - Spring Distribution | 102 |

HISTORY SINCE 1969-70 OF STATE FUNDED NEED BASED UNDERGRADUATE SCHOLARSHIP/GRANT PROGRAMS

| Year | Number of States/Territories | Number of Enrolled Winners | Dollar Awards* (Millions) |
|---------|---------------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------|
| Tear | beates/ left feet les | Enforted winners | (MITITIONS) |
| 1969-70 | 19 | 470,000 | \$199.9 |
| 1970-71 | 21 | 535,200 (up 13.9%) | 236.3 (up 18.2%) |
| 1971-72 | 23 | 604,000 (up 12.9%) | 268.6 (up 13.6%) |
| 1972-73 | 29 | 661,700 (up 9.6%) | 315.5 (up 17.5%) |
| 1973-74 | 31 | 733,300 (up 10.8%) | 364.2 (up 15.4%) |
| 1974-75 | 37 | 813,100 (up 10.9%) | 440.8 (up 21.0%) |
| 1975-76 | 48 | 901,900 (up 10.9%) | 510.2 (up 15.7%) |
| 1976-77 | 55 | 1,104,400 (up 22.5%) | 651.4 (up 27.7%) |
| 1977-78 | 56 | 1,161,400 (up 5.2%) | 737.0 (up 13.1%) |
| 1978-79 | 57 | 1,217,750 (up 4.9%) | 789.2 (up 7.1%) |
| 1979-80 | 57 | 1,278,429 (up 5.0%) | 864.5 (up 9.5%) |
| 1980-81 | 57 | 1,319,809 (up 3.2%) | 912.0 (up 5.5%) |

*All figures except 1980-81 are known enrolled winners with award dollars. 1980-81 are best estimates. All figures are rounded and include both state and federal (SSIGP) dollars.

Beginning with the 1974-75 academic year, the federal State Student Incentive Grant Program (SSIGP) provided funds to assist in the establishment of new and the expansion of existing State Student Scholarship/Grant Programs based upon financial need for at least half-time study in undergraduate programs.

Growth represented since 1974-75 in the historical summary table above, to a large degree, is a response to the new SSIG Program which permits up to a \$1,500 annual student award (equal shares of \$750 federal/state) in this new form of state/federal partnership.

Funding levels to date for the SSIGP are:

| Year | SSIGP | Funds |
|---------|--------|---------|
| | | |
| 1974-75 | \$19.0 | million |
| 1975-76 | 20.0 | million |
| 1976-77 | 44.0 | million |
| 1977-78 | 60.0 | million |
| 1978-79 | 63.75 | million |
| 1979-80 | 76.75 | million |
| 1980-81 | 76.75 | million |
| | | |

Further information of the SSIGP, a new and most significant state/federal delivery system of providing both access and reasonable choice to financially needy students, can be obtained from the State Student Incentive Grant Program, Office of Student Financial Assistance, U. S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland Avenue, S.W., Room 4004, Rayburn House Office Building, Washington, D.C. 20202. Telephone (202) 472-4265.

HISTORICAL DATA

NINE YEAR HISTORY

DOLLAR VALUE OF AWARDS IN FIVE STATES WITH LARGEST PROGRAMS IN DOLLARS IN 1971-72

PERCENTAGE OF ALL STATES' AWARD DOLLARS

| State | 72-73 | 73-74 | 74-75 | 75-76 | 76-77 | 77-78 | 78-79 | 79-80 | 80-81 |
|--|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| New York Pennsylvania Illinois New Jersey California | 23.4% 19.8 16.1 7.1 7.8 | 21.4% 17.4 14.7 6.9 8.6 | 22.0% 16.2 13.3 5.6 9.5 | 25.3% 13.3 13.4 4.2 10.0 | 32.4% 10.0 10.7 3.9 10.5 | 30.8% 9.5 10.5 3.9 10.6 | 32.0% 9.1, 10.1 4.6 10.0 | 31.1% 9.0 9.6 4.8 9.1 | 29.4% 9.0 9.4 4.8 9.9 |
| All of Above | 74.2% | 69.0% | 66.6% | 66.2% | 67.5% | 65.3% | 65.8% | 63.6% | 62.5% |

SUMMARY DATA ALL STATES' PROGRAMS BY SECTOR

PUBLIC

| | 1976-77 | 1977-78 | 1978-79 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 |
|------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|
| Awards to Students | 678,600 (62.0%) | 735,458 (61.8%) | 782,252 (63.0%) | 776,710 (61.5%) | 767,960 (58.2%) |
| Dollars to Students | \$298,250,000 (46.2%) | \$338,275,000 (45.3%) | \$374,887,000 (45.2%) | \$350,302,000 (41.1%) | \$394,470,338 (43.3%) |
| Mean Award Value | \$440 | \$460 | \$479 | \$451 | \$514 |
| | | | PRIVATE | | |
| | 1976-77 | 1977-78 | 1978-79 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 |
| Awards to Students | 416,700 (38.0%) | 454,815 (38.2%) | (460,214 (37.0%) | 485,651 (38.5%) | 551,849 (41.8%) |
| Dollars to Students | \$347,150,000 (53.8%) | \$407,738,000 (54.7%) | \$453,996,000 (54.8%) | \$501,993,000 (58.9%) | \$517,544,982 (56.7%) |
| Mean Award Value | \$833 | \$896 | \$986 | \$1,034 | \$938 |

ADMINISTRATIVE COST DATA

| Cost Per Enrolled Student With State Award | Percent Total Scholarship/Grant Programs Administrative Costs Is To Total Awards Value |
|--|--|
| 1974-75 Award Year \$12.00 | 1974-75 Award Year 2.09% |
| 1975-76 Award Year \$14.06 | 1975-76 Award Year 2.43% |
| 1976-77 Award Year \$11.97 | 1976-77 Award Year 2.12% |
| 1977-78 Award Year \$14.48 | 1977-78 Award Year 2.45% |
| 1978-79 Award Year \$14.18 | 1978-79 Award Year 2.25% |
| 1979-80 Award Year \$15.28 | 1979-80 Award Year 2.39% |
| 1980-81 Award Year \$18.13 | 1980-81 Award Year 2.60% |

STATE STUDENT INCENTIVE GRANT PROGRAM INFORMATION

HISTORY OF FEDERAL (STATE STUDENT INCENTIVE GRANT PROGRAMS) AND STATE FUNDED PARTNERSHIP IN SCHOLARSHIP/GRANT BASED UNDERGRADUATE ASSISTANCE

| 5.71% |
|-------|
| 5.12% |
| 3.25% |
| .97% |
| .93% |
|).99% |
| .58% |
| 1 |

SSIG INVOLVEMENT

| | 1979-80 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 198 | 1980-81 | | | | |
|--|------------------------|---|--|----------------------------|------------------|--|--|--|--|
| State (Program) | SSIG Used | SSIG Turned Back In (and Reallocated) | SSIG Allocated (Reported by State) | % Funds Federal SSIG | % Funds State | % Funds Other (Insti- tutional, etc. | | | |
| Alabama | 1,065,705 | 30,109 | 1,159,311 | 50. | 50 | 0 | | | |
| Alaska | | | 119,500 | 50 | 50 | 0 | | | |
| Arizona | 1,643,000 | 336,500 | 1,267,673 | 50 | 7 | 43 | | | |
| Arkansas | 481,454 | 00 | 505,744 | 25 | 75 | 0 | | | |
| California | | | | | | | | | |
| G <u>rant A</u> Grant B | 6,711,769 4,937,524 | 00 | 6,691,448 | 10 | 90 | 0 | | | |
| Grant C | 621,034 | 00 00 | 4,867,181 841,271 | 16 22 | 84 78 | 0 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Colorado | 1,019,958 | 3,058 | 1,042,862 | 16 | 83 | 1 | | | |
| Connecticut | 966,598 | 00 | 1,043,000 | 14 | 86 | 0 | | | |
| Delaware | 188,489 | 11,723 | 198,422 | 36 | 64 | 0 | | | |
| Dist. of Columbia | 536,667 | 00 | 555,728 | 50 | 50 | 0 | | | |
| Florida | 2,366,398 | 00 | 2,548,527 | 22 | 78 | 0 | | | |
| Georgia | 1,356,434 | 15,945 | 1,336,054 | 38 | 62 | 0 | | | |
| Hawaii | 230,423 | 72,837 | 310,949 | 50 | 46 | 4 | | | |
| Idaho | 253,383 | 00 | 285,000 | 50 - | 50 | 0 | | | |
| Illinois | 4,067,702 | 00 | 4,100,000 | 5 | 95 | 0 | | | |
| Indiana | 1,500,000 | | 1,516,482 | 7 | 93 | 0 | | | |
| Iowa | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Prog. | 314,314 | 00 | 350,000 | 50 | 50 | 0 | | | |
| Tuition Grant Pro Voc/Tech Tuition | | 00 | 58,961 | 1 | 99 | 0 | | | |
| Grant | 393,756 | 00 | 450,000 | 50 | 50 | 0 | | | |
| Kansas | 850,254 | 00 | 864,363 | 17 | 83 | 0 | | | |
| Kentucky State Student In- centive Grant | 964,390 | 00 | 940,704 | | | | | | |
| Louisiana | 411,337 | 650,293 | 1,055,217 | | | | | | |
| Maine | 280,234 | | 281,478 | 23 | 77 | 0 | | | |
| Maryland | 1,350,000 | 15,000 | 1,399,000 | 24 | 76 | 0 | | | |
| Massachusetts | 2,525,562 | 00 | 2,565,650 | 15 | 85 | 0 | | | |
| Michigan | 3,185,293 | 00 | 3,200,000 | 11 | 89 | 0 | | | |
| Minnesota | 1,455,947 | 00 | 1,455,947 | 5 | 95 | 0 | | | |
| Mississippi | 629,114 | 00 | 629,229 | 40 | 20 | 40 | | | |
| Missouri | 1,488,000 | 00 | 1,480,000 | 15 | 85 | 0 | | | |
| Montana | 187,116 | 17,690 | 214,059 | 50 | 35 | 15 | | | |
| Nebraska | 536,939 | 00 | 577,663 | 50 | 00 | 50 | | | |
| | | - | | | | | | | |

SSIG INVOLVEMENT

| | 1979-80 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | | 1980-81 | | | | |
|---|--------------|---|--|----------------------------|------------------|---|--|--|--|
| State (Program) | SSIG Used | SSIG Turned Back In (and Reallocated) | SSIG Allocated (Reported by State) | % Funds Federal SSIG | % Funds State | <pre>% Funds Other (Insti- tutional, etc.</pre> | | | |
| Nevada | 145,559 | 66,087 | 202,000 | 50 | 00 | 50 | | | |
| New Hampshire | 262,793 | 00 | 275,000 | 50 | 50 | 0. | | | |
| New Jersey | 2,013,687 | 00 | 2,083,898 | 5 | 95 | 0 | | | |
| New Mexico | 319,354 | 40,646 | 388,988 | 50 | 50 | 0 | | | |
| New York | 7,561,341 | 00 | 6,600,000 | 2 | 98 | 0 | | | |
| North Carolina | 1,643,676 | 5,767 | 1,720,434 | 11 | 88 | 1 | | | |
| North Dakota | 200,366 | 3,037 | 213,010 | 35 | 65 | 0 | | | |
| Ohio | 2,962,556 | 00 | 3,000,000 | 9 | 91 | 0 | | | |
| Oklahoma | 1,094,538 | 38,113 | 1,030,982 | | | | | | |
| Oregon | 982,956 | 00 | 965,285 | 14 | 86 | 0 | | | |
| Pennsylvania | 3,403,444 | 00 | 3,300,000 | 4 | 96 | 0 | | | |
| Rhode Island | 396,000 | 00 | 420,000 | 8 | 92 | 0 | | | |
| South Carolina | 887,723 | 00 | 866,126 | 7 | 93 | 0 | | | |
| South Dakota | 208,937 | 1,316 | 217,698 | | | | | | |
| l'ennessee | 1,262,919 | 00 | 1,299,900 | 20 | 80 | 0 | | | |
| Texas | 3,708,272 | 425,000 | 4,314,947 | 00 | 00 | 0 | | | |
| Utah | NA | NA | 578,483 | NA | NA | NA | | | |
| Vermont | 192,337 | 00 | 189,000 | 4 | 96 | 0 | | | |
| Virginia | 1,578,211 | 16,197 | 1,687,836 | 15 | 85 | 0 | | | |
| Washington | 1,683,808 | 00 | 1,874,884 | 36 | 64 | 0 | | | |
| West Virginia | 530,187 | 00 | 537,855 | 18 | 82 | 0 | | | |
| Wisconsin | 1,621,602 | 00 | 1,625,400 | 7 | 93 | 0 | | | |
| Wyoming | Unknown | Unknown | 130,617 | 50 | _00 | 50 | | | |
| American Samoa | 3,300 | | 5,285 | | | | | | |
| Guam | | | 20,401 | | | | | | |
| Northern Marianas | | | 826 | | | | | | |
| Puerto Rico | · | | 818,462 | | | | | | |
| Trust Territories | | | 1,502 | | | | | | |
| Virgin Islands | | | 11,842 | | | | | | |
| TOTAL | 75,267,698 | 1,714,318 | 78,292,074 | | | | | | |
| Estimated Total From States Not Reporting | 1,572,197 | | | | | | | | |
| Amount Overreported by States | | | 1,542,074 | | | | | | |
| Adjusted TOTAL | 76,839,895 | 1,714,318 | 76,750,000 | 8.42% | 91.18% | 0.40% | | | |

DOLLARS AND NUMBER OF AWARDS AND RELATED DATA BY STATES FOR COMPREHENSIVE UNDER-GRADUATE STATE (COMPETITIVE AND NON-COMPETITIVE) SCHOLARSHIPS AND GRANT PROGRAMS OF FINANCIAL AID BASED UPON NEED FOR RESIDENTS OF THE STATE TO ATTEND EITHER PUBLIC OR NON-PUBLIC COLLEGES OR UNIVERSITIES

COMPARATIVE REPORT FOR 1979-80 AND 1980-81* ACADEMIC YEARS

*1980-81 Data is best estimate (all data includes SSIG)

| | # of Moneta | ary Awards | | Percentage of Total | | | | Payout Dollars (Millions) | | Percentage of Total | | Average Award Amount | | Amount of Dollar/ Cents to 1978 Population | |
|---|-------------|------------|---------|------------------------|----------|-------------|-------------|------------------------------|----------|---------------------------------------|---|-------------------------|--|--|--|
| State/Territory | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Alabama Student Assistance Program | 7,413 | 4,039 | .58 | .31 | \$ 2.131 | \$ 1.212 | .25 | .13 | \$ 288 | \$ 300 | \$.57 | \$.32 | | | |
| Alaska | 7,415 | 4,037 | | .,, | Ψ 2.131 | V 1.212 | | | y 200 | Ψ 300 | ¥ .57 | Ψ .32 | | | |
| SEIG | 160 | (160) | .01 | .01 | .240 | (.240) | .03 | .03 | 1,500 | (1,500) | .60 | .60 | | | |
| Arizona | | <u> </u> | ···· | | | · | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | 2,473 | 2,473 | .19 | .19 | 1.643 | 1.793 | .19 | .20 | 664 | 725 | .70 | .76 | | | |
| Arkansas | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program | 4,666 | 8,747 | .36 | .66 | 1.174 | 2.374 | .14 | .26 | 252 | 271 | . 54 | 1.09 | | | |
| California | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant A | 38,895 | 38,776 | | | 53.283 | 60.434 | | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant B | 20,042 | 20,103 | | | 22.709 | 26.625 | | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant C | 2,435 | 2,305 | | | 2.318 | (2.318) | | | | | | | | | |
| Bilingual Teacher Development | 194 | 180 | | | .490 | .496 | | | | | | | | | |
| Grant Law Enforcement Personnel | 10 | 6 | | <u>:</u> | .012 | .009 | | | | | | | | | |
| Dependent Program | . 10 | 0 | | | .012 | .009 | | | | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 61,576 | 61,370 | 4.82 | 4.65 | 78.812 | 89.882 | 9.12 | 9.86 | 1,280 | 1,465 | 3.54 | 4.03 | | | |
| Colorado | 01,570 | 01,370 | 4.02 | 7.05 | 70.012 | 07.002 | 7.12 | 7.00 | 1,200 | 1,405 | 3.54 | 4.05 | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | 3,000 | 3,200 | | | 2.040 | 2.086 | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | 12,437 | 14,000 | | | 7.715 | 4.346 | | | | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 15,437 | 17,200 | 1.21 | 1.30 | 9.755 | 6.432 | 1,13 | .71 | 632 | 374 | 3.65 | 2.41 | | | |
| Connecticut | 25,101 | 27,200 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Programs - Undergraduate | 3,304 | 3,000 | | | 2.581 | 2.806 | | | | | | | | | |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges | 4,710 | 4,928 | | | 4.109 | 4.435 | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | | |
| All Programs | 8,014 | 7,928 | .63 | .60 | 6,690 | 7,241 | .77 | .79 | 835 | 913 | 2.16 | 2.34 | | | |
| Delaware | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | 921 | 763 | .07 | .06 | .456 | .481 | .05 | .05 | 495 | 630 | .78 | .83 | | | |
| District of Columbia | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | 943 | (943) | .07 | 0.7 | ¢ 1 072 | 6 1 111 | 10 | 10 | . 61 130 | 6(1 170) | 61 E0 | 61 65 | | | |
| Incentive Grants Florida | 943 | (943) | | .07 | \$ 1.073 | \$ 1.111 | .12 | .12 | \$1,138 | \$(1,178) | \$1.59 | \$1.65 | | | |
| Student Assistance Grants | 10,508 | 14,309 | .82 | 1.08 | 9.847 | 11.549 | 1.14 | 1.27 | 937 | 807 | 1.15 | 1.34 | | | |
| Georgia | 10,500 | 14,509 | .02 | 1.00 | 9.047 | 11.749 | 1,14 | 1.27 | 731 | 007 | 1.13 | 1.34 | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant | 9,694 | 14,735 | .76 | 1.12 | 2.641 | 4.321 | .31 | .47 | 272 | 293 | .52 | .85 | | | |
| Program | 7,074 | 14,733 | .,, | 1.12 | 2.041 | 7.521 | .51 | .47 | 2,72 | 273 | . ,,_ | .03 | | | |
| Hawaii | | · | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Student Incentive | 1,923 | 2,000 | .15 | .15 | .452 | .623 | .05 | .07 | 235 | 312 | .50 | .69 | | | |
| Grants | -, | _, | | | | | | | | | • | , | | | |
| Idaho | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | 803 | (803) | .06 | .06 | .507 | .513 | .06 | .06 | 631 | 639 | .58 | .58 | | | |
| Illinois | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Monetary Award Program | 87,886 | 85,758 | 6.87 | 6.50 | 83.052 | 85.758 | 9.61 | 9.40 | 945 | 1,000 | 7.39 | 7.63 | | | |
| Indiana | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarships | 29,184 | 12,977 | | | 14.896 | 14.080 | | | | | | | | | |
| Educational Grants | 12,145 | 14,221 | | | 8.084 | 5.141 | | | | | | | | | |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | 7,225 | 7,312 | | | 4.694 | 4.250 | | | | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 48,554 | 34,510 | 3.80 | 2.61 | 27.674 | 23.471 | 3.20 | 2.57 | 570 | 680 | 5.15 | 4.37 | | | |
| Iowa | | | , | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | 1,219 | 1,275 | · | | .664 | . 700 | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | 10,222 | 10,068 | | | 13.744 | 14.800 | | | | | | | | | |
| Voc/Tech. Tuition Grants | 2,549 | 3,000 | | | .788 | .900 | | | | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 13,990 | 14,343 | 1.09 | 1.09 | 15.196 | 16.400 | 1.76 | 1,80 | 1,086 | 1,143 | 5.25 | 5.66 | | | |
| Kansas | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | |
| State Scholarships | 1,857 | (1,857) | | | .814 | .900 | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grants | 4,659 | (4,659) | | | 3.799 | 4.125 | | | | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 6,516 | (6,516) | .51 | .49 | 4.613 | 5.025 | .53 | .55 | 708 | 771 | 1.96 | 2.14 | | | |

Ω

6

DOLLARS AND NUMBER OF AWARDS AND RELATED DATA BY STATES FOR COMPREHENSIVE UNDER-GRADUATE STATE (COMPETITIVE AND NON-COMPETITIVE) SCHOLARSHIPS AND GRANT PROGRAMS OF FINANCIAL AID BASED UPON NEED FOR RESIDENTS OF THE STATE TO ATTEND EITHER PUBLIC OR NON-PUBLIC COLLEGES OR UNIVERSITIES

COMPARATIVE REPORT FOR 1979-80 AND 1980-81* ACADEMIC YEARS

| | # of Moneta | ry Awards | Percentage of Total | | Payout Dollars (Millions) | | Percentage of Total | | Average Award Amount | | Amount of Cents t Popul | |
|--|------------------|-------------|------------------------|-------------|------------------------------|------------------|------------------------|---------|---|-------------|-------------------------------|---------|
| State/Territory | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 |
| Kentucky Grant Program | 13,838 | 14,700 | 1.08 | 1.11 | 4.991 | 6.600 | . 58 | .72 | 361 | 449 | 1.43 | 1.89 |
| Louisiana | | (1.054) | | 1.5 | 000 | (002) | .10 | .09 | 421 | (421) | .21 | .21 |
| Incentive Grants Maine | 1,954 | (1,954) | .15 | .15 | .823 | (.823) | .10 | . 09 | 421 | (421) | . 21 | |
| Student Incentive Scholarship Programs | 5,000 | 5,000 | .39 | .38 | 1.360 | 1.236 | .16 | .14 | 272 | 247 | 1.25 | 1.13 |
| Maryland | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| General State Scholarships | 5,014 | 5,100 | · | | \$ 2.823 | \$ 3.0 | | | | | | |
| Senatorial Scholarships | 7,219 | 7,227 | | | 2.633 | 2.699 | | | | | | |
| Proprietary School Grants All Programs | 138 | 140 | .97 | .94 | 5.552 | 5.799 | .64 | .64 | \$ 449 | \$ 465 | \$1.34 | \$1.40 |
| Massachusetts | 12,3/1 | 12,407 | .,,, | | 3.332 | 3,,,,, | | | ¥ 117 | 7 103 | + | 12.10 |
| General Scholarships | 27,000 | 28,000 | | | 13.500 | 16.365 | | | | | | |
| Consortium Scholarships | 257 | 250 | | | .150 | .150 | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 27,257 | 28,250 | 2.13 | 2.14 | 13.650 | 16.515 | 1.58 | 1.81 | 501 | 585 | 2.36 | 2.86 |
| Michigan | 10 100 | 00.441 | | | 16 021 | 17 646 | | | | • | | |
| Competitive Scholarships | 18,183 12,573 | 22,441 | | | 16.031 14.500 | 17.646 14.136 | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grants All Programs | 30,756 | 33,887 | 2.41 | 2.57 | 30.531 | 31.782 | 3.53 | 3.48 | 993 | 938 | 3,32 | 3.46 |
| Minnesota | 30,730 | 33,001 | 2.71 | | 30.332 | 321702 | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | 11,745 | 14,100 | | | 7.728 | 11.400 | | | | | | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | 16,220 | 28,600 | | | 10.672 | 20,200 | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 27,965 | 42,700 | 2.19 | 3.24 | 18.400 | 31.600 | 2.13 | 3.46 | 658 | 740 | 4.59 | 7.88 |
| Mississippi Student Grants | 1,800 | 1,800 | .14 | . 14 | 2.516 | 2.516 | . 29 | .28 | 1,398 | 1,398 | 1.05 | 1.05 |
| Missouri | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | 23,330 | 13,400 | 1.82 | 1.02 | 8.144 | 10.043 | .94 | 1.10 | 349 | 749 | 1.68 | 2.07 |
| Montana Incentive Grants | 917 | 1,200 | .07 | .09 | . 392 | .428 | .05 | .05 | 427 | 357 | .50 | .55 |
| Nebraska Incentive Grants | 2,010 | 2,100 | .16 | .16 | 1.074 | 1.155 | .12 | .13 | 534 | 550 | .69 | .74 |
| Nevada | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | 395 | 450 | .03 | .03 | .291 | .300 | .03 | .03 | 738 | 667 | .44 | .45 |
| New Hampshire | 1 050 | 1 200 | 10 | 10 | 506 | 550 | 06 | 06 | 401 | 423 | .60 | 42 |
| Incentive Grants New Jersey | 1,250 | 1,300 | .10 | .10 | .526 | .550 | .06 | .06 | 421 | 423 | .60 | .63 |
| Tuition Aid Grants | 47,000 | 50,000 | | | 28.400 | 31.484 | | | | | | |
| Garden State Scholarships | 4,650 | 8,200 | | | 2.041 | 3,600 | | | | | | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | 11,327 | 11,543 | | | 6.684 | 6.234 | | | | | | |
| Basic Scholarships, Incentive Grants, Public Tuition Aid, | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | 5,600 | 5,670 | | | 4.088 | 2.392 | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 68,577 | 75,413 | 5.36 | 5.71 | 41.213 | 43.710 | 4.77 | 4.79 | 601 | 580 | 5.62 | 5.97 |
| New Mexico | | | | | | | | | | • | | |
| Incentive Grants | 1,229 | 1,500 | .10 | .11 | .646 | .771 | .07 | .08 | \$ 526 | \$ 514 | \$.53 | \$.64 |
| New York | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Program | 329,000 | 329,000 | | | 252.200 | 252.200 | | | | | | |
| Regents Scholarship Program | 58,000 | 68,000 | 20.05 | | 17.000 | 17.000 | | 00.50 | | | 16.15 | 75.77 |
| All Programs | 387,000 | 397,000 | 30.27 | 30.08 | 269.200 | 269.200 | 31.14 | 29.52 | 696 | 678 | 15.17 | 15.17 |
| North Carolina Student Incentive Grant | 6,072 | 5,523 | | | 3.287 | 3.354 | | | | | | |
| Legislative Tuition Grant | 24,764 | 24,764 | | | 10.607 | 12.870 | | | • | | | |
| Brooks Foundation Scholarship | 47 | 50 | | | .046 | .050 | | | ···· | | | |
| Turrentine Foundation Scholar- | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ship | 215 | 250 | | | .171 | .250 | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 31,098 | 30,587 | 2.43 | 2.32 | 14.111 | 16.524 | 1.63 | 1.81 | 454 | 540 | 2.53 | 2.96 |

en la companya de la La companya de la comp

COMPARATIVE REPORT FOR 1979-80 AND 1980-81* ACADEMIC YEARS

| | # of Monet | ary Awards | Percent | tage of | | Dollars lions) | Percent Tot | | Averag Amo | e Award unt | Amount of Cents t Popul | |
|--|-------------|---------------------------------------|---------|---------|----------------|-------------------|----------------|---|---------------|----------------|-------------------------------|---------|
| State/Territory | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 | 1979-80 | 1980-81 |
| North Dakota Tuition Assistance Grant | (200) | 210 | | | .094 | .106 | | | | | | |
| Student Financial Assistance | 1,216 | 1,250 | | | .402 | .500 | | | | | | |
| All Program | 1,416 | 1,460 | .11 | .11 | .496 | .606 | .06 | .07 | 350 | 415 | .76 | .93 |
| Ohio | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Instructional Grants Oklahoma | 56,000 | 60,800 | 4.38 | 4.61 | 28.1 | 31.490 | 3.25 | 3.45 | 502 | 518 | 2.61 | 2.93 |
| Tuition Aid Grants | 10,205 | (10,205) | .80 | .77 | 2.265 | (2.265) | . 26 | . 25 | 222 | (222) | .79 | .79 |
| Oregon | 10,203 | (10,205) | | •" | 2.203 | (2.203) | | • | | (222) | ••• | |
| Need Grant | 16,512 | 15,766 | | | 6.655 | 6.306 | | | | | | |
| Cash Award | 862 | 780 | | | .425 | .385 | | | | | | 6.77 |
| All Programs Pennsylvania | 17,374 | 16,546 | 1,36 | 1.25 | 7.090 | 6.691 | .82 | .73 | 408 | 404 | 2.90 | 2.74 |
| Fennsylvania Higher Education Grants | 126,373 | 129,020 | 9.88 | 9.78 | 78.100 | 82.464 | 9.03 | 9.04 | 618 | 639 | 6.65 | 7.02 |
| Rhode Island | 120,575 | 127,020 | 7.00 | ,,,, | 701100 | 021404 | 7.03 | 7.04 | | | - 0.05 | |
| R.I. Scholarship and Grant | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Program | 4,746 | 6,300 | . 37 | .48 | 3.792 | 4.500 | .44 | .49 | 799 | 714 | 4.06 | 4.81 |
| South Carolina | 7 (16 | 0 200 | | | 10.000 | 11 700 | 1 00 | 1 00 | 1 /00 | 1 407 | 2 75 | 4 01 |
| Tuition Grant Program South Dakota | 7,649 | 8,200 | .60 | .62 | 10.930 | 11.700 | 1.26 | 1.28 | 1,429 | 1,427 | 3.75 | 4.01 |
| State Indian Scholarship | 162 | 76 | | | .048 | .023 | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grant | 700 | 400 | | | .173 | .100 | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 862 | 476 | .07 | .04 | .221 | .123 | .03 | .01 | 256 | 258 | . 32 | .18 |
| Tennessee | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards | 11,098 | 10,399 | .87 | .79 | \$ 5.978 | \$ 6.572 | .69 | .72 | \$ 539 | \$ 632 | \$1.37 | \$1.51 |
| Texas | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | 18,299 | 18,640 | | | 11.881 | 12.049 | | | | | | |
| Public Education Grants | 5,006 | 7,500 | | | 1.970 | 2.955 | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 23,305 | 26,140 | 1.82 | 1.98 | 13.851 | 15.004 | 1.60 | 1.65 | 594 | 574 | 1.06 | 1.15 |
| Ütah | 2 000 | (2.000) | 22 | 12 | 1 506 | (1.504) | .17 | 16 | 501 | (501) | 1.15 | 1.15 |
| Incentive Grants Vermont | 3,000 | (3,000) | .23 | .23 | 1.504 | (1.304) | .17 | .16 | 301 | (301) | 1.15 | 1,15 |
| Incentive Grant Program | 6,069 | 6,930 | . 47 | . 52 | 4.168 | 4.900 | .48 | .54 | 687 | 707 | 8.56 | 10.06 |
| Virginia | | -,,,,,, | | | | | | | | | | |
| College Scholarship | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Assistance Program | 24,118 | 20,000 | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | 11,039 | 11,500 | | | 9.698 5.975 | 3.863 7.313 | | | | | | |
| Program All Programs | 35,157 | 31,500 | 2.75 | 2.39 | 15.673 | 11.176 | 1.81 | 1.23 | 446 | 355 | 3.04 | 2.17 |
| Washington | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Need Grant Program | 9,531 | 10,154 | . 75 | .77 | 4.501 | 5.170 | .52 | .57 | 472 | 509 | 1.19 | 1.37 |
| West Virginia | | 4 000 | | | 2 200 | | 25 | 20 | | 620 | 1.60 | 1 (0 |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program Wisconsin | 5,111 | 4,800 | .40 | .36 | 3.022 | 3.023 | . 35 | . 33 | 591 | 630 | 1.62 | 1.63 |
| Tuition Grant Program | 8,780 | 9,700 | | | 10.460 | 10.309 | | | | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | 28,000 | 39,000 | | | 10.281 | 11.937 | | | | · | | |
| Indian Student Assistance | 1,091 | 998 | | | .890 | .871 | | | | | | |
| All Programs | 37,871 | 49,698 | 2.96 | 3.77 | 21.631 | 23.063 | 2.50 | 2.53 | 571 | 464 | 4.62 | 4.93 |
| Wyoming | 500 | 42 | .04 | .01 | . 251 | . 261 | .03 | .03 | 502 | 6,214 | .59 | .62 |
| Incentive Grants American Samoa | 300 | 42 | .04_ | .01 | . 231 | . 201 | .03 | .03 | 302 | 0,214 | | .02 |
| Scholarship Program | 223 | 119 | .02 | .01 | .618 | .615 | .07 | .07 | 2,769 | 5,165 | | |
| Guam | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | | | | | | | |
| Prof/Tech. Awards | 70 | (60) | .01 | .01 | .235 | (.235) | .03 | .03 | 3,917 | (3,917) | | |
| Northern Marianas | 262 | (200) | | •• | | . (500) | 06 | 0.5 | 1 200 | (1 200) | | |
| Grant Program Puerto Rico | 360 | (360) | .03 | .03 | .500 | (.500) | .06 | .05 | 1,389 | (1,389) | | |
| Incentive Grant | 1,940 | (1,940) | .15 | .15 | 1.458 | (1.458) | .17 | .16 | 752 | (752) | | |
| Trust Territory | | ,,_, | | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarships/Grants | 1,000 | (1,000) | .08 | .08 | .505 | (.505) | .06 | .06 | 505 | (505) | | |
| Virgin Island | | /*** | | | | (221) | ^^ | ^^ | (00 | ((00) | × | |
| Territorial Scholarships | 355 | (355) | .03 | .03 | .214 | (.214) | .02 | .02 | 603 | (603) | | |
| GRAND TOTALS | 1,278,429 | 1,319,809 | 100.00 | 100.00 | \$864.479 | \$912.017 | 100.00 | 100.00 | \$ 676 | \$ 691 | \$3.96 | \$4.18 |
| | <u>up</u> 3 | | | | | 5.5% | | | | | | |
| | чр 3 | . 4 % | | | up | J.J/0 | | | | | | |

STRUCTURE OF AGENCY

Division of

| | Division | State Board | | Camanata | |
|--------------------------|-------------|--|-------------|--------------|----------------|
| | | | District | Separate | |
| | of State | of Higher/ | Division | Authority, | |
| _ | Education | Postsecondary | of 1202 | Agency or | Other |
| State | Department | Education | Commission | Commission | (See Comments) |
| | | | | | |
| Alabama | | X | | | |
| Alaska | | X | | · | |
| Arizona | | | X | | |
| Arkansas | | X | | | |
| California | | | | X | |
| Colorado | | X | | | |
| Connecticut | | X | X | | |
| Delaware | | X | | | |
| District | | · | | | |
| of Columbia | | | | | X |
| Florida | X | | | X | |
| Georgia | | | | <u>X</u> | |
| Hawaii | | | X | | |
| Idaho | | X | | | |
| Illinois | | | | X | |
| | | | | | |
| Indiana | | | | X | |
| Iowa | | | X | X | |
| Kansas | | X | | | |
| Kentucky | | · | ···· | X | |
| Louisiana | | | | X | |
| Maine | X | | | | |
| Maryland | | | | X | |
| Massachusetts | | X | | | |
| Michigan | X | | | | |
| Minnesota | | X | X | , | |
| Mississippi | | | | | X |
| Missouri | | X | | | |
| Montana | | X | | | |
| Nebraska | | | | X | |
| Nevada | | | | | X |
| New Hampshire | | | X | | |
| | | X | | | |
| New Jersey New Mexico | | X | | | |
| New York | | | | X | |
| | | | | | X |
| North Carolina | | | | | <u>^</u> |
| North Dakota | | X | | | |
| Ohio | | X | | | |
| Oregon | | | | X | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | X | |
| Rhode Island | | | | X | · |
| South Carolina | | | | X | |
| South Dakota | X | | | | X |
| Tennessee | | | | X | |
| Texas | | X | | X | |
| Utah | | X | | <u> </u> | |
| Vermont | | | | X | |
| Virginia | | X | | | |
| Washington | | | v | | |
| | | v | <u>X</u> | | |
| West Virginia | | X | | | |
| Wisconsin | | | | X | |
| Wyoming | | · | | X | |
| American Samoa | X | · - · - · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | |
| | | | | | |

Comments

District of Columbia - Office within D. C. Department of Human Services.

Mississippi - Office of the Board of Trustees

Nevada - Governor appointed chancellor to handle program.

North Carolina - A separate legal agency. For administrative purposes, the Agency is a part of the University of North Carolina,

General Administration the headquarters office of the

: 2

16 campus State University System.

South Dakota - Division of the Secretariat, Office of the Secretary.

GOVERNING BODY OF AGENCY

| State | Name of Governing Body | Make-Up of Governing Body | Members Appointed or Selected By |
|-------------|---|--|--|
| Alabama | Alabama Commission on Higher Education | 12 lay persons | Governor and Legislature |
| Alaska | Commission on Postsecondary Education | 13 appointed members | 5 public members appointed by Governor; 1 State Senator; 1 State Representative; 2 University of Alaska Board of Regents; 1 private higher education; 1 State Board of Education; 1 State Advisory Council on Vocational Education; 1 Community College Advisory Council |
| Arizona | Arizona Board of Regents | 15 Commissioners including college presidents from each institution type and representation from | Governor |
| Arkansas | State Board of Higher Education | the general public Members selected geographically | Governor |
| California | Student Aid Commission | l representative from public, proprietary, or nonprofit postsecondary schools located in California; l representative from a California independent college or university; l representative each from the University of California, California State University and Colleges, and California community colleges; 2 members who must be students enrolled in a California postsecondary educational institution at time of appointment; 3 public members; l representative from a California secondary school | |
| Colorado | Colorado Commission on Higher Education | 9 lay citizens appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Connecticut | Board of Higher Education | Appointees of residents, representatives of higher education constituencies | Governor and Legislature |
| Delaware | Delaware Postsecondary Education Commission | 8 public members appointed by Governor; 5 ex-officio members who are presidents of colleges | Governor |
| Florida | Florida Student Financial Assistance Commission | 3 from private financial institutions; 3 from postsecondary educational institutions; 2 lay citizens; 1 student | Governor |
| Georgia | Board of Directors | 15 members - 1 appointed member from each Congressional District plus 3 state officials designated by state law. | Governor |
| Idaho | State Board of Education and Board of Regents of the University of Idaho | 7 members and State Superintendent of Public Instruction (elected) ex-officio member | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Illinois | Illinois State Scholarship Commission | 9 members - 1 voting student; 1 representative high schools; 1 private postsecondary; 1 public postsecondary; 5 at large | Governor |

GOVERNING BODY OF AGFNCY

| | Name of | Make-Up of | |
|---------------|--|--|---|
| State | Governing Body | Governing Body | Members Appointed or Selected By |
| Indiana | Commission Members | <pre>11 members appointed by Governor - 1 from each Congressional District</pre> | Governor |
| Iowa | Iowa College Aid | 3 general public; 1 private college; 1 lending institution; 1 student; 1 Board of Regents; 1 State Vocational Advisory Council; 1 Superintendent of State Department of Public Instruction; 2 legislators | Governor and representative bodies |
| Kansas | Board of Regents | 9 members | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Kentucky | Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority Board of Directors | 7 voting members and 2 nonvoting members | Governor |
| Louisiana | Governor's Special Commission of Education Services | Chairman - Executive Secretary to Governor plus chairman; 1 member from 4 higher education boards in Louisiana; Chairman of Elementary and Secondary Education Board; State Super- intendent of Education | Statute |
| Maryland | State Scholarship Board | | Governor |
| Massachusetts | Board of Higher Education | 7 appointed by Governor; 5 appointed to represent various segments of higher education | Governor |
| Michigan | Michigan Higher Education Assistance Authority | 15 members - 10 members representing various segments of postsecondary education; 3 citizen representatives; 1 lending institution representative; 1 secondary school representative | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Minnesota | Coordinating Board | 11 lay members appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate | Governor |
| Mississippi | Board of Trustees | 12 regular members with 12 year terms and 4 members appointed by Governor and confirmed by Senate | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Missouri | Coordinating Board of Higher Education | 9 lay members | Governor |
| Montana | Board of Regents of Higher Education | 7 members | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Nebraska | Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education | 6 members - 2 from each Congressional District appointed by Governor from general public and approved by legislature; 5 members - 1 from each postsecondary sector are appointed by the Governor upon recommendation of the governing body of each sector; 1 member is appointed by the Governor from the State Board of Education or the State Commissioner of Education is appointed | Governor |

| State | Name of Governing Body | Make-Up of Governing Body | Members Appointed or Selected By |
|----------------------------|---|--|--|
| Nevada | Board of Regents | 9 elected from specific regions | Elected by public |
| New Hampshire | Postsecondary Education Commission | 21 members representing various postsecondary educational institutions and lay public | Governor, Board of Education, University of New Hampshire Board of Trustees, and 4 are ex-officio |
| New Jersey | Board of Higher Education | 17 members - 5 sector representatives; 9 citizens; President State Board of Education; Commissioner of Education (ex-officio); Chancellor of Higher Education (ex-officio) | Governor |
| | Student Assistance Board | 13 members - 5 sector members; 4 citizens; 2 students; 1 member of Educational Opportunity Fund Board; Chancellor of Higher Education or his designee | Governor |
| | Educational Opportunity Fund Board of Directors | 9 members - 8 citizens; Chancellor of Higher Education | State Board of Higher Education with approval of Governor |
| New Mexico | Board of Education Finance – Commission on Postsecondary Education | 11 members representing 10 educational districts of state and 1 member appointed at large | Appointed by Governor, approved by Legislature |
| New York North Carolina | Board of Trustees Board of Directors | 7 members appointed by Governor for terms of 4 years, staggered | Governor |
| North Dakota | State Board of Higher Education | 7 member lay board appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate; 7 year terms | Governor |
| Ohio | Board of Regents | 9 citizen members | Governor |
| Oregon | State Scholarship Commission | 6 lay members and l student | Governor |
| Pennsylvania | Board of Directors | 16 legislators; 4 Governor appointees including Secretary of Education, 2 educators, and 1 banker | State House and Senate leadership and Governor |
| Rhode Island | | 9 members - 5 public; 2 Board of Regents; 2 legislative | Public members appointed by Governor for staggered 5 year terms; 2 appointed by Chairman, Board of Regents; 2 by Legislature |
| South Carolina | South Carolina Higher Education Tuition Grants Committee | 8 independent college presidents plus l State Senator and l State Representative | College presidents serve 3 years rotating terms; legislative members appointed by respective Education Committees |
| Tennessee | Board of Directors | 11 statutory members and 3 lay citizens | Statute - Governor |
| Texas | Coordinating Board Texas College and University System | 18 members of general public | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Ut ah | State Board of Regents | 6 year terms | Appointed by Governor, |
| Vermont | Board of Directors | 7 members representing general public, financial aid, banking, guidance, State Department of Education, and college president | approved by Legislature 5 selected and appointed by Governor; 2 recommended by Board and appointed by Governor |
| Virginia | State Council of Higher Education | 11 members appointed for 4 year terms | Governor |
| | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |

GOVERNING BODY OF AGENCY

| State | Name of Governing Body | Make-Up of Governing Body | Members Appointed or Selected By |
|----------------|---|--|---|
| Washington | Council for Postsecondary Education | 9 citizen members, 1 of which is a student 6 members from educational agencies | Governor or ex-officio by statute |
| , | | and schools and 1 member from Office of the Governor | |
| West Virginia | Board of Regents | 9 lay members appointed by Governor; Chairman of Boards Advisory Council of Students; and Chairman of Boards Faculty Advisory Council; State Super- intendent of schools is ex-officio member | Lay members appointed by Governor and approved by Senate; faculty and study representatives selected by respective advisory councils |
| Wisconsin | Higher Education Aids Board | 16 members - 5 citizens; 3 University of Wisconsin Regents; 2 VTAE Board members; 5 private colleges; Superintendent of Department of Public Instruction | Governor |
| American Samoa | Scholarship Board | 8 members appointed from government and industry | Governor |
| Louisiana | Governor's Special Commission of Education Services | Chairman - Executive Secretary to Governor plus chairman; I member from 4 higher education boards in Louisiana; Chairman of Elementary and Secondary Education Board; State Super- intendent of Education | Statute |
| Maryland | State Scholarship Board | Intendent of Education | Governor |
| 1assachusetts | Board of Higher Education | 7 appointed by Governor; 5 appointed to represent various segments of higher education | Governor |
| fichigan | Michigan Higher Education Assistance Authority | 15 members - 10 members representing various segments of postsecondary education; 3 citizen representatives; 1 lending institution representative; 1 secondary school representative | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Minnesota | Coordinating Board | 11 lay members appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate | Governor |
| dississippi | Board of Trustees | 12 regular members with 12 year terms and 4 members appointed by Governor and confirmed by Senate | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Missouri | Coordinating Board of Higher Education | 9 lay members | Governor |
| font ana | Board of Regents of Higher Education | 7 members | Appointed by Governor, confirmed by Senate |
| Nebraska | Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education | 6 members-2 from each Congressional District appointed by Governor from general public and approved by legislature; | Governor |
| | | 5 members 1 from each postsecondary sector are appointed by the Governor upon recommendation of the governing body of | |
| | | each sector; I member is appointed by the Governor from the State Board of Education or the State Commissioner of Education is appointed. | |

is appointed

AGENCY HEAD REPORTS TO

Board of Directors

rd of Sta ectors Boar

State Board or

State Secretary Appointed by Commission of Governor or of Board of Separate Governor Education State Legislature Education Regents Commission Other Alabama Alaska 13 member Commission on Postsecondary Education Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Director - D. C. Department of Human Services. Florida Georgia Hawaii The chairman of the 1202 Commission where members are appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the State Senate. Idaho Illinois Indiana Towa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Specified in Louisiana statute. Maine Commissioner Maryland 9 members (a) 3 college presidents; (b) financial aid officer; (c) 1 employer of public ed; (d) 4 members at large (not ed. employees). Massachusetts Michigan Superintendent of the Michigan Department of Education and the Michigan Higher Education Assistance Agency.
Governor appointed co-Minnesota ordinating Board. Board of Trustees Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire The Postsecondary Education Commission New Jersey New Mexico New York North Carolina With regard to Agency policy matters. The Agency is administratively attached to the Office of the President, The University of North Carolina which provides the secretariat for the authority staffing, facilities and other support services to the Work of Authority proved by that office. North Dakota Ohio Oregon Pennsylvania Board has 20 members, 4 appointed by governor and 4 each by majority and minority leaders of House and Senate whose appointees must be legislators. Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota X Tennessee Texas Commissioner of Higher Education reports to the Coordinating Board. The Board is appointed by the Governor, confirmed by the Senate. Utah Vermont X Virginia General Assembly (Legislative Body). Washington West Virginia Wisconsin Wyoming

American Samoa

PRIMARY ADVISORY BODY

| | | Primary Adv | visory Body Is |
|----------------------|---|----------------|----------------|
| | Name of Primary | - | Legislatively |
| State | Advisory Body | Voluntary | Mandated |
| | | | |
| Alabama | Alabana Chidash Assista | 37 | |
| Alabama | Alabama Student Assistance | X | |
| A1 - 1 - | Program Advisory Council | | ** |
| Alaska | Student Financial Aid Committee | | X |
| Arizona | None | | |
| Arkansas | State Scholarship Advisory | Appointed by | |
| California | Committee | agency head | |
| Calliornia | Advisory Group on Financial Aid Problems | | |
| | | | |
| • | Advisory Group on Need Evaluation Services | | |
| | | | |
| | Bilingual-Crosscultural Teacher | | |
| | Development Grant Program Advisory | | |
| | Committee | | |
| | Cal Grant A Advisory Committee | | |
| | Cal Grant B Advisory Committee | | |
| | Cal Grant C Advisory Committee | | |
| | Graduate Fellowship Advisory | | |
| | Committee | | |
| | Indian Students Advisory Committee | | |
| | Joint Committee on Student Financial | | |
| | Aid Research (CSAC-CPEC) | | |
| | Loan Study Council | | |
| | Student Financial Aid Information | | |
| | Program Advisory Committee | | |
| | SOAP Advisory Committee | | |
| | Training Steering Committee (of the | | |
| | State Student Financial Assistance | | |
| | Training Program) | | |
| Colorado | Advisory Committee | | X |
| Connecticut | Student Assistance Commission | *_* | X |
| Delaware | Scholarship Advisory Council | | X |
| District of Columbia | D.C. Educational Assistance Panel | | |
| Florida | Florida Student Financial Aid | | X |
| | Advisory Council | | |
| Georgia | At the present time we do not have a | | |
| | Plans are under way to establish com | mittee(s) purs | suant to |
| | recently enacted state legislation. | | |
| Hawaii | N/A | | |
| Idaho | Scholarship Sub-Committee | <u>X</u> | |
| Illinois | General Advisory Committee | X | |
| Indiana | SSACI Advisory Committee of ISFAA | X | |
| Iowa | Advisory Council for State | X | |
| | Student Aid Programs | | |
| Kansas | N/A | | |
| Kentucky | N/A | | |
| Louisiana | N/A | | |
| Maine | MASFAA (Maine Association of | X | |
| | Student Financial Aid | | |
| | Administrators) | | |

| | | Primary Ad | visory Body Is |
|----------------|--------------------------------------|-------------|--|
| | Name of Primary | | Legislatively |
| State | Advisory Body | Voluntary | Mandated |
| Maryland | Financial Aid Officer Association | X | |
| | High School Counselor Advisory | X | |
| | Committee | | |
| Massachusetts | Financial Aid Advisory Committee | X | |
| Michigan | None | | ······································ |
| Minnesota | Financial Aid Advisory Committee | X | |
| Mississippi | N/A | | |
| Missouri | Missouri Student Grant Program | X | |
| | Advisory Committee | | |
| Montana | Montana Financial Aid Officers | X | |
| Nebraska | None | | |
| Nevada | Nevada Student Grant Advisory Board | X | |
| New Hampshire | NHIP Advisory Committee | X | · |
| New Jersey | Technical Review Group | X | |
| New Mexico | Board of Educational Finance | | X |
| New York | Advisory Council | | X |
| North Carolina | N/A | | |
| North Dakota | Student Financial Assistance Program | X | X |
| | Advisory Board | | |
| Ohio | OIE Advisory Committee | X | |
| Oregon | Oregon State Scholarship | | |
| - | Commission Advisory Council | X | |
| Pennsylvania | State Grant Advisory Committee | X | |
| Rhode Island | None | | |
| South Carolina | Tuition Grants Advisory Panel | X | |
| South Dakota | N/A | | |
| Tennessee | Financial Aid Administrators | X | |
| | Advisory Committee | | |
| Texas | Various Ad Hoc | X | |
| Utah | Governor, Legislature Institutional | X | |
| | Councils Board of Education | | |
| Vermont | None | | |
| Virginia | Financial Aid Advisory Committee | X | |
| Washington | State Need Grant and State | | X |
| - | Work-Study Advisory Committee | | |
| West Virginia | Advisory Council on West Virginia | X | |
| | Grants | | |
| Wisconsin | Council on Student Financial Aid | | X |
| Wyoming | None | | <u> </u> |
| | | | |

PRIMARY ADVISORY BODY MEMBER SELECTION

| State | Selected by Agency | Appointed by State Executive Office | Elected | Appointed by Legislature | Appointed by Commissioner | Other | State | Selected by Agency | Appointed by State Executive Office | Elected | Appointed by Legislature | Appointed by Commissioner | Other | _ |
|--------------------------|--------------------------|--|---------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------|--------------------------|--|---------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|----------|
| Alabama | | | | | | Appointed by | New Jersey | | | | | | | |
| Alabama | | | | | | State Association | New Mexico | | | | X | | | _ |
| | | | | | | of Student | New York | X | | | | | | _ |
| | | | | | | Financial Aid | North Carolina | | | | | | N/A | |
| | | | | | | Administrators. | North Dakota | X | | | | | | |
| Alaska | Х | | | | | | Ohio | X | | | | | | |
| Arizona | | | | | | No primary | Oklahoma | | | | | | | |
| Arkansas | <u> х</u> | | | | | advising body. | Oregon | | | | | | Appointed by Advisory | |
| California | X | | | | | | | | | | | | Committee. | |
| Colorado | 5 | | | | 4 | 6 designated by | Pennsylvania | X | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | governing boards | Rhode Island | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | of institutions. | South Carolina | Х | | <u></u> | | | | |
| Connecticut | | x | | | | | South Dakota | | | | | | | |
| Delaware | | | | | | Appointed by presidents of colleges. | Tennessee | х | | | | | Recommended by Tennessee Association | |
| District of Columb | ia X | | | | | | | • | | | | | of Student | |
| Florida | | | | | X | | | | | | | | Financial Aid | |
| Georgia | х х | | | | | | | | | | | | Administrators. | |
| Hawaii | None | Listed | | | | | Texas | | | | | | Many advisory | |
| Idaho | | Х | | | | | | | | | | | committees; no | |
| Illinois | Х | | | | | | | | | | | | one is primary. | -16- |
| Indiana | | ·· | | | | Appointed by ISFAA. | | | | | | | All appointed as needed. | ှ ရ _ |
| Iowa | х | | | | | | Utah | | | X | | | Appointed by | |
| Kansas | | | | | | N/A | | | | | | | Board of Regents | |
| Kentucky | | | | | | N/A | | | | | | | (Inst. Council). | _ |
| Louisiana | | | | | | N/A Commission of | Vermont | | | | | | | |
| Maine | | | | | | Maine Association | Virginia | X | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | of Student | Washington | X | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Financial Aid | West Virginia | X | | | | | FAD's by State | _ |
| | | | | | | Administrators. | Wisconsin | | | | | | Association | |
| | 0 | | · | Group A | | NOMINISCIAL COLO. | | | | | | | of Aid | |
| Maryland | Group B | | | Group A | | | | | | | | | Administrators. | |
| Massachusetts | | | | | | N/A | | | | | | | Students | |
| Michigan | 3 | | 8 | | | | | | | | | | by student | |
| Minnesota Mississippi | | Listed | | | | | | | | | | | government. | |
| Missouri | X | Braced | · | | | Confirmed by | Wyoming | | | | | | None | |
| MISSOULI | Α. | | | | | the Coordinating | American Samoa | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Board for Higher | Interretar Banad | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | Education. | | | | | | | | |
| Montana | | | | | | Volunteer. | | | | | | | | |
| Nebraska | | | | | | N/A | | | | | | | | |
| Nevada | | | | | | Selected by | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | chancellor. | | | | | | | | |

New Hampshire

Х

| | | _ | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------------|--|----------------------------------|-----------------------|------------------------------------|----------------------|------------------------------|-------------------|---------------------------|----------------|-------------------|--|--------------|
| State | COLLEGE PRESIDENTS | COLLEGE FINANCIAL AID OFFICES | COLLEGE ADMISSIONS | POSTSECONDARY PROP/VOC/TECH/SCH | SECONDARY SCHOOLS | LENDERS/COMMERCIAL INTERESTS | STATE LEGISLATURE | STATE EXECUTIVE OFFICE | STUDENTS | CITIZENS AT LARGE | Other | TOTAL |
| New Jersey | | 10 | | | | | | | | | 1 EOF Program Representative. | 11 |
| New Mexico | | | | | | - | | + | | X | Representative. | |
| New York | | 6 | | | 3 | - | | 4 | | ^ | | 13 |
| North Carolina | | | | | | | | | | | N/A | 1 |
| North Dakota | Х | Х | | | Х | | | | х | | College Fiscal | |
| Ohio | 1 | Х | | X | Х | | | † | | X | | |
| Oklahoma | 1 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Oregon | 1 | Х | | Х | | | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | | 3 | 1 | 1 | 1 | | | | 3 | 3 | 4 U. S. Office of Education Common-wealth Association of students Commission for Independent Colleges and Universities, Penna. Association of Colleges and Universities. | 16 |
| South Carolina | † | X | Х | | X | <u> </u> | | 1 | | | | |
| South Dakota | | 1 | | | | | | † | | | | |
| Tennessee | | Х | · | | | | | † | | | | |
| Texas | | | | | | | | | | | There are many advisory commit-tees - no one is primary. All appointed as needed. | |
| Jtah | Х | | <u> </u> | | | | X | X | | | | |
| Vermont | | | | | | | | 1 | | | None | |
| Virginia | | 24 | | 2 | | | | | | | | 26 |
| √ashington | | SWS 8 SNG 9 | | | | | | | SWS 1 SNG 1 | | | 10 10 |
| Vest Virginia | Х | Х | | [| X | | X | Х | Х | | | 16 |
| √isconsin | | 7 | | | | | | 11 | 7 | | | 14 |
| √yoming | | | 1 | r | | | | † <u>†</u> | | | None | |
| American Samoa | | | | | | | | 1 | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | ! |

OTHER GROUPS FROM WHICH INPUT IS REGULARLY SOUGHT

| Name | οf | Group |
|------|----|-------|
| | | |

| State | Name of Group | |
|--|--|--|
| | or Groups | Constituency |
| Alabama | None | |
| Alaska | None | |
| Arizona | State Association of Financial | Financial Aid Officers |
| | Aid Administrators | Tananotal illa officelo |
| Arkansas | Arkansas Association of Student | Directors of Financial |
| | Financial Aid Administrators | Aid |
| California | None Listed | |
| Colorado Connecticut | None Listed CAPFAA | Object Pinner 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 |
| Delaware | None Listed | State Financial Aid Officers |
| District of Columbia | D. C. Committee of Delaware | D. C. Postsecondary Education |
| | | Students |
| | D. C. Maryland Student Financial Aid | 1 |
| | Administrators Associates | |
| Florida | Florida Association of Student | College/University Student |
| Georgia | Financial Aid Administrators State Financial Aid Administrators | Financial Aid Administrators Institutional Financial Aid |
| ocorgia | Organization (GASFAA) | Administrators |
| Hawaii | Hawaii Student Financial Aid | All students |
| | Association | |
| Idaho | None | |
| Illinois | ILASFAA, IBHE Federation of | State Financial Aid Adminis- |
| | Independent Colleges | trators |
| | | State Board of Higher Education |
| Indiana | Advisory Board | Private Illinois Colleges Bankers, F.A. Officers |
| Iowa | Iowa Association of Financial | Postsecondary Financial Aid |
| | Aid Administrators | |
| | Iowa Association of Independent | Private Colleges |
| | Colleges & Universities | |
| | State Department of Public | Merged Area Schools and Second- |
| Kansas | Instruction Kansas Association of State | ary Schools F.A. Administrators |
| Kullbub | Financial Aid Administrators | r.A. Administrators |
| | (KASFAA) | |
| | Associated Students of KS (ASK) | Regents Institutions Students |
| Kentucky | N/A | |
| Louisiana | Louisiana Association of Student | School Financial Aid Admini- |
| W-1 | Financial Aid Administrators | strator |
| Maine Maryland | State Board of Higher Education | Chata Wish with a Piles |
| and y t divid | state board of Higher Education | State Higher Education (especially the public sector.) |
| Massachusetts | Massachusetts Association of | Financial Aid Administrators |
| | Student Financial Aid Admini- | • |
| | strators | |
| | Regional Educational Opportunity | All non-traditional students. |
| | | |
| di chi can | Centers (publicly funded) | 7 |
| Michigan | Michigan Student Financial Aid | Financial Aid Officer |
| | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association | |
| | Michigan Student Financial Aid | Representatives from State Fi- |
| | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association | Representatives from State Fi- nancial aid organization and one |
| | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association | Representatives from State Fi- nancial aid organization and one |
| finnesota | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed | Representatives from State Fi- nancial aid organization and one representative from each institu- |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student | Representatives from State Fi- nancial aid organization and one representative from each institu- |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A | Representatives from State Fi- nancial aid organization and one representative from each institu- tional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents | Representatives from State Fi- nancial aid organization and one representative from each institu- tional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community | Representatives from State Fi- nancial aid organization and one representative from each institu- tional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Voca- | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Adminis- |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Adminis- |
| Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid Administrators | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators Financial Aid Officers |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska New Hampshire | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska New Hampshire | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid Administrators New Hampshire Financial Aid Administration Association Student Advisory Committee of | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators Financial Aid Officers |
| Mississippi Mississippi Missouri Montana Mebraska Mevada Mew Hampshire | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid Administrators New Hampshire Financial Aid Administration Association Student Advisory Committee of Student Assistance Board | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators Financial Aid Officers Financial Aid Community Students |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid Administrators New Hampshire Financial Aid Administration Association Student Advisory Committee of Student Assistance Board Legislative Financial Committee | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators Financial Aid Officers Financial Aid Community Students |
| Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid Administrators New Hampshire Financial Aid Administration Association Student Advisory Committee of Student Assistance Board Legislative Financial Committee College & Universities | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators Financial Aid Officers Financial Aid Community Students State State |
| Michigan Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey New Mexico | Michigan Student Financial Aid Association Financial Aid Advisory Committee None Listed Missouri Association of Student N/A University of NE Board of Regents State College Board of Trustees Nebraska Association of Community Colleges and Trustees Nebraska Association of Independent College and Universities Nebraska Council of Private Vocational Schools Nebraska Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators Nevada State Financial Aid Administrators New Hampshire Financial Aid Administration Association Student Advisory Committee of Student Assistance Board Legislative Financial Committee | Representatives from State Financial aid organization and one representative from each institutional system in the state. Financial Aid Personnel University Systems State College System Technical Community College Sector Independent College Sector Proprietary Sector Financial Aid Administrators Financial Aid Officers Financial Aid Community Students |

OTHER GROUPS FROM WHICH INPUT IS REGULARLY SOUGHT

| | Name of Group | 0 |
|----------------|-------------------------------------|--|
| State | or Groups | Constituency |
| New York | None Listed | |
| North Carolina | Advisory Steering Committee | Financial Aid Officer (for |
| | Destruction of the Territory | Training) |
| | Bankers Student Loan Committee | Banks located in the State |
| | Close cooperation with the state | |
| North Dakota | Association of Aid Officers | |
| Ohio | | |
| Oklahoma | | |
| Oregon | Rural Medical Education Committee | 2-M.D.'s, 2-D.O.'s, and 4 lay |
| | | members |
| • . | Oregon Association of Student | Postsecondary Financial Aid |
| • | Financial Aid Administrators | Officers |
| Pennsylvania | Penna. Association of Student | Pennsylvania Financial Aid |
| | Financial Aid Administrators | Officers |
| | Governmental Liaison Committee | |
| .3 | Executive Committee | |
| Rhode Island | None Listed | |
| South Carolina | None | |
| South Dakota | South Dakota Association of Student | Financial Aid Community |
| | Aid Administrators | |
| | South Dakota Advisory Board | Each Profession |
| <u>.</u> | Indian Scholarship Board | Regent's office, elementary |
| • | Presidents Council (Race track) | and secondary education |
| | | Indian Community College |
| • | | and Universities in system. |
| Cennessee . | Tennessee Association | Financial Aid Officers |
| - | of Student Financial Aid | |
| | Administrators | |
| lexas | Texas Association of Student | Financial Aid |
| CAGO | Financial Aid Administrators | |
| | Texas Association of Independent | Presidents and Financial Aid |
| | Colleges | Offices |
| | Texas Association of Proprietary | |
| | Schools | The product of the pr |
| Utah | None Listed | |
| Vermont | VASFAA | Aid Administrators |
| | VPGA | Guidance Counselors |
| | VBA | Banks |
| | Vermont State Department of | Colleges |
| | Education | |
| • | 1202 Commission | College President |
| | VHEC | |
| Virginia | General Professional Advisory | Public College Presidents |
| . · | Committee | |
| | Private College Advisory | Private College Presidents |
| | Committee | |
| Washington | Washington Financial Aid | Financial Aid Officers |
| - | Administrators | · · |
| | Council of Presidents | Four-Year Public Institutions |
| | State Board for Community | Community Colleges |
| | Colleges | |
| | Washington Friends of Higher | Private Colleges and |
| • | Education | Universities |
| West Virginia | Student Affairs Advisory | Deans of Public College and |
| | Committee | Universities |
| • | Advisory Council of Students | Students Government Repre- |
| | | senatives of Public Colleges |
| | | and Universities |
| | West Virgina Association of | Financial Aid Officers at |
| | Student Financial Aid Adminis- | public and private colleges |
| | trators | and universities. |
| Wisconsin | WHEG Ad Hoc Comm | Public (UW/VTA) Fináncial |
| | | Aid Officers |
| | Tuition Grant Ad Hoc | Private College - Financial |
| 4 - 2 | | Aid Officers |
| | Lender Advisory Committee | Private Lenders |
| Wyoming | Association of Community | |
| • | Colleges Trustees | College presidents in Wyoming |
| | President Council | · All aspects of postsecondary |
| | 1202 Commission | in Wyoming. |

| | | | ency of Ager | | | Agency al Year | Cycle |
|---|-------------------|---------------------------------------|--|---------------|---------------|---------------------------------------|-------------|
| Program Title | Year Initiated | Annually | Biennially | Other | July- June | Oct Sept. | Other |
| | | | 2201112119 | - OCITET | bane | вере. | other |
| Alabama | 1075 76 | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Program Alaska | 1975-76 | X | | | | X | |
| Scholarships | Annually | per SEIG | response: regulations s as applica | | | | |
| • | | Determine | d statistics ummarized. | | | | |
| Arizona | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | 1977 | X | | | | | X |
| Arkansas | 7/1/75 | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program California | 7/1/75 | | X | | X | | |
| Cal Grant A | 1956 | . X | | | Х | | |
| Cal Grant B | 1969 | <u>X</u> | | | X | | |
| Cal Grant C | 1973 | . X | | | X | | |
| Bilingual Teacher | - | | | | | | |
| Development Grant | 1977 | X | | | X | _ | |
| State Graduate Fellowship | | X | | | X | | |
| Supervised Clinical | | | | | | • • • | |
| Training Program | 1972 | X | | | X | · | |
| Law Enforcement Personnel | | • | | | | | *. |
| Dependents Scholarship Program | 1970 | X | | | 37 | | • |
| Colorado | 1970 | X | | | <u> </u> | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | 1977 | X | • | | Х | | |
| Student Grants | 1971 | <u>X</u> | : . | · | <u>X</u> | | |
| Graduate Grants | 1971 | X | | | X | | |
| Connecticut | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program - | | - | • | | | | |
| Undergraduate | 1965 | X | | | X | | |
| State Supplemental/ | | | | | | | |
| Work-Study Grants | 1977-78 | <u> </u> | | | X | _ | |
| State Scholarship Graduate Award Program | 1965 | | e e | • | V | | |
| Contracted Stud. | | X | | - | X | | |
| Ind. Colleges) | 1969 | X | | | Х | | |
| Delaware | | | | | | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | 1979-80 | X | | | X | | |
| District of Columbia | \$100 Pro- | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | 1975-76 | X | | | | X | |
| Florida | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Grants | 1972 | X | · | | X | · . | |
| Georgia | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant | 107/ | ** | | | •• | · . | |
| Program Hawaii | . 1974 | <u> </u> | | · | <u>X</u> | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | | | | | | |
| Program | 1976 | Х | | | X | | |
| Idaho | | | | | | -, | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | | | | | | |
| Program | 1975 | X | | | . X | | |
| Illinois | | | | | | | |
| Monetary Award Program | 1958-59 | Х | | | X | | |
| Indiana | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | |
| State Scholarships | 1965 | | Χ. | | X | | • |
| Educational Grants | 1971 | | X | | X | | |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | 1973 | | X | | X | | |
| Iowa | | | | | · · · · · · | | |
| Scholarship Program | 1965 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | X | | X | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | <u> </u> |
| Tuition Grant Program | 1969 | | X | | X | | |
| Vo-Tech Tuition Grant | 1973 | .a. a.e.s. | X | | | | |
| (opera | tional in 19 | 1/4-/5) | | | | | |

| | | | ency of Agen iation Decis | | Fisca | Agency al Year | Cycle |
|--|-------------------|----------|------------------------------|-------------|---------------|-------------------------|---------------|
| Program Title | Year Initiated | | Biennially | | July- June | Oct Sept. | Other |
| | | | 22011124213 | other | - Julie | вере. | <u> </u> |
| Kansas State Scholarships | 1963 | X | | | Х | | |
| Tuition Grants | 1972 | X | | | <u>X</u> | | |
| Kentucky | | | | | | | |
| Kentucky Higher Ed. | 1972 | | Х | | X | | |
| | operational i | in 19/4) | | | | | |
| Grant Program Louisiana | | | | | | | |
| Governor's Special | | | | | | | |
| Commission on Education | | | | | | | |
| Loan/Grant Division | 1975 | X | | | X | | · |
| Maine | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Scholarship Program | 1978 | | х | | х | | |
| Maryland | 1770 | | | | | | |
| General State | | | | | | | |
| | rior to 1970 | X | | | X | | |
| | rior to 1970 | X | | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | | |
| Proprietary School | 1979-80 | Х | | | х | | |
| Grants Massachusetts | 1979-00 | X | | | <u>^</u> | | |
| General Scholarships | 1958 | Х | | | Х | | |
| Consortium Scholarships | 1974 | X | | | Х | | |
| Michigan | | | | | | | |
| Competitive Scholarships | 1964 | <u>X</u> | | | | X | |
| Tuition Grants Minnesota | 1966 | X | | | | X | |
| Scholarship Program | 1968 | | Х | | х | | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | 1969 | | <u>X</u> | | X | | |
| Mississippi | | | | | | · - · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Student Grants | 1975 | X | | | X | | |
| Missouri | 1070 | ** | | | 17 | | |
| Student Grants Montana | 1972 | X | | | <u> </u> | | |
| Incentive Grants | | | x | | Х | | |
| Nebraska | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | 1974 | X | | | X | | |
| Nevada | 1077 | 17 | | | 17 | | |
| Student Incentive Grants New Hampshire | 1977 | X | | | <u> </u> | | |
| Incentive Grants | 1976 | | X | | X | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| New Jersey Tuition Aid Grants | 1978-79 | X | | | х | | |
| Garden State Scholarships | 1978-79 | <u>X</u> | | | <u>X</u> | | |
| Educational Opportunity | | | | | | | |
| Fund Program | 1968 | X | | | <u> </u> | | |
| Basic Scholarship Program | | | | | | | |
| Old Tuition Grant Program Public Tuition Aid Program | 1977-78 | Х | | | X | | |
| Garden State Graduate | 1777 70 | A | | | | | |
| Fellowships | 1978-79 | X | | | X | | |
| New Mexico | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | 1976 | X | | | X | | |
| New York Tuition Assistance Program | 1974 | X | | | | | Х |
| Regents Scholarship Program | | X | | | | | X |
| North Carolina | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | 1975 | <u> </u> | X | | X | | |
| Legislative Tuition Grants | 1975 | | X | | X | | - |
| Board of Governors Medical | 107/ | | X | | x | | |
| Scholarships Board of Governors Dental | 1974 | | A | | A | | |
| Scholarships | 1978 | | X | | Х | | |
| Brooks Foundation | | | | | | | |
| Scholarships | 1955 | | | X | | | |
| Turrentine Foundation | 107/ | | | х | | | |
| Scholarships | 1974 | | | ^ | | | |

| | | | ency of Agen iation Decis | | | Agency al Year | Cycle |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------------------|-------------|------------------------------|-------------|---------------|-------------------|-------|
| Program Title | Year Initiated | Annually | Biennially | Other | July- June | Oct Sept. | Other |
| North Dakota | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | | | | | | |
| Program | 1979 | | Х | | Х | | |
| Student Financial Assistanc | &555 5 5 | | | | | | |
| Program | 1973 | | X | | Χ . | | |
| Ohio | | | · | | | | |
| Instructional Grants | 1970 | | Х | | Х | | |
| Oregon | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | | | |
| Need Grant | 1971 | | X | | X | | |
| Cash Award | 1961 | | X | | X | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | | | | |
| Higher Education Grants | 1966 | X | | | X | | |
| Rhode Island | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship and Grant | 1978 | X | | | X | | |
| | n present form | n) | | | | | |
| South Carolina | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | 1971-72 | X | | | X | | |
| South Dakota | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | 1978 | X | | | X | | |
| Health Professions Loan | | | | | | | |
| Program | 1969 | X | | | X | | |
| Indian Scholarship Program | 6-7 years ago |) X | | | X | | |
| Tennessee | • | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance | | | | | | | |
| Awards | 1976 | Х | | | Х | | |
| Texas | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization | | | | | | | |
| Grants Program | 1971 | | X | | | | Х |
| Ut ah | | ···· | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | None Listed | | | X | Х | | |
| Vermont | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | 1965 | X | | | X | | |
| Virginia | | | | | | | |
| College Scholarship | | | | | | | |
| Assistance Program | 1973 | | X | | Х | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | | | | | | |
| Program (TAG) | 1973 | | X | | X | | |
| Washington | | | | | | | |
| Need Grant Program | 1970 | | X | | X | | |
| West Virginia | | | | | | | |
| Higher Education Grant | | | | | | | |
| Program | 1968 | X | | <u> </u> | X | | |
| Wisconsin | | | • | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | 1965-66 | | X | | X | | |
| Higher Education Grant | 1076 77 | | | | | | |
| Program (WHEG) | 1976-77 | | X | | X | | |
| Indian Student Assistance | 1971-72 | | X | | Х | | |
| Wyoming | 1070 | | | | _ | | |
| SSIG Incentive Grants | 1979 | | | X | X | | |
| American Samoa | 1053 | 37 | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | 1957 | X | | | | X | |

Other

Arizona - August 1 to July 31

Maryland - If increased aid sought; otherwise only at start.

New York - April 1 to March 31

North Carolina - Private funds.

Texas - September 1 to August 31

Utah - As requested.

Wyoming - As requested from schools.

| 1 | - 1/4- | 2 | |
|---|--------|---|--|
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

| | Published Deadline For Student's | APPLICATION SCHEDULE How Are Applicants Informed | When Are Applicants | Report The | e Recipients Required To ort Other Aid Received To The Agency After Award Notification? | | |
|--|--|---|--|---------------|--|--|--|
| State | Application | of Award Decision? | Informed of Award? | Yes No | Type of Aid Reported | | |
| Alabama Student Assistance Program | November 15 | Award letters batched to institutions for distribution | April, June, Sept., and November | x | Institutions report al known aid | | |
| Alaska Scholarships | | | | | | | |
| Arizona Incentive Grant Program | None | By FAO at the School | Determined by the school FAO | Х | Any that would increase their total aid or family contribution | | |
| Arkansas State Scholarship Program | July 1, 1980 | Thru notice | As applications come in but not before April lst | Х | | | |
| California Cal Grant A | February 12, 1981 | Through letter mailed by the Commission | May 1, Mid-June | х | All grant aid | | |
| Cal Grant B | February 12 | Mailed a letter | May and June | X | Grants | | |
| Cal Grant C | February 12, 1981 | By letter | May 1 - 1st Announce. June 15 - 2nd Announce | e. | All grant aid | | |
| Bilingual Teacher Development Grant Calif State Graduate Fellowship | February 12 February 12, 1981 | Mailed a letter By letter of offer or rejection | May and June Early May | X | Grants All grants, teaching & research, assistantships & other aid except student loans | | |
| Supervised Clinical Training Program | No | By school | When student is accepted by school | Х | | | |
| Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent | None | Letter within 30 days of application | Letter within 30 days of application | Х | Grant & scholarship a: | | |
| Colorado Student Incentive Grants | Varies by | By institutions | Varies | Х | All additional resource | | |
| Student Grants | Varies by institution | By institutions | Varies | X | All additional resource | | |
| Graduate Grants | Varies by | By institutions | Varies | Х | All additional resource | | |
| Connecticut | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Programs Undergraduate | 3/7/80 Renewal | n By letter from Agency | April (Prefreshmen) June (Renewal) | Х | | | |
| State Supplemental/Work-Study Grants | Varies according to institutional pro- cedures | Varies according to institutional pro- cedures | Varies according to institutional pro- cedures | Х | | | |
| State Scholarship Graduate Award Program | May 1 | By letter from Agency | July 1 | X | | | |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 | Defined by each college | Each college determines the method it uses for its students | Defined by each college | х | | | |
| Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia | April 30 | By form letter | July 1 | . х | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| Incentive Grants | June 16, July 16 | Letter | Varies | х | | | |
| Florida | Jame 10, July 10 | 2000 | ,0110 | A | | | |
| Student Assistance Grants | April 1 | Mailed by FSFAC between July 15 & August 1 | Between July 15 and August 1 | Х | Institutions report overaward and make adjustments | | |
| Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program | June 1 | By written notification "Award/Denial Notice" | As soon as applica- tions are complete and evaluated | Х | Funds received from organizations other tha | | |
| Hawaii Student Incentive Grants | Differs by institution | By letter | Within a month after completion of appli- cation forms | х | | | |
| Idaho Student Incentive Grants | None | By institution award letter | Varies | х | | | |
| station incentive Grants | NOTIE | by Theftfor award Teffel | varies | X | | | |

| | Published Deadline | | | • | | Other Aid Received To Agency After Award |
|---------------------------------------|--|--|---|------------|----|---|
| • | For Student's | How Are Applicants Informed | When Are Applicants | | | Notification? |
| State | Application | of Award Decision? | Informed of Award? | Yes | No | Type of Aid Reported |
| Illinois Monetary Award Program | February 15 of award year | By Agency | Rolling - usually within 30 days of application | | х | |
| Indiana State Scholarships | lst time applicants Dec. 1, FAF sub- mitted to Prince- ton, NJ by March 1 for all applicants | Award notification from SSACI | By June 15 | х | | All gift aid from all sources |
| Educational Grants | March 1 | Award notification from SSACI | By June 15 | Х | | All gift aid |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | March 1 | SSACI award notification | By June 15 | X | | All sources of gift aid |
| Iowa | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | March 1 & June 1 | Award letter | Rolling awards begin in early March & con- tinue at 3-week intervals | х. | | All non-repayable aid |
| Tuition Grant Program | March 1 & June 1 | Award letter | Rolling awards begin in early March & con- tinue at 3-week intervals | Х | | All non-repayable aid |
| Voc/Tech Tuition Grant | March 1 & June 1 | Award letter | Rolling awards begin in early March & con- tinue at 3-week intervals | X . | | All non-repayable aid |
| Kansas | | | | | | |
| State of Kansas Scholarships | Priority Date: April 21 | Letter | Summer - beginning in May or June | | Х | |
| Tuition Grants | Priority Date: April 21 | Letter | Summer - beginning in May or June | | Х | |
| Kentucky Grant Program | Priority: April 1 | Direct mail from KHEAA | Direct mail from KHEAA | <u> </u> | X | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Louisiana Incentive Grant | November 1 | Schools make awards and handle notification within allocated amounts | | | Х | |
| Maine | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | drived discourse | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | |
| Incentive Grants | May 1 | Award letters | Mid-August | | Х | |
| Maryland | | | | | | |
| General State Scholarships | March 2 | Award letters generated 4 times each academic year | Early May, Late July, Late November, and March | | Х | |
| Senatorial Grants | March 2 | Award letters generated 4 times each academic year | Early May, Late July, Late November, and March | | Х | |
| Proprietary School Grants | Recommend March 2 but flexible | Award letters 3 times a year | July, November, March | | Х | |
| Massachusetts General Scholarships | March 1 - renewals April 1 | Letter | Freshmen - April New Upperclass - May Renewal - June | | Х | |
| Consortium Scholarships | | By eligible institution | Varies | X | | To college, not Agency |
| Michigan Competitive Scholarships | Freshman - Jan. 30 | Letter, from our office | Freshmen - April | | х | <u> </u> |
| Tuition Grants | Upperclass-March 15 Freshman - Jan. 30 | Letter, from our office | Upperclass - Late June Freshmen - April | ! | Х | |
| Minnesota | Upperclass-March 15 | | Upperclass - June | | | |
| Scholarship Program | Priority 3/2/81 Final 7/15/81 | Award notice sent | June, July, August | . X | | Outside gift aid |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | Priority 3/2/81 Final 7/15/81 | Award notice sent | June, July, August | Х | | Outside gift aid |
| Mississippi Student Grants | December 15 | By School, By mail | December 15 | Х | | |
| | | | | | | |

Are Recipients Required To

| State | Published Deadline For Student's Application | How Are Applicants Informed of Award Decision? | When Are Applicants Informed of Award? | Report (| Other Aid Received To Agency After Award Notification? Type of Aid Reported |
|--|---|--|--|----------|---|
| Missouri State Grants | April 30 (First Decisions) | By notice from the Agency | June | х | |
| Montana Incentive Grants Nebraska | January | By schools thru mail | July | х | |
| Incentive Grants | Varies among institutions | Generally by award letters | Varies among | Х | |
| Nevada Student Incentive Grants | Variable | Through campus award letter | Variable, based on school schedules | Х | |
| New Hampshire Incentive Grants | May 1 | Letter | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| New Jersey | may 1 | Better | August | <u>X</u> | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | October 15 for Fall & Spring, March 15 for Spring only | Applicant provided with a Student Eligibility Notice (Sen) | Approx. 6 weeks after filing NJFAF with college | X | |
| Garden State Scholarships | October 15 for Fall & Spring, March 15 Spring | Award letter from college | Varies from college to college | X | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | October 15 for Fall Term, March 15 for Spring Term | EOF is a campus-based pro- gram: Students are informed with one financial aid award letter | Prior to beginning of the academic year | Х | |
| Basic Scholarship, Old Tuition Grant, Public Tuition Aid & Incentive Grants | October 15 Fall, Spring Terms - March 15 for Spring | Provided with a Student Eligibility Notice (Sen) | Approximately 6 weeks after filing NJFAF with CSS | з Х | Gift aid |
| Garden State Graduate Fellowship | February 15 | Letter from State Agency | April . | X | |
| New Mexico Incentive Grants | Determined by individual institutions | By award letter | After approval by state agency | х | |
| New York Tuition Assistance Program | March 31 | Mail | Within 3 weeks of application | х | |
| Regents Scholarship Program | March 31 | Mail award certificate | иррі дойстоп | X | |
| North Carolina N.C. Incentive Grant | March 15 | By letter, copy to school | Common award date. In years when legis- lature is in session, immediately following adoption of state budget | | All financial aid that would materially change the financial infor. on which the NCSIG award is based |
| N.C. Legis. Tuition Grant | October 1 | By school | At or before actual enrollment | Х | |
| Board of Governors Medical Schol. | N/A | By letter from the Presi- dent of the University System | Within one week after selection | Х | Any type |
| Board of Governors Dental Schol. | | By letter from the Presi- dent of the University System | Within one week fol- lowing selection | Х | Any type |
| Brooks Foundation Sch. | | Letter from Director of the Foundation | One week after chosen | Х | Any aid |
| Turrentine Foundation Schol. | None | By schools | Varies according to award schedule of school | X | Any aid |
| North Dakota | | | Bellour | | |
| Tultion Assistance Grant Student Financial Asst. | April 15 | By letter, by Agency | May - June | X | |
| Ohio | April 15 | By letter from Agency | Anytime after May 15 | Х | Non-institutional gift aid in excess of \$100 |
| Instructional Grants | Full yr. awards - August 15, Partial yr. awards - Dec 1 | Eligible applicants receive award certificate which is to be turned in to college aid office. Non-eligible applicants receive denial | Sent out once a week beginning in Feb., normal turn around is 2 weeks | Х | |

| State | Published Deadline For Student's Application | How Are Applicants Informed of Award Decision? | When Are Applicants Informed of Award? | Report The | ecipients Required To Other Aid Received To Agency After Award Notification? O Type of Aid Reported |
|--|--|--|---|---------------|---|
| Oregon Need Grant | None | By notification from Agency | Dolling mobilization | v | |
| | Notic | & award letter from school | Rolling notification | Х | |
| Cash Award | None | Agency notifies student | Rolling notification | X | |
| Pennsylvania Higher Education Grants | May 1 & August 1 Before academic year | Notification letter from Agency | Beginning 3/15/81 (Effective with 1981-82 award year) | Х | |
| Rhode Island | | | | | |
| Scholarship and Grant Programs South Carolina | March 16 | Letter from Agency | Late May | X | |
| Tuition Grant Program | Yes in 1980-81 May 1/No for 1981-82 | Letter from Agency plus packaging at institutional level | On rolling basis after January 1 | Х | All gift aid |
| South Dakota | _ | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | June 1 | Award rosters sent to schools, Financial Aid Ad- ministrators contact stu- dents, usually by letter | After July 1 | Х | |
| Health Profession Loan Program | June 1 | Award letter | July | X | |
| Indian Scholarship Program | March 31 | Notice via financial aid office of each institution of higher education | Summer | х | |
| Tennessee Student Assistance Awards | May 15th | Mail | July | х | Financial Aid Adminis- trators must repackage to assure that students are not overawarded |
| Texas | | | | | are not overawarded |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Depends on school | Award letter | Award letters mailed in Summer (usually) | Х | To the school, not the Agency - Gift aid if it will cause overaward |
| Utah Incentive Grants | Variable by institution | By Financial Aid Officers | As prepared | х | |
| Vermont Incentive Grant Program | March 1, 1980 | Award letter by Agency | Beginning in May and every month thereafter | | Private and local scholarships, ROTC, tuition remissions |
| Virginia College Scholarship Assistance Program | March 31, 1980 (April 15, 1981) | Award letter from Council | June - August | х | 2020020110 |
| Tuition Assistance Grant Program TAG | June 1, 1980 September 10, 1981 | Award letter from Agency | July - September | X | |
| Washington Need Grant Program | October 1 | Through award letter from institutions participating in the program | When institutions send their award letters | Х | ported to the institu- |
| West Virginia | ······································ | | 1000019 | | tions |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | March 1 | Notified directly by mail | Mid-June is when initial notifica-tions released | X | |
| Wisconsin Tuition Grant Program | No, Rolling Deadline | Institution's aid package or letter | When schools get aid package out | х | But must notify in- stitution |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | No, Rolling Deadline | Institution's aid package | When schools get aid | Х | Must report it to |
| Indian Student Assistance | No, Rolling Deadline | or letter Institution's aid package | package out When schools get aid | х | |
| Wyoming | | or letter | package out | | stitution |
| Incentive Grants | ** | | | | |
| American Samoa | No | Institutional | As soon as approved | X | |

FINANCIAL NEED UTILIZING

MERIT USING

| State | CSS System | ACT System | BEOG System | Specific State Need Analysis | Other | ACT | SAT | School GPA | Other |
|---|---------------|---------------|----------------|------------------------------------|--|-----|-----|---------------|--|
| State | Бувсеш | Бузсеш | Бузссы | 1111111111 | Out of the state o | | | | |
| Alabama | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Program | | | X | | | | | ХХ | |
| Alaska | | | | | | | | | |
| SEIG | | | | | | | | · | |
| Arizona | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | X | Х | X | | U. of Arizona SAFE System | | | | |
| Arkansas | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program | | х | | | | | | | High school or College Grades |
| California | | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant A | v | | | | | | | х | |
| Cal Grant B | X | | | | | | | <u>x</u> | |
| | <u>x</u> | | | | | | | | Commission selection criteria |
| Cal Grant C | | - | | | · | | | | based on vocational aptitude. |
| Bilingual Teacher | | | | | | | | | |
| Development Grant | Х | | | | | | | | |
| Cal State Graduate | | | | | State uniform expense | | | | |
| Fellowship | Х | | | | used with CSS. | | | X | GRE, LSAT, MCAT, GMAT, DAT. |
| Supervised Clinical | | | | | | | | | Acceptance by medical school |
| Training Program | | | | | N/A | | | | program. |
| Law Enforcement | | | | | | | | | _ t |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Personnel Dependents | v | | | | | | | | None |
| Scholarship Program | X | | | | | | | | Notice |
| Colorado | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | | | | Uniform methodology | | | | |
| Student Grants | | | | | Uniform methodology | | | | Satisfactory progress policy of schools. |
| Graduate Grants | | | | | Uniform methodology | | | | Institutional merit criteria |
| Connecticut | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Programs Undergraduate | Х | | | | | | Х | Х | Potential for academic success in college. |
| Supplemental/Work-Study | | | | | Need det. by individual | | | | Satisfactory progress as de- |
| Grants | | | | | college. | | | | termined by college. |
| | | | | | correge. | | | | Undergraduate transcript |
| State Scholarship Graduate | ., | | | | | | | | (min 3.0 cum.) |
| Award | X | | | | | | | | (min 5.0 cum.) |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. | | | | | | | | | |
| Colleges) PA551 | | | | | Defined by each college | | | | Defined by each college |
| Delaware | | | | | | | | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | X | х | | | | | | | N/A |
| District of Columbia | | | | | | | | - | |
| Incentive Grants | | | х | | | | | Х | |
| Florida | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Grants | Х | Х | | | | | | | |
| | | A | | | | | | | |
| Georgia | х | | | | | | | | N/A |
| Student Incentive Grant | Λ | | | | | | | | , |
| Program | | | | | | | | | |
| Hawaii | | | | | | | | х | |
| State Student Incentive Grant | s X | | | | ······ | | | ^ | |
| Idaho | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | X | X | X | | | | | | |
| Illinois | | | | | | | | | |
| Monetary Award Program | | | | X | | Х. | | | School Bank |
| Indiana | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarships | Х | | | | | | | | Class rank - end of junior year and SAT's |
| Educational Grants | X | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | None |
| | <u>x</u> | | | | | | | | None |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | X. | | | | | | | | |

FINANCIAL NEED UTILIZING

Regents Scholarship Program

Specific CSS ACT BEOG State Need School System Analysis State System System Other ACT SAT GPA Other Iowa Scholarship Program Percentile rank in class Tuition Grant Program N/A Voc/tech Tuition Grants Kansas State Scholarships Tuition Grants None Kentucky Grant Program N/A Louisiana Incentive Grant Income Tax Maine Incentive Grants None Maryland General State Scholarships Senatorial Scholarships Proprietary School Grants Recommendation by the school Massachusetts General Scholarships N/A Consortium Scholarships Institutions responsible Mass. residents. for need analysis Michigan Competitive Scholarship Tuition Grants Minnesota Scholarship Program Grant-in-Aid Program Mississippi Student Grants Missouri Student Grants N/A Montana Incentive Grants N/A Nebraska Incentive Grants N/A Nevada Student Incentive Grants None New Hampshire Incentive Grants New Jersey Tuition Aid Grants Garden State Scholarships Rank in class Ed. Opportunity Fund Program X N/A Basic Scholarships, Incentive Grants Public Tuition Aid Grants "Old" Tuition Aid Grants Garden State Graduate Fellowship N/A GRE scores New Mexico Incentive Grants New York N/A Tuition Assistance Program

Not need based

FINANCIAL NEED UTILIZING

| | | | | Specific | | | | | |
|---|----------------|--------|-------------|--------------|-------------|--|-----|--------------|---------------------------------------|
| | CSS | ACT | BEOG | State Need | | | | School | |
| State | System | System | System | Analysis | Other | ACT | SAT | GPA | Other |
| North Carolina | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant | X | X | | | | | | | N/A |
| Legis. Tuition Grant | <u>.</u> | | | N/A | <u> </u> | | | | N/A |
| Board of Governors Medical | X | | | | | | | Х | Recommendation of teachers and others |
| School Board of Governors Dental | | | | | | | | | teachers and others |
| School | х | | | | | | | х | |
| Brooks Foundation School | - x | X | | | | | | X | Recommendations |
| Turrentine Foundation School | X | | | | ····· | | | X | |
| North Dakota | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | X | | | | | | | |
| Student Financial Aid | | X | | | | | Not | Answer | ed |
| Ohio | | | | | | | | | _ |
| Instructional Grants | | | | <u> </u> | | | Not | Answer | ed |
| Oregon | ** | | | | | | | | N/A |
| Need Grant Cash Award | X | | | | | X | x | X | N/A |
| Pennsylvania | <u>^</u> | | | | | <u>^</u> | | ^ | |
| Higher Education Grants | | | | X | | | | | N/A |
| Rhode Island | | | | A | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | - | | |
| Scholarship and Grant Program | X | | | | | | х | | |
| South Carolina | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | X | | | X | | | | | Freshman must not rank in |
| - | | | | | | | | | bottom quarter of high school |
| | | | | | | | | | class and upperclassman must |
| | | | | | | | | | pass 24 semester hours during |
| | | | | | | | | | prior year. |
| South Dakota | | | | | | | | | |
| Health Professions | х | х | | | | | | Not | answered |
| Loan Program State Indian Scholarship | ^_ | ^ | | | | | | NOL | aliswered |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Х | X | x | | | x | X | | |
| | | | | | | ············ · | | | |
| Tennessee Student Assistance Awards | х | х | | | | | | | |
| Texas | ^ | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Х | x | х | Х | | | | | Academic progress required. |
| Public Education Grants | <u>X</u> | X | <u>x</u> | | | | | | Financial need ~ basic re- |
| | | | | | | | | | quirement, though academic |
| | | | | | | | | | progress also necessary. |
| Utah | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | | | | | | | | |
| Vermont | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | X | | | | | | | Merit is not used. |
| Virginia | | | | | | | | | |
| College Scholarship Assistance Program | х | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | | | | | | | | |
| Program | X | | | | | | | | Not a merit based program. |
| Washington | | | | | | •• | | | not a merre based program. |
| Need Grant Program | X | | | | | | | | N/A |
| West Virginia | | | | | | | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | X | | | | | Х | | X | |
| Wisconsin | - | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | X | | | | | | | | None |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | X | | | | | | | | Not used |
| Indian Student Assistance | X | | | | | | | | None |
| Wyoming | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | v | v | | | | | | |
| | | X | Х | | | | | | |
| American Samoa Scholarship Program | х | X | Х | | | | | х | TOEFL |

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA (1980-81)

OTHER PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

| State | Comments |
|---|---|
| Alabama Student Assistance Program | Full-time enrollment |
| Arkansas State Scholarship Program | Not in default of a NDSL-GSLP or owe a refund to BEOG |
| California | NOT IN COLUMN TO A NOON COLUMN CONTRACTOR OF THE COLUMN CO. |
| Cal Grant B | Family size, income, parental educational background, number of units earned |
| Bilingual Teacher Development Grant | Must be enrolled in a program leading to a bilingual |
| Cal State Graduate Fellowship | Parental Income) Students from low income families) or/and low educated families given Parental Education) "preference" points |
| Law Enforcement Personnel Dependents Scholarship Program Colorado | Dependent of deceased or totally disabled (100%) law enforcement officer injured or killed in the line of duty |
| Student Incentive Grants Student Grants | Undergraduate, need at least \$100 times months enrolled Undergraduate |
| Connecticut Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) | Defined by each college |
| Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships | Undergraduate at state-supported or non-profit colleges in the state 2 or 4 year degree program Full-time student Good academic standing (as defined by institution) Undergraduate meeting 2, 3, 4 above at colleges in New Jersey or Pennsylvania |
| | 6. Undergraduate who meets 2, 3, 4 above enrolled at a college outside Delaware when the program of study is not available at a tax-supported institution in Delaware 7. Graduate students who meet the conditions specified in 6 above |
| District of Columbia Incentive Grants | Must be enrolled in eligible postsecondary institution Must be enrolled at least half-time |
| Indiana Freedom of Choice Grants | Must attend approved private institution and demonstrate additional need over state grant or state scholarship |
| Iowa Voc/Tech Tuition Grants | Students must be pursuing a vocational program; liberal arts students are not eligible |
| Kansas | V |
| State Scholarships Tuition Grants | Kansas Resident Need Only |
| Kentucky Grant Program | Full-time, undergraduate, KY eligible institution, need established from CSS application, satisfying academic progress and no financial arrears with Agency or participating institutions |
| Louisiana | |
| Incentive Grant Massachusetts | Full-time student |
| General Scholarships Consortium Scholarships | Applied for BEOG Institutions select recipients following guidelines adopted by the Board of Higher Education. This is a small program to provide funds for students enrolled in private sector programs not available in public sector institutions in the same Consortium area within the state. Funds are allocated to institutions by the BHE in proportion to number of eligible students in eligible programs. Maximum institutional allocation is \$15,000. |
| Michigan | |
| Competitive Scholarships | 2.0 GPA, attend eligible Michigan school, good moral character |
| Tuition Grants | Good moral character; attend eligible Michigan private college or university |
| Missouri Student Grants | Student cannot be working toward theology or divinity degree. Ten semester eligibility limit. |
| Montana Incentive Grants | Undergraduate |

OTHER PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

| Higher Education Grants 1. Full-time 2. Undergraduate 3. Program of 2 yrs. (minimum) 4. Academic program 5. Satisfactory character South Dakota State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization Grants Tuition Equilization Grants Tennessee Student Assistance Awards Tuition Equalization Grants Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Texas Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students Wermont Incentive Grant Program High school diploma or equivalency certificate, full-time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) | State | Comments | | | | | |
|--|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Educationally and economically disadvantaged students with anximum income not exceeding \$12,000. Must be a full-time atudent. Not Describe a full-time and in good standing in an N.C. postsocondary intritation program of study not leading to a religious exection. N.C. Legislative Tuttion Grant Enrolled full-time as an undergraduate student in a N.C. private college or university in a program of study not leading to a religious exection. Board of Governors Medical School Candidates must be admitted to at least one of the N.C. private college or university in a program of study not leading to a religious exection. Board of Governors Dental School Candidates must be admitted to at least one of the N.C. pedical schools. Candidates must be admitted to the School of Dentistry at N.C. Standidates must be admitted to at least one of the N.C. pedical schools. Candidates must be admitted to the School of Dentistry and N.C. Standidates must be admitted to at least one of the N.C. pedical schools. Candidates must be admitted to the School of Dentistry and N.C. Standidates must be applied for undergraduate study at N.C. Standidates must be from Alamance County and been accepted for admission for undergraduate study at N.C. Standidates must be from Alamance County and been accepted for admission for undergraduate study at N.C. Standidates student; unstrained by N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. | | | | | | | |
| With maximum income not exceeding \$12,000. Nost be a full-time student. | Garden State Scholarships | | | | | | |
| Letter of recommendation North Carolina N.C. Student Incentive Grant Enrolled full-time and in good standing in an N.C. N.C. Legislative Tuftion Grant Enrolled full-time and in good standing in an N.C. N.C. Legislative Tuftion Grant Enrolled full-time as an undergraduate student in a N.C. private collage or university in a program of Study not leading to a religious vocation. | Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | with maximum income not exceeding \$12,000. Must be a | | | | | |
| N.C. Student Incentive Grant postsecondary Institution in a program of study not leading to a religious vocation. N.C. Legislative Tuition Grant Frontier and in a polar study not leading to a religious vocation. Board of Governors Medical School Candidates must be admitted to at least one of the N.C. private college or university in a program of study not leading to a religious vocation. Candidates must be admitted to at least one of the N.C. medical schools. Candidates must be admitted to at least one of the N.C. medical schools. Candidates must be admitted to the School of Dentistry at INC Chapel Hill. Awarded to graduating seniors attending accredited H.S. Candidates must be admitted to the School of Dentistry at INC Chapel Hill., University of N.C. at Creensboro. Oregon Need Grant Oregon Need Grant Oregon Orego | Garden State Graduate Fellowships | | | | | | |
| Board of Governors Medical School Board of Governors Medical School Board of Governors Dental School Board of Governors Dental School Board of Governors Dental School Brooks Foundation Foundation Foundation Foundation Foundation School Brooks Foundation School Brooks Foundation | | postsecondary institution in a program of study not | | | | | |
| Board of Governors Medical School Board of Governors Dental School Board of Governors Dental School Board of Governors Dental School Brooks Foundation Foundation School Brooks Foundation Foundation School Brooks Foundation | | Enrolled full-time as an undergraduate student in a N.C. private college or university in a program of | | | | | |
| Brooks Foundation School Awarded to craduating seniors attending accredited H.S. on basis of academic standing, character and leadership. Scholarship may be applied for undergraduate study at N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Greenshort N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greenshort N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greenshort N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greenshort N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greenshort N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greenshort N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greenshort N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greenshore | | Candidates must be admitted to at least one of the | | | | | |
| on basis of academic standing, character and leader- ship. Scholarship may be applied for undergraduate study at N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greensbord Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greensbord Accepted for admission for undergraduate study at N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greensbord Accepted for admission for undergraduate study at N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Greensbord Instructional Grants Must be a full-time student; must make appropriate progress toward bachelors degree, associate degree or hospital school or nursing diploma each term. Undergraduate students, limited to 12 terms or 8 semsters, cannot be used in program leading to degree in theology, divinity, or religious education. Pennsylvania Higher Education Grants South Dakota State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization Grants Financial aids officer determination of need is utilized in the determination of award Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or student Assistance Awards Affidavit of Independence for emacipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or uni- versity, not an slien, only 10% to out-of-state students undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment at an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs. | | at UNC Chapel Hill. | | | | | |
| Students must be from Alamance County and been accepted for admission for undergraduate study at N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel Hill, University of N.C. at Chapel Program Hill, University of N.C. at Chapel Alexander For Program Hill, University of N.C. at Chapel Alexander Hill, University of N.C. at Chapel Hi | | on basis of academic standing, character and leader- ship. Scholarship may be applied for undergraduate study at N.C. State University, University of N.C. at | | | | | |
| Instructional Grants Must be a full-time student; must make appropriate progress toward bachelors degree, associate degree or hospital school or nursing diploma each term. Oregon Need Grant) Cash Award) Pennsylvania Higher Education Grants South Dakota State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization Grants Financial aids officer determination of need is utilized in the determination of award Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or students receiving athletic scholarships. Pennessee Student Assistance Awards Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Public Education Grants Program At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students versity, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students versity, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students (2 or 4 year, degree granting) Semoster of year degree granting) Semoster of year degree granting or theological education on tir religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Furl-time in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment at a program other than one in religious training or theological education; or previous bachelor's degree Red Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | | Students must be from Alamance County and been accepted for admission for undergraduate study at N.C. State University, University of N.C. at Chapel | | | | | |
| Need Grant) Need Grant) Cash Award) Pennsylvanta Higher Education Grants State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equalization Grants T | Instructional Grants | progress toward bachelors degree, associate degree | | | | | |
| Cash Award) Semesters, cannot be used in program leading to degree in theology, divinity, or religious education. Pennsylvania Higher Education Grants 1. Full-time 2. Undergraduate 3. Program of 2 yrs. (minimum) 4. Academic program 5. Satisfactory character South Dakota State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization Grants Financial aids officer determination of need is utilized in the determination of award Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or student serectiving athletic scholarships. Pennessee Student Assistance Awards Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Pexas Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students Usermont Incentive Grant Program Figh school diploma or equivalency certificate, full-time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) Public Educationship College Scholarship Assistance Program 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Austonia program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | • | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania Higher Education Grants 1. Full-time 2. Undergraduate 3. Program of 2 yrs. (minimum) 4. Academic program 5. Satisfactory character South Dakota State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization Grants Ennessee Student Assistance Awards Tuition Equalization Grants Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Exas Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarships, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students versity, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students (2 or 4 year, degree granting) College Scholarship Assistance Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program All Omicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. Tuition Assistance Grant Program Assistance Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) |) | semesters, cannot be used in program leading to degree | | | | | |
| 2. Undergraduate 3. Program of 2 yrs. (minimum) 4. Academic program 5. Satisfactory character State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization Grants Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or students receiving athletic scholarships. Tennessee Student Assistance Awards Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Texas Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) Assistance Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | Pennsylvania | in theology, divinity, or religious education. | | | | | |
| State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization Grants Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or students receiving athletic scholarships. Pennessee Student Assistance Awards Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Texas Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Public Education Grants Financial aids officer determination of award Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology at the students with the students of the stud | | 2. Undergraduate 3. Program of 2 yrs. (minimum) 4. Academic program | | | | | |
| Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or students receiving athletic scholarships. Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Texas Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Public Education Grants Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students versity, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students. Wermont Incentive Grant Program High school diploma or equivalency certificate, full-time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) Wirginia College Scholarship Assistance Program 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment at an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. Tuition Assistance Grant Program 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | | Financial aids officer determination of need is utilized in the determination of award | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards Student Assistance Awards Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign FAF or FFS) Texas Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Public Education Grants Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students Wermont Incentive Grant Program High school diploma or equivalency certificate, full-time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) Virginia College Scholarship Assistance Program 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | | Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants At least half-time enrollment, no athletic scholarship, not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to pay Texas resident fees Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students Vermont Incentive Grant Program High school diploma or equivalency certificate, full-time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) Virginia College Scholarship Assistance Program 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. Tuition Assistance Grant Program 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Vashington Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | Tennessee Student Assistance Awards | Affidavit of Independence for emancipated students under 27 years of age (whose parents do not sign | | | | | |
| Public Education Grants Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or university, not an alien, only 10% to out-of-state students Incentive Grant Program High school diploma or equivalency certificate, full-time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) Irginia College Scholarship Assistance Program 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. Tuition Assistance Grant Program 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | Texas Tuition Equalization Grants | not enrolled in theological degree plan, eligible to | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program High school diploma or equivalency certificate, full- time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College and Veterinary College) Irginia College Scholarship Assistance Program 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. Tuition Assistance Grant Program 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | Public Education Grants | Enrolled at least half-time in Texas college or uni- | | | | | |
| College Scholarship Assistance Program 1. VA domicilary residence for 12 consecutive months. 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. Tuition Assistance Grant Program 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Vashington Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | | High school diploma or equivalency certificate, full- time, undergraduate (except for UVM Medical College | | | | | |
| Assistance Program 2. Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) 3. Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) 4. Full-time status. Tuition Assistance Grant Program 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment at a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Vashington Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | Virginia | Jeerthary Correge) | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant Program 1. Virginia domiciliary residence 2. Full-time undergraduate enrollment 3. Enrollment at a private college or university in VA 4. Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous bachelor's degree Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | | Enrollment at an eligible in-state institution. (2 or 4 year, degree granting) Enrollment in an eligible program (generally, one not in religious training or theological education) | | | | | |
| Need Grant Program Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) umerican Somoa | | Virginia domiciliary residence Full-time undergraduate enrollment Enrollment at a private college or university in VA Enrollment in a program other than one in religious training or theological education; no previous | | | | | |
| | Need Grant Program | Must be undergraduate; enrolled full-time (12 hrs.) | | | | | |
| | | School recommendations, personal references | | | | | |

| State/Program | U.S. Citizenship | | | | State Residency | | | |
|---|--|-------------|----------|--|-----------------|-------------|--|--------------|
| beate/110gram | Requirements U.S. Permanent * | | | | Requirements ** | | | |
| | Citizens | fi . | Refugees | Other | 18mo. | 12mo. | 6mo. | 0ther |
| Alabama | | | | | | | | - |
| Student Assistance Program | · X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Arizona | | | | | 1 | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | X | | 1 | | | X | | Х |
| Arkansas | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program | X | X | | | | | Х | |
| California | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant A | X | X | | | , | X | L | |
| Cal Grant B | X | X | | | | У. | | |
| Cal Grant C | X | X | | | | X | | |
| Bilingual Teacher | | | | | | | | |
| Development Grant | X | X | | | | X | | |
| Cal State Graduate | | | | | | | _ | |
| Fellowship | X | X | | | | X | | |
| Supervised Clinical | | | | | | | | |
| Training Program | X | | | | | | | |
| Law Enforcement Personnel | | | | | | | | |
| Dependents Scholarship | | 1 | | | | | | |
| Program | X | X | | X | | X | | |
| Colorado | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | X | X | X | | 1 | X | | |
| Student Grants | X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Graduate Grants | X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Connecticut | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship | | | 1 | | : | | | } |
| Programs - Undergraduate | X | X | | | | X | | |
| State Supplemental/Work | | Ì | | | | | | |
| Study Grants | X | X | <u> </u> | | <u> </u> | X | | |
| State Scholarship Graduate | | | | | | İ | ļ | |
| Award Program | X | X | | | | X | | <u> </u> |
| Contracted Student | | | | | | | | |
| (Ind. Colleges) | X | X | X | ļ | 1 | | <u> </u> | X |
| Delaware | İ | | | ļ | : | | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | | X | | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | X | : | |
| Dist. of Columbia | | | | 1 | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | X | | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | : | X |
| Florida | 1 | | ŀ | | | | • | |
| Student Assistance Grants | <u> </u> | X | _ | <u> </u> | | | <u> </u> | X |
| Georgia | | | | | İ | | ī. 1 | |
| Student Incentive Grant | | | | | | | | |
| Program | X | X | | | | X | | ļ |
| Hawaii | 1 | | | | İ. | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | X | X | X | ļ | | X | | ļ |
| Idaho | 37 | 77 | | , | | | | } |
| Student Incentive Grants | X | X | | | • | X | | |
| Illinois | 77 | 37 | 1 | İ | i | | Í | |
| Monetary Award Program | X | X | X | į | | if in- | | X |
| Indiana | | | - | - | , | dep. | ļ | |
| | X | v | | : | | | v | |
| State Scholarships Educational Grants | X | X | | | · | | X | X |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | X | | | + | | | X X | X |
| Iowa | <u> </u> | X | | · | | | | 1 A |
| | • 🔻 • | • | v | | | v | | v |
| Scholarship Program | X | X | X | | | X X | | X |
| Tuition Grant Program Voc/Tech Tuition Grants | X | | X | | | | - | |
| voc/rech fullion Grants | Λ | X | Α | | | X | | <u>X</u> |

| State/Program | | U.S. Citiz Requirem | State Residency Requirements | | | | | |
|------------------------------|-----------------|------------------------|--|--|--------------|----------------|---------------|--|
| | U.S. | Permanent | | * | | | | ** |
| | Citizens | Residen's | Refugees | Other | 18mo. | 12mo. | 6mo. | Other |
| Kansas | <u> </u> | | | | | 1 | | |
| State Scholarships | X | | | | , | X | - | |
| Tuition Grants | X | | | | <u> </u> | X | | |
| Kentucky | | | 1 | | | | | |
| <u> </u> | X | х | | X | | ŀ | | X |
| Grant Program Louisiana | <u> </u> | | | 1 | | | | |
| Incentive Grant | Х | | | | | X | | |
| | Δ | | | | | | | |
| Maine | X | x | | | | X | } | |
| Incentive Grants | ^ | <u>^</u> | | <u> </u> | | ^ | | |
| Maryland | | 17 | v | | | x | | |
| General State Scholarships | X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Senatorial Scholarships | X | X | X | ļ | | | | |
| Proprietary School Grants | X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Massachusetts | ľ | | | | | | | İ |
| General Scholarships | X | X | | ļ | ļ | X | | |
| Consortium Scholarships | | | | | <u> </u> | X | | |
| Michigan | | | İ | | 1. | | j | |
| Competitive Scholarships | X | X | X | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | X | ļ | |
| Tuition Grants | X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Minnesota | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | X | X | X | | İ | X | 1 | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Mississippi | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | x | X | | | | X | İ | |
| Missouri | | | <u> </u> | | | | | |
| Student Grants | X | x | | | : | X | | X |
| Montana | | | | | · i - · · | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | x | | X | | X | | 1 |
| Nebraska | <u> </u> | | | 1 21 | | + | | |
| | X | x | X | X | | | İ | X |
| Incentive Grants | | ^ | A | + | | | | 1 |
| Nevada | v | 37 | | i | | | | X |
| Student Incentive Grants | X | X | | | | 1 | † | - A |
| New Hampshire | | | | | | v | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | | | | X | | |
| New Jersey | | | - | ! | | 37 | 1 | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | X | X | | | | X | + | |
| Garden State Scholarships | X | <u> </u> | · | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | X | + | + |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | n X | X | X | | | X | | |
| Basic Scholarships, | | | * | 1 | | | i : | |
| Incentive Grants, | | | | 1 | | ļ | | |
| Public Tuition Aid Grants, | | | | 1 | | | į | i |
| "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | x | | | | · | X | i | <u></u> |
| Garden State Graduate | | | | | | | ļ | |
| Fellowships | X | X | 1 | | | X | · | · |
| New Mexico | | | | | -1 | i | | |
| Incentive Grants | x | Х | 1 | | | X | | • |
| New York | | | | | ; | | - | |
| Tuition Assistance Program | X | X | X | | * | X | • | |
| Regents Scholarship Program | | <u> </u> | | : | -:- | X | | ! |
| North Carolina | ^^ | | · · · · · · · · | | | | ; | |
| Student Incentive Grant | X | | i | | | X | | : |
| | <u> </u> | | | | | + | -: | 1 |
| Legislative Tuition | | 1 | | | | | | , |
| Grant | - | + | | -: | | + | + | |
| Board of Governors Medical | V | | , | | | X | i i | 1 |
| School School | X | | | | | | ! | |

١

| Grand Branch | | U.S. Citiz | - | State Residency | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|------------------|------------------------|-------------|-----------------|---------------------------------------|---------------|---------|-------------|--|
| State/Program | Requirements | | | | Requirements | | | | |
| | U.S. Citizens | Permanent Residents | Refugees | * Other | 18mo. | 12mo. | 6mo. | ** Other | |
| North Carolina (cont'd) | OTCIZCIIS | RESIDENCE | Rerugees | TOUREL | TOMO. | 12110. | ощо. | Orner | |
| Board of Governors Dental | | | | | 1 | | | | |
| School | X | | | | l | l x | | | |
| Brooks Foundation School | X | | | | | X | | | |
| Turrentine Foundation | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | |
| School | X | | |] | | X | | | |
| North Dakota | | | <u> </u> | T | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | X | Х | x | | | 1 | İ | x | |
| Student Financial Asst. | X | X | X | · · · · · · | | - | | X | |
| Ohio | | | | | | T | | | |
| Instructional Grants | X | | X | X | <u> </u> | · X | | | |
| Oregon | | | | | | <u> </u> | | | |
| Need Grant | X | X | X | | 1 | X | | X | |
| Cash Award | X | X | X | | | X | , | X | |
| Pennsylvania | 1 | | | | | ļ | 1 | | |
| Higher Education Grants | X | X | | | | X | | | |
| Rhode Island | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship and | 1 | | | | | | | | |
| Grant Program | | X | х | | | İ | Х | | |
| South Carolina | | | | † | | <u> </u> | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | X | X | | | | X | | | |
| South Dakota | | | | | | · · · · · · | | | |
| Health Professions | | | | j | | l | | | |
| Loan Program | X | Х | | | ļ | X | | | |
| State Indian Scholarship | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equilization | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | |
| Grants | Х | Х | | | | X | | | |
| Tennessee | | | | | | 1 | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards | X | Х | | X | | | | X | |
| Texas | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | X | X | 1 | | | X | | | |
| Public Education Grants | X | X | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | X | | X | |
| Utah | | | | | | ļ · · · · · · | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | X | X | | · | X | | | |
| Vermont | | | | | | 1 | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | X | X | | | į | X | | | |
| Virginia | | | | | | | | | |
| College Scholarship | | | | | İ | | | | |
| Assistance Program | X | X | X | | | X | | | |
| Tuition Assistance | | | | | | | | | |
| Grant Program | X | X | X | | | X | | | |
| Washington | | | | | | | | | |
| Need Grant Program | X | X | X | | | X | | | |
| West Virginia | | | | | <u> </u> | | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | X | | | | 1 | X | | | |
| Wisconsin | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | X | X | | İ | : | X | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | X | X | | | • | X | | | |
| Indian Student Assistance | X | X | | | | X | | | |
| Wyoming | <u> </u> | | | | | 1 | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | | | I. | | | | X | |
| American Samoa | ; | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | X | X | | | | į | Î | X | |
| | | | | · - | · · · · | | | | |

| California | |
|---------------------------|--|
| Law Enforcement Personnel | |
| Dependents Scholarship | |
| Program | - Yes, by virtue of built-in eligibility due to dependency rule |
| Kentucky | |
| Grant Program | - Same as federal program |
| Montana | |
| Incentive Grants | - Montanans |
| Nebraska | |
| Incentive Grants | - U.S. National |
| Ohio | |
| Instructional Grants | - Hold immigration visa |
| [ennessee | |
| Student Assistance Awards | - Priority given to U.S. citizen |
| State/Program | **Other State Residency Requirements |
| Arizona | |
| Incentive Grant Program | - Must prove 12 month domicile |
| Connecticut | |
| Contracted Student | |
| (Ind. Colleges) | - Single at time of acceptance, married at time of registration |
| District of Columbia | |
| Incentive Grants | - 15 months |
| florida | |
| Student Assistance Grants | - 2 years |
| [llinois | |
| Monetary Award Program | - Immediate if dependent |
| Indiana | |
| All Programs | - 6 months prior to academic year |
| Iowa | |
| All Programs | - 12 months as non-student (8 hours or less per term) |
| Kentucky | |
| Grant Program | - Same as Council on Higher Education |
| dissouri | |
| Student Grants | - Exception can be made for a dependent student who has lost eligibility in home state due to move |
| Vebraska | original folia batta da co move |
| Incentive Grants | - This varies among institutions |
| Vevada | |
| Student Incentive Grants | - Use school criteria |
| North Dakota | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | - Same as residence for tuition purposes |
| Student Financial Asst. | - Eligible if resident for tuition purposes |
|)regon | |
| Need Grant | - Dependent students' parents must reside in state |
| Cash Award | - Dependent students' parents must reside in state |
| l'ennessee | |
| Student Assistance Awards | - Parents of dependent applicant must be residents. Emancipated |
| | students must provide satisfactory evidence that the reason for |
| | coming to state was other than attending school. |
| l'exas | |
| Tuition Equalization | |
| Grants | - Qualify through statutory exceptions |
| lyoming | , |
| Incentive Grants | - As defined by school |
| merican Samoa | |
| Scholarship Program | - 24 months |

| Alabama Student Assistance Program X Alaska Scholarships Arizona Incentive Grant Program X Arkansas State Scholarship Program X California Cal Grant A X Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C X Bilingual Teacher Development Grant X Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants T Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X | X X X X X X X X X X X X X | X X X X X X X X X X | X X X X X | X | X |
|--|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------|---------------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------|-------------|---|
| Student Assistance Program X Alaska Scholarships Arizona Incentive Grant Program X Arkansas State Scholarship Program X California Cal Grant A X Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C X Bilingual Teacher Development Grant X Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | x x x x x x x x | X X X X X X X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X | X X X X X X X X X X X X | x x x x x x | X X X X | | X |
| Alaska Scholarships Arizona Incentive Grant Program X Arkansas State Scholarship Program X California Cal Grant A Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C X Bilingual Teacher Development Grant Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X Sistict of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Caliniois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | x x x x x x x x | X X X X X X X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X | X X X X X X X X X X X X | x x x x x x | X X X X | | X |
| Scholarships Arizona Incentive Grant Program Arkansas State Scholarship Program X California Cal Grant A Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C Bilingual Teacher Development Grant Grant Grant C Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Contacted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Colleges PA551 Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Student Student Incentive Grant Program X Student Incentive Grant Program X Student Incentive Grants X Collinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X X X | x | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x | X X X X | | x |
| Arizona Incentive Grant Program Arkansas State Scholarship Program California Cal Grant A Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C Silingual Teacher Development Grant X Cal State Graduate Fellowship Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Frogram X Georgia Student Frogram X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Incentary Award Program X Indiana | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X X X | x | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x | X X X X | | X |
| Incentive Grant Program X Arkansas State Scholarship Program X California Cal Grant A X Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C X Bilingual Teacher Development Grant X Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants Program X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Glaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X X X | x | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x | X X X X | | X |
| Arkansas State Scholarship Program X California Cal Grant A X Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C X Bilingual Teacher Development Grant X Cal State Craduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X Sistrict of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Itlinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X X X | x | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x | X X X X | | X |
| State Scholarship Program X California Cal Grant A X Cal Grant B X Cal Grant C X Bilingual Teacher Development Grant C X Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants Program Student Student Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program Student Student Ferants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program Student Incentive Grant Program Student Incentive Grants X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x | X X X | | x |
| California | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | x x x x x | X X X | | X |
| Cal Grant A | X X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X X X X X X X | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X | X X X | | X |
| Cal Grant B | X X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X X X X X X X | X | x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x | X X X X | X X X | | X |
| Cal Grant C Bilingual Teacher Development Grant Cant Grant X Cal State Graduate Fellowship Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Endiana | X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X X X X X X X | | X X X X X X X X X | X X X | X X X | X | x |
| Bilingual Teacher Development Grant X Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X X X X X | X X X X X X | X X X X X | | X X X X X X X X | x x x | X X X | X | x |
| Grant X Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glaho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X | X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X X X X X | X | X X X X X X X X | X | X X X | | X |
| Cal State Graduate Fellowship X Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X X X X X X | X X X X X X | X X X X X | X | X X X X X X X X | X | X X X | | X |
| Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X dawaii Student Incentive Grants X Claho | X X X X | X X X X | X X X X | X | X X X X X | X | X X X | | X |
| Program Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent X Colorado Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grants X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idawaii Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X X X | X X X | X X X | X | X X X X X | | X X X | | X |
| Law Enforcement Personnel Dependent Colorado Student Incentive Grants Student Grants Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X | X X X | X X X | X X X | X | X X X X X | | X X X | | X |
| Dependent | X X X | X X X | X X X | X | X X X | | X X X | | |
| Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Iawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glaho | X X X | X X X | X X X | X | X X X | | X X X | | |
| Student Incentive Grants X Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Iswaii Student Incentive Grants X Grawaii Student Incentive Grants X Grawaii Student Incentive Grants X Grawaii Student Incentive Grants X | XXX | XXX | X | X | X X X | X | X X X | | |
| Student Grants X Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glawaii Monetary Award Program X Gladiana | XXX | XXX | X | X | X X X | X | X X X | | |
| Graduate Grants X Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Iswaii Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Edaho Student Incentive Grants X Endiana | X | X | X | X | х х х | X | X X | | |
| Connecticut State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program Alawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho | | | | X | X | X | X | | |
| State Scholarship Program Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X lawaii Student Incentive Grants X Cdaho Student Incentive Grants | X | X | | X | X | X | X | | |
| Undergraduate State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgía Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Cdaho Student Incentive Grants X | x | X | | х | X | X | X | | |
| State Supplemental Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glaho Student Incentive Grants | X | X | | х | X | X | X | | |
| Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X | Х | X | | X | | Х | X | | |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Plorida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Lawaii Student Incentive Grants X Caho Student Incentive Grants X Caho Student Incentive Grants X Caho Student Incentive Grants X Columbia Student Incentive Grants X Columbia Monetary Award Program X Columbia Studiana | x | X | | x | | X | | | |
| Colleges) PA551 Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo Student Incentive Grants X Glabo | X | х | | х | | X | | | |
| Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Idawaii Student Incentive Grants X Claho Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | Х | x | | х | | X | | | |
| Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X | х | | х | | X | | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships X District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X | х | | Х | | X | | | |
| District of Columbia Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program Adwaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Itlinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | Х | х | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Idilinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X | x | | | | | | | • |
| Florida Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | | Α. | Х | Х | | | x | | |
| Student Assistance Grants X Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Itlinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | | | | ^ | | | <u>^</u> _ | | |
| Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | х | x | Х | | | x | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant Program X Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | | ^ | ^ | | | х | | | |
| Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | | | | | | | | | |
| Hawaii Student Incentive Grants X Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | X | X | х | | | | х | | |
| Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | | | | | | | ^ | | |
| Idaho Student Incentive Grants X Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | х | x | х | | | | v | | |
| Illinois Monetary Award Program X Indiana | | | <u>~</u> | | · | | X | | |
| Illinois Monetary Award Program X ndiana | x | x | Х | | | | ** | | |
| Monetary Award Program X Indiana | · | | A | | | | X | | |
| ndiana | х | v | 7. | | | | | | |
| | ^ | X | X | X | | X | Х | | |
| Ctoto Coholomohina V | 17 | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarships X Educational Grants X | X | X | X | | X | | | X | |
| | X | X | X | | Х | | | X | |
| | X | X | X | | X | | | Х | |
| owa | | - | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program X | X | | X | | X | X | | х | |
| Tuition Grant Program X | X | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | X | | Х | Х | | X | |
| Voc/Tech. Tuition Grant X | X | | X | | X | Х | | X | |
| ansas | | | | | | | | | |
| State of Kansas Scholarships X | X | Х | X | | X | Х | | | |
| Tuition Grants X | Х | Х | Х | | X | <u>x</u> | | | |
| entucky | | | | | | · | | | |
| Grant Program X | х | | | | | x | | | |
| ouisiana | | | | | | <u>^</u> | | | |
| Incentive Grant X | х | X | X | | X | | | v | |
| aine | | | · | | A | | | X | |
| Incentive Grants X | x | | х | | | v | | 17 | |
| aryland | | | | | | X | | Х | |
| General State Scholarship X | | ** | v | | | ** | | | |
| Senatorial Grants X | | | | | | | | | |
| Proprietary School Grants X | <u>x</u> x | <u>х</u> | X x | | | <u> </u> | | | |

Budgets are Determined By:

| • | Tuition | Room & | Transpor- | | Personal | | State | | | Budgets |
|-------------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|---|---------------------------------------|---------|-------------|-------------|
| State | Fees | Board | tation | Books | Expenses | Other | Agency | Schools | Other | Not Used |
| Massachusetts | | | | | | | | - | | |
| General Scholarships | | | | | | | | | | |
| Consortium Scholarships | Х | X | X | X | X | | | X | | |
| fichigan | | | | | | | | | | |
| Competitive Scholarships | Х | X | Х | X | | Х | X | | | |
| Tuition Grants | Х | X | X | X | | X | X | | | |
| linnesota | | | | | | | | | • | |
| Scholarship Program | X | X | | | | X | X | | | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | Х | X | | | | X | X | | | |
| lississippi | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | X | X | x | Х | | | | Х | | |
| lissouri | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | х | х | X | х | | | | ĸ | | |
| font ana | | | ······ | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | |
| Incentive Grants | х | x | x | х | | | | х | | |
| Vebraska | | | | <u>^</u> | | | | ^ | · | |
| Incentive Grants | х | x | х | X | | x | | x | | |
| levada | A | | <u>^</u> | <u>~</u> | | | | ^ | | |
| | ** | | | ** | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | X | X | X | X | | | | X | | |
| ew Hampshire | x | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | X | X | X | | | Х | | | |
| lew Jersey | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | | | | | | | | | | |
| Garden State Scholarships | X | X | Х | X | Х | | | Х | | Х |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | | | | | | X | | X | | |
| (Below Being Phased Out) | | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic Scholarship Program | | | | | | | | | | |
| Public Tuition Aid Program | x | | | | | | | X | | |
| Incentive Grants | | | | | | | | Λ | | |
| | 27/4 | | | | | | | | | |
| Garden State Graduate | N/A | | | | | | N/A | | | |
| Fellowship | | | | | | | | | | |
| lew Mexico | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | Х | X | X | | | | X | | |
| lew York | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Program | | | | | | | | Х | | Х |
| Regents Scholarship Program | | | | | | | ···· | | | |
| lorth Carolina | | | | | | • | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant | х | x | x | x | | | x | | | |
| Legis. Tuition Grant | | | ** | | | N/A | A | | N/A | |
| Board of Governors Medical | X | x | х | x | | | 77 | | N/A | |
| School | Λ. | ^ | Λ. | Λ. | | Х | х | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Board of Governors Dental | | | | | | | | | | |
| School | Х | X | Х | х | | Х . | X | | | |
| Brooks Foundation School | | | | | | N/A | | | N/A | |
| Turrentine Foundation School | Х | X | X | х | | X | X | • | *1/ 23 | |
| orth Dakota | A | | | | | | ^ | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | х | х | v | v | | | ** | | | |
| | | X | X | X | | | X | | | |
| Student Financial Assistance | | A | X | X | Х | | | | X | |
| hio | | | | | | | | | | |
| Instructional Grants | | | | | | X | | | | X |
| klahoma | | | | _ | | | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | | | | | | | | | | |
| regon | | | | | | | | • | | |
| Need Grant | х | x | X | х | | X | х | | | |
| Cash Awards | <u>x</u> | <u> </u> | <u>x</u> | x | | X | | | | |
| ennsylvania | · | | | | | | | | | |
| Higher Education Grants | x | X | | Х | | | v | | | |
| hode Island | | | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | X | | | |
| | v | v | v | v | | v | | | ** | |
| Scholarship Program and | Х | Х | x | Х | | X | | | X | |
| Grant Program | | | | | | | | | | |
| outh Carolina | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | X | X | | | | | x | | | |
| outh Dakota | | | | | | | | | · | |
| Incentive Grants | | | | | | | x | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | х | Х | X | Х | | | · | | x | |
| Health Profession Loans Progr | | | | | | | | | ····- | |
| ennessee | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards | x | х | х | v | v | | | | v | |
| ordent wasterance wards | Λ. | • | Α. | X | X | | | | Х | |

8

| | Tuition | Room & | Transpor- | | Personal | | State | | | Budgets |
|-------------------------------|---------|--------|-----------|-------|----------|-------------|--------|---------|-------|----------|
| State | Fees | Board | tation | Books | Expenses | Other | Agency | Schools | Other | Not Used |
| Texas | | | | | | | | ·· | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Х | X | X | X | X | | | X | X | |
| Utah | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | X | X | X | | | | Х | | |
| Vermont | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | X | X | | | | | X | | | |
| Virginia | | | | | | | | | | |
| College Scholarship | | | | | | | | | | |
| Assistance Program | X | X | Х | Х | X | | | х | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | · | | | | | | | | |
| Program (TAG) | | | | | | | | | | |
| Washington | | | | | | | | | | |
| Need Grant Program | | Х | X | X | X | | X | X | | |
| West Virginia | | | | | | | | | | |
| Higher Education Grant Progra | am X | X | X | Х | | | | | Х | |
| Wisconsin | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | Х | Х | X | х | x | | X | | | |
| Higher Education Grant Progra | am X | X | X | X | Х | | Х | | | |
| Indian Student Assistance | X | Х | X | Х | Х | | X | | | |
| Wyoming | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | · - | | | | | | | Х | | |
| American Samoa | | | | · | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | X | X | X | X | | X | Х | | | |

| t | e | |
|---|---|--|
| | | |

| Alabama | - Porconal oursess set to see 1 0500 |
|----------------|--|
| California | - Personal expenses not to exceed \$500 Input from school re: tuition and room and board. |
| Colorado | |
| Connecticut | - Necessary expenses such as child care. |
| Delaware | - All educationally related costs. |
| | - Budget standard Dependent = \$2,000, Independent = \$2,000, with one dependent = \$4,100, with two dependent = \$5,100 (etc.). |
| Florida | - Uniform state budgets are used for non-instructional costs. |
| Illinois | Transportation, books, personal expenses. Only tuition and fees and room and board. |
| Indiana | Miscellaneous expenses allowed up to an amount set by Agency. State Agency distributes guidelines for schools to submit budgets for approval by State Agency. |
| Iowa | - \$500 miscellaneous and transportation. Using tuition, fees, and room and board reported by school. |
| Kansas | - Miscellaneous or unusual on individual basis. |
| Louisiana | Described as miscellaneous. LASFAA proposes standard budget to ESCES; adopted by Board. |
| Michigan | - Additional living costs. |
| Minnesota | - \$1,000 personal expense - includes books. |
| Nebraska | - This varies among institutions |
| New Jersey | - Institutional budget. |
| New York | - Tuition only. No budget. |
| North Carolina | - Medical student equipment. Instrument costs. Supplies. |
| North Dakota | - Same budget use for all applicants, determined by Agency. |
| Ohio | Awards based on family income number of dependent children and type of school attending - public or private. No need analysis performed. Tables of grants established by law. |
| Oregon | - Personal expense, child care. |
| Pennsylvania | - Books and supplie allowance of \$350. |
| Rhode Island | - Actual tuition plus fixed allowance for cost as determined by Agency. |
| South Dakota | - Other BEOG - eligible cost of attendance. |
| Tennessee | - School supplies, tuition and fees, room and board information. TSAC add standard figures for books, personal expenses, travel and (in the case of commuting student) transportation and home maintenance |
| Texas | - Reviewed/approved by Agency. |
| Washington | - Personal and incidental. |
| Vest Virginia | Request data from individual schools. However, Agency standardizes (establishes parameters) for certain components of budget. |
| American Samoa | - Health insurance. |
| | |

APPROACH TO FUNDING

(Includes some professional and graduate programs not included in other tables)

| State | Student Eligibility Determined by Law and All Eligible Students Receive Aid | Fixed Appropriation Is Made and the Amount of the Appropriation Determines the Number Eligible | Other |
|--|---|--|---|
| Alabama | | | |
| Student Assistance Program | | X | |
| Arizona Incentive Grant Program | | x | For the institution provided match, the institution determines which students with need get grants. |
| Arkansas State Scholarship Program | | | Presently, all students are eligible until our first cutoff date. Prorata occurs if the number of recipients exceeds dollars appropriated. |
| California | | | |
| Cal Grant A | | | Number of new grants legislatively specified. All renewal applicants with need qualify. |
| Cal Grant B | | X | |
| Cal Grant C | | | Number of new grants determined by the state legislature. |
| Bilingual Teacher | | | |
| Development Grant Cal State Graduate | | <u>X</u> | |
| Fellowship | | | Student eligibility defined by law. Highest ranking eligible students are awarded depending on funds. |
| Supervised Clinical Training Program Law Enforcement Personnel | | <u>x</u> | |
| Dependents Scholarship Program | | x | Up to \$15,000 per year. |
| | | | , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , |
| Colorado Student Incentive Grants | | | Legislature determines appropriations. Insti- tutions determine number to be aided. |
| Student Grants | | | Same as above. |
| Graduate Grants | | | Same as above. |
| Connecticut State Scholarship | | | |
| Programs Undergraduate State Supplemental Work-Study Grants | · - · | | |
| State Scholarship Graduate | | X | |
| Award Program | | X | |
| Contracted Stud. | | | |
| (Ind. Colleges) | | | Student eligibility defined by law. Not all eligible students receive aid. |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | | Х | |
| District of Columbia | | <u> </u> | |
| Incentive Grants | | | Awards are guaranteed to continuations and provided to eligible initial students according to application date as far as funds are available. |

are available.

-41-APPROACH TO FUNDING

| State Florida | Student Eligibility Determined by Law and All Eligible Students Receive Aid | Fixed Appropriation Is Made and the Amount of the Appropriation Determines the Number Eligible | Other |
|---|---|--|---|
| Student Assistance Grants Georgia | | | Student eligibility defined by law and the amount of the appropriation determines the number of awards (based on relative need) that can be made. |
| Student Incentive Grant Program | | х | |
| Hawaii Student Incentive Grants | | | Student eligibility defined by state program rules and regulations. All eligible students receive aid up to fund availability. |
| IdahoStudent Incentive Grants | | | |
| Illinois | | X | |
| Monetary Award Program | | X | |
| Indiana State Scholarships | | | Law defines some requirements but also state's commission will |
| D-Location 1 | | | set rules governing eligibility (i.e., application deadline). |
| Educational Grants Freedom of Choice Grants | | | Same as above. |
| Iowa | | | Same as above. |
| Scholarship Program | | XX | |
| Tuition Grant Program Vo-Tech Tuition Grants | | X | |
| Kansas | | X | |
| State Scholarships | | x | |
| Tuition Grants | | Х | In theory, all eligible students will receive awards. Only one year was program not funded at projected demand. |
| Kentucky | - | | at projected demand. |
| Grant Program Louisiana | · | X | |
| Incentive Grant | | X | - |
| Maine | | | |
| Incentive Grants Maryland | | X | |
| General State Scholarships | | | Take students in sequence provided in the law and meet one-third of need after BEOG impact. Then help as many as funds allow. |
| Senatorial Scholarships | | | Students selected from application roster. Most get \$300 to \$600 |
| Proprietary School Grants | | | awards. Take those with greatest need and meet percent of need. Also distribute between categories of schools. |

-42-APPROACH TO FUNDING

| | Student Eligibility Determined by Law and All Eligible Students | Fixed Appropriation Is Made and the Amount of the Appropriation Determines the | |
|---|---|--|---|
| State | Receive Aid | Number Eligible | Other |
| Massachusetts | | | |
| General Scholarships Consortium Scholarships | | X | N-h 1/11 |
| Michigan | | | Not applicable. |
| Competitive Scholarships | | Χ . | |
| Tuition Grants | | | Eligibility defined by law. Awards issued in descending need order until funds exhausted. |
| Minnesota Scholarship Program | | | Student eligibility defined by law. Students are awarded until funds run out. In theory, a student could be eligible but not receive funds. |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | | | Same as above. |
| Mississippi Student Grants | | X | School determines distribution. |
| Missouri | | | |
| Student Grants Montana | | X | |
| Incentive Grants | | Х | |
| Nebraska | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | | This is a decentralized program that operates with alternative matching by the institutions. |
| Nevada Student Incentive Grants | | | A14 0 m a 4 a m a 4 a b á a a |
| New Hampshire | | | Alternate matching. |
| Incentive Grants | | X | |
| New Jersey | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants Garden State Scholarships | | X | |
| Education Opportunity | | | |
| Fund Program | | Х | |
| Basic Scholarships, | | | |
| Incentive Grants, Public Tuition and Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | | | |
| Garden State Graduate | | | |
| Fellowship | | X | |
| New Mexico Incentive Grants | | | Fixed appropriation is made and money disbursed to the most needy of the number eligible. |
| New York Tuition Assistance Program | х | | |
| Regents Scholarship Program | X | | |
| North Carolina | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant Legislative Tuition Grant | Eligible | X | Difference in previous |
| acgistative futition of ant | students receive aid within limits of a specific appropriation. | | two columns is a pro- rata reduction feature. |
| Board of Gov. Medical Scholarship | | | A set number of scholars chosen each year for four year support (17). |

APPROACH TO FUNDING

Student Eligibility Determined by Law and All Eligible

Fixed
Appropriation
Is Made and the
Amount of the
Appropriation
Determines the

| State | by Law and All Eligible Students Receive Aid | Amount of the Appropriation Determines the | 0.1 |
|--|---|--|--|
| Board of Gov. Dental | Receive Aid | Number Eligible | Other |
| Scholarship | | | A set number (5) of BGDS scholars chosen each year for four years. |
| Brooks Foundation | | | |
| Scholarship Turrentine Foundation | | | Trust agreement. |
| Scholarship North Dakota | | | Student eligibility defined by trust agreement. All eligible students receive aid. |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | ** | |
| Student Financial Assistance | | X | |
| Ohio | | <u>X</u> | |
| Instructional Grants Oregon | | хх | |
| Need Grant | | Х | |
| Cash Award | | х - | |
| Pennsylvania | | | |
| Higher Education Grants | | | Fixed appropriation is made and eligibility is determined according to policy established by Board annually. |
| Rhode Island | | | |
| Scholarship and Grant Program | | v | |
| South Carolina | | X | |
| Tuition Grant Program | | Х | |
| South Dakota Health Professions Loan Program State Indian Scholarships | x | X | In continuation of board of review. |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | X | |
| Tennessee | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards Texas | | X | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | ** | |
| Public Education Grants | | X X | |
| Utah | | | |
| Incentive Grants Vermont | X | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | Х | |
| Virginia College Scholarship | | | |
| Assistance Program | | X | |
| Tuition Assistance | | | |
| Grant Program | | X | |
| Washington Need Grant Program | | v | |
| West Virginia | | X | |
| Higher Education Grant | | | |
| Program | | X | |
| Wisconsin | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | | X | |
| Higher Education Grant | | | |
| Program | | X | |
| Indian Student Assistance | | X | |
| American Samoa Scholarship Program | | | Appropriations part of DOE budget. |

| | State | Rene Yes | | First Yes | Time? | Depe Stud | cially~ ndent ents? No | Indep | endent ents? | | | Other | No Eligibility Priorities | Does state restriction funds in (gram on spinstitution Yes | ons on this pro- pecific | Restrictions |
|--|---|-------------|--------------|--|--------------|--------------|---------------------------------|--------------|-----------------|--|------------|-------------|------------------------------|---|--|---|
| Student Assistance Program X | A1-1 | | | | | : | | ! | | | | | | · | | |
| Alacka Scholarships Alacka Scholarships Alacka Alachama State Scholarship Program Alacka Arkannas State Scholarship Program Alacka Arkannas State Scholarship Program Alacka Alacka Arkannas Alacka Al | | y. | ! | x | į | | v | | l v | l | v | ļ | | | | 411 |
| Intentive Grant Program X | | | | | | + | | ! | A | · · · · · · | <u>, v</u> | † | | | | All awards \$300. |
| Arkansas | | | : | | | | | | ! | | | 1 | | | | |
| Arkanasas | | | - | | | | | | | | ! | 1 | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program | | X | | <u>. </u> | X | <u> </u> | Х | | X | ļ | . х | ļ | | · | X | Must be accredited. |
| Cal Grant A X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | ¥ | | | . v | | v | | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant B | | | | | | | | | · | - | | | <u>x</u> | | X | · |
| Gal Grant 8 | | | : | | х | | х | | X | | . X | х . | | X | | Awards may not be used for graduate |
| Bilingual Teacher Development Control State Control Student Incentive Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | Cal Grant B | | X | | Х | ! | X | ! | X | | X | | X | | <u> </u> | ,. |
| Beet Grant Law Enforcement Personnel X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | Cal Grant C | | | | | : | | | - | | - | | | X | | prohibits use at 4 year institutions with only 4 year program and grad. |
| Dependent Colorado Student Incentive Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X | ment Grant | | Х | | Х | : | Х | | х | <u> </u> | Х | X | | | х | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | | x | | х | | Х | | X | | | | x | Only WASC approved institutions. (California). |
| Student Incentive Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | Colorado | | | | · | | | | | | | | | | † | All types are eligible but they must |
| Craduate Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | Student Incentive Grants | | х | | х | | х | | х | | Х | | х | х . | | have demonstrated administrative cap- |
| Graduate Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | Student Grants | | x | | x | | х | | Х | | х | | x | x | | |
| State Stolarship Programs Undergraduate X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | | X | | | | | | | | | | <u>x</u> | х | | |
| Colleges) - PA551 X Awards to college shall not exceed of a per student basis "an amount of a in given an individual student shall be determined by the individual college and shall be consistent with the student aid program as defined by the college." Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships X X Not eligible: proprietary, non-degr granting institutions. Incentive Grants X Florida Student Assistance Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X | State Scholarship Programs Undergraduate | | х | | х | | х | | х | | х | | : | | х | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | Colleges) - PA551 | | | | . | | | | | | | х | | | | student aid program as defined by the |
| Incentive Grants | Postsecondary Scholarships | | х | | х | | х | | х | | х | | х | x | | Not eligible: proprietary, non-degree granting institutions. |
| Student Assistance Grants | Incentive Grants | х | | | | | | | | | | | | | х | |
| Student Incentive Grant | | x | | x | | | x | | x | • | ¥ | | | | | |
| Hawaii | Georgia Student Incentive Grant | | х | | х | | - | | | | | х | | | | |
| Idaho Student Incentive Grants X X Illinois | Hawaii | | | | | | | | | | | | • X | | - | |
| Student Incentive Grants X X Illinois | | | | | | | | | | | † | | | } | | |
| | Student Incentive Grants | 1 | L | | | | | | | | | : | X | <u> </u> | x | |
| Monetary Award Program X X X X X X X X X | Illinois Monetary Award Program | | х | | x | | х | | х | | x | x | | ! | х | |

| State | Ren Yes | | Fir: Yes | st Time? | Depe Stud | cially endent ents? | Indep | ncially endent ents? | Vete Yes | rans? | Other | No Eligibility Priorities | Does state restriction funds in t gram on sp institution Yes | ons on his pro- pecific | Restrictions |
|--|------------|----------------|--------------|----------|--------------|---------------------------|-------|----------------------------|-------------|--------------|--------------|---------------------------------------|---|-------------------------------|--|
| Indiana State Scholarships | | х | | x | | х | | х | | х | | х | x | | Approved Indiana institutions as stated in scholarships ACT. |
| Educational Grants | + | X | | Х | | X | | X | <u> </u> | X | | X | 1 x 1 | | Same as above. |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | | X | | Х | | Х | | Х | | Х | | X | Х | | Private approved institutions in Indiana. |
| Iowa Scholarship Program | | x | | х | | х | | х | | х | x | | x | | All non-profit schools eligible for the basic grant program are included |
| Tuition Grant Program | | X | | Х | | х | | х | ļ | х | | | х | | Private institutions only. |
| Voc/Tech Tuition Grant | | X | | Х | | Х | | х | | Х | | | x | | Area community college. |
| Kansas | † - | | | | | | | | | | + | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | <u>:</u> |
| State of Kansas Scholarships Tuition Grants | · | Ļ | | | | | | | | .L | 1 | x |] | | |
| Kentucky | | - | | | | | · | | | ļ | ļ | Х | Х | | Independent (private |
| Grant Program | | ı. | | | - | | | | | | | х | х | | SSIG funds are avail- able for students atone of 55 partici- pating institutions: KTE is limited to students who attend one of 20 private colleges. |
| Louisiana Incentive Grant | х | | | | | | | | | | | | x | | School receives funds allocations on amount used during previous year and on first year, full-time enrollment during previous year. |
| Maine Incentive Grants | | ., | | | | | | | | | † | | | | |
| Maryland | | Х | | x | | Х | | Х | | X | · | Х | | X | |
| General State Scholarships | x | | 1 | x | | x | . | x | | x | х | | | x | |
| | Х | | | Х | | Х | | х | | Х | X | | | X | |
| | х | | . | X | | Х | | Х | | X | X | | | х | As long as an approved proprietary school in need. |
| _ | х | | | х | | х | | х | | х | | X | | | Massachusetts public institution may not receive less than 10% or less than 25% of state scholarship appropriations. |
| | X | | | | | | | | | | | | X | | Institutions select recipients following guidelines adopted by the Board of Higher Education. This is a small program to provide funds for students enrolled in private sector programs not available in public sector institutions in the same consortium area within the state. Funds are allocated to institutions by BHE in proproation to number of eligible students in eligible programs. Maximum institutional allocation is \$15,000. |
| Michigan Competitive Scholarships | ĸ | | х | | | x | | x . | | х | | | х | i | ward cannot be used at proprietary |
| Tuition Grants | | Х | | X | | х | | .X | | Х | | | x | | rivate institu- ions only. |
| Minnesota | . T | | | | | | | | | | | · · | | | TOTAL ONLY: |
| | (| | | X | | X | | X | | X | X | | | X | |
| | | | | ^_ | | Α . | | X | | Х | Х | | 1 | X | |

| | Rener | wals? | Firs | t Time? | Financ Deper Stude | | Financ Indepe Stude | ndent | Vete | rans? | Other | No Eligibility Priorities | Does state restriction funds in gram on se institution | ons on this pro- pecific | |
|---|--------------|--|--|---------|--------------------------|--|---------------------------|-------|----------|--|-------|------------------------------|--|--------------------------------|---|
| State | Yes | | Yes | No | | No | Yes | | Yes | | | | Yes | No | Restrictions |
| Mississippi Student Grants | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | Must be BEOG approved. |
| Missouri | | | | | † | | 1 | | | 1 | | · | | | |
| Student Grants | Х | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | Х | ļ | Х | | Х | <u> </u> | Х | Х | | | X | |
| Montana Incentive Grants | | х | | х | | х | | х | | х | | | x | | No stated funds to private colleges. |
| Nebraska | | 1- | | | | 1 | | | | | | 1 | <u> </u> | | |
| Incentive Grants | | | | | | | | | | | Х | | Х | | Those institutions that are eligible under the federal guidelines. |
| Nevada Student Incentive Grants | ļ | x | ļ | x | ļ | х | | х | ļ | х | ļ | ļ | | Х | |
| New Hampshire Incentive Grants | х | <u> </u> | х | | | <u> </u> | ļ | | | ļ | х | | | x | |
| New Jersey Tuition Aid Grants | | х | | x | - | х | | х | | x | | x | x | | In state institutions must be approved by the Board of Higher Education. Out-of-state institutions must be licensed by their state and accrediting association. |
| Garden State Scholarships | | X | | х | | х | | x | | Х | | X | X | | In state institutions must be approved by the Board of Higher Education. ESS awards may not be used out-of-state. |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | | | | | | | | | | | | | X | | We do not fund students attending hospital schools of nursing; hospital allied health programs; proprietary/vocational/technical for profit/and outof-state institutions. |
| Incentive Grants | | | 1 . | | | | | | | | х | | | х | |
| New York Tuition Assistance Program | | х | | х | | х | | х | | х | | | х | | State law defines school program eligi- bility. |
| Regents Scholarship Program | | | | | | | | | | | | | x . | | In state institutions approved State Edu-cation Department. |
| North Carolina | " | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant Legis. Tuition Grant | Х | | | | | | - | | | | | | X | X | Only N.C. baccalau- reate level institu- tions by the Southern Association of Collegs & Schools. |
| Brooks Foundation School | N, | A | N | 'A | N/ | A | N, | A | N, | A | N/A | | Х | | Trust of the donor specified 3 participating schools. |
| Turrentine Foundation School | Х | | | | | | | | | 1 | х | | x | | Can be used only at the 3 schools speci- fied in the Trust Agreement. |

| | Reneu | wals? | First | Time? | Depe | cially ndent ents? | Indep | cially endent ents? | Veter | 2 | | No Eligibility | gram on s | ons on this pro- pecific | |
|---|-------|-------|-------|-------|------|--------------------------|-------|---------------------------|-------|-----|-------|----------------|------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| State | Yes | | Yes | No | Yes | | Yes | | | No | Other | Priorities | instituti Yes | on types? | |
| North Dakota Tuition Assistance Grant | | | | | | | | | 1-1-1 | | | Х | X | No | Restrictions Statue provides eligibility ony for 4 years nationally accredited private |
| Student Financial Assistance | | | | | | , | | | | | | X | | | colleges. Proprietary schools not eligible. |
| Ohio Instructional Grants Oregon | | х | | х | | х | | х | | х | X | Х | | | We have two tables of grants - one for institutions and one for private institutions. |
| Need Grant | | | | | | | | [| | | | v | | | |
| Cash Award | | | | | | | | | | | | X X | Х | X | Not available at proprietary institutions or institutions or institutions which are not accredited. |
| Pennsylvania Higher Education Grants Rhode Island | | | | | | | | | | | | | | х | |
| Scholarship Program and Grant Program South Carolina | х | | | х | | х | 1 | х | | х | | | | х | |
| Tuition Grant Program | | х | | X | | X | 6 | Х | | х | | х | Х | · | State appropriations is only for independent (private) college program called Tuition Grants Program/Federal SSIG \$S are divided public sector. |
| Incentive Grants | | | | 1 1 | - 1 | ľ | 1 | | | | | | | | JCCCOI. |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | | | | | | | | | | | x | X | | Only S.D. private colleges accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and Secondary schools are |
| Indian Scholarship Program | Х | | | Х | | Х | | Х | | X | Х | | | | Those approved by Board of Regents. |
| | х | | | х | | x | | х | | х | х | | х | 1 | Institutions must be: public college or univeristy, public vocational or tech- nical school, non- profit institution, private school, or hospital school of |
| tah Incentive Grants | | | | | | + | | | | | | | | | nursing. |
| | 1 | X | | х | | 1 | | i | i | - 1 | - 1 | x | I. | 1 | |

| | Rener Yes | | First Yes | Time? | Finand Deper Stude Yes | ents? | Indep | cially endent ents? | Vete Yes | rans? | Other | No Eligibility Priorities | gram on s | ons on this pro- | Restrictions |
|---|--------------|---------|----------------|----------|---------------------------------|--|----------------|---------------------------|--------------|----------|-------|------------------------------|-----------|---------------------|--|
| Vermont Incentive Grant Program | | | | | ĺ | | | | | | | x | | | |
| Virginia College Scholarship Assistar Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program (TAG) | ice | x | | x | | x | | x | | x | x | | x | | Awards are registered to two and four-year degree-granting colleges and universities in Virginia both public and private. Because this program is intended to lessen the difference between public and private institutions, funds may be used only at private colleges and universities in the state. |
| Washington Need Grant Program | | | | | | T | | | | | | х | | | |
| West Virginia | | | - | | | † | - | | | | x | X | | . x | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program Wisconsin Tuition Grant Program | | | | | | | | | | | | х | х | | Indepenent (private) colleges and universities only. |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | х | | Х | | Х | | Х | | х | | х | X | | Public institutions only - Univ. of Wisconsin system; Voc. Technical Schools. |
| Indian Student Assistance | † | ļ | | | <u> </u> | | | | † | <u> </u> | | X | l | Х | |
| Wyoming | I | | | <i>'</i> | T | | 1 | | 1 | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants American Somoa | X | | | X | | - | | | | <u> </u> | | | ļ | Х. | |
| Scholarship Program | х | х | ļ | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | ļ | X | | х | | L | | | х х | |

Other:

California - Specific number of grants authorized for new applicants. Upper division and graduate students pursuing a bilingual.

Connecticut - Defined by each college.

Georgia - Priority given to those who submit completed application on first come basis until funds are exhausted.

Illinois - Except deadlines.

Iowa - Scholastic priority.

Maryland - Persons with lowest family contributions for education and those with

Maryland - Persons with lowest family contributions for education and thighest SAT.

Michigan - Financial need in descending order.

Minnesota - Scholarships first - then grants.
Missouri - Highest need.

Nebraska - This varies among institutions.

New Mexico - 50% to initial students and 50% to renewal students.

North Carolina - Neediest students by date applications received. Residents of Alamonce County, North Carolina.

Ohio - Priority given to lowest income.

South Dakota - Awards are prohibited to students enrolled in theology degree programs, students in religious education and/or students receiving athletic scholar-

ships. Indian blood descent and sophomore or above.

Tennessee - Freshmen, U. S. citizens.

Texas - Priorities set by schools.

Virginia - Neediest for 1980-81. There are two application dates. Those who file on or before the first date receive priority for full awards in the event that

all applicants cannot receive full awards.

West Virginia - Applications are grouped into 3 categories. Within each category all applicants (no distinction made between dependent or independent ranked in asending

order on basis of contribution. The initial selections will occur from the renewal category, then incoming freshmen and finally current upperclass.

If Yes:

| | | | If Y | es: |
|---|-----------------|-------------|---|---|
| | Forv | vard | Forward | Criterion for |
| | Func | ling? | Funding | Setting of |
| | Yes | No | Affective Date | Guaranteed Funding Amount |
| Alabama | | | | |
| Student Assistance Program | | X | | |
| Arizona | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | X | | |
| Arkansas | | | | |
| State Scholarships Program | | | March for | Revenue Stabilization Act |
| 0.1.6 | X | | 1981–83 | usually given top priority |
| California | | | | |
| Cal Grant A | | X | | |
| Cal Grant B | · · · · · | X | | |
| Cal Grant C Colorado | | X | | |
| | | 77 | | |
| Student Incentive Grants Student Grants | · · · · · · · · | X X | | |
| Connecticut | | X | | |
| State Scholarship | | | | |
| Programs - Undergraduate | | v | | |
| State Supplemental/Work | | X | ··· | |
| Study Grants | | Х | | |
| Contracted Stud. | | | Even # yrs 1st | |
| (Ind. Colleges) | | | Wed. in June | Appropriation has |
| (Ind. Colleges) | | | Odd # yrs 1st | Appropriation by |
| | Х | | - | State Legislature |
| Delaware | Λ | | Wed. in May | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | | Х | | • |
| District of Columbia | | | · · · · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Incentive Grants | | | Date of federal | The state equality matches |
| incentive Grants | Х | | | The state equally matches |
| Florida | | | grant award | the federal allotment |
| Student Assistance Grants | | | | Todialetiza Appropriation |
| beddene Assistance Granes | Х | | Biennial Funding | Legislative Appropriation- no set criteria |
| Georgia | | | Brennial Funding | no set criteria |
| Student Incentive | | | | |
| Grant Program | | Х | | |
| Hawaii | | <u></u> | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | Х. | | | |
| Idaho | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| Illinois | | | | |
| Monetary Award Program | | X | | |
| Indiana | | | | |
| State Scholarships | | | July 1 - every | Biennial budget passed by |
| | X | | 2 years | General Assembly |
| Educational Grants | | | July 1 - every | Biennial budget passed by |
| | X | | 2 years | General Assembly |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | | | July 1 - every | Biennial budget passed |
| | X | | 2 years | General Assembly |
| Iowa | | | | outerar indentity |
| Scholarship Program | | | | The state legislature has |
| . 0 | | | | written the standing lim- |
| | | | | ited appropriation into the |
| | | | Standing Limited | law and revised it period- |
| | X | | Appropriation | ically. |
| Iowa (cont'd) | | | | zouzzy. |
| Tuition Grant Program | | | | The state legislature has |
| rattion Grant Irogram | | | | The state legislature has |
| | | | | written the standing lim- |
| | | | Standing Timital | ited appropriation into the |
| | v | | Standing Limited | law and revised it period- |
| Vog/Took Triftion Court | X | | Appropriation | ically. |
| Voc/Tech Tuition Grants | | | | The state legislature has |
| | | | | written the standing lim- |
| | | | Charli III I | ited appropriation into the |
| | v | | Standing Limited | law and revised it period- |
| | X | | Appropriation | ical <u>l</u> y. |
| | | | | |

If Yes:

| | | | | res: |
|----------------------------|---|-------------|--|---------------------------------------|
| | Forw | ard | Fo r ward | Criterion for |
| | Fund | ing? | Funding | Setting of |
| | Yes | No | Affective Date | Guaranteed Funding Amount_ |
| *** | | | | |
| Kansas | | | | • |
| State Scholarships | | X | | |
| Tuition Grants | | X | · | |
| Kentucky | | | | |
| Grant Program | | X | | |
| Louisiana | | | | |
| Incentive Grant | | X | | |
| Maine | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | x | | |
| | | | ······································ | |
| Maryland | | | | |
| General State Scholarships | | | Approx. 1 year | |
| | | | to start of | Legislation and budget |
| | X | | fiscal year | approval action |
| Senatorial Scholarships | | _ | Approx. 1 year | |
| | | | to start of | Legislation and budget |
| | X | | fiscal year | approval action |
| Proprietary School Grants | | ···· | Approx. 1 year | |
| riopricially behoof clanes | | | to start of | Law and budget |
| | v | | | |
| | X | | fiscal year | approval action |
| Massachusetts | | | | |
| General Scholarships | | X | | |
| Consortium Scholarships | N/A | | | |
| Michigan | | | | |
| Competitive Scholarships | | X | | • |
| Tuition Grants | * • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • | X | | |
| Minnesota | | | ······································ | |
| Scholarship Program | | | | Dagad on projections of |
| Scholarship Program | | | | Based on projections es- |
| | | | | tablished by the Higher |
| | | | | Education Coordinating |
| | | | | Board. These appropria- |
| | | | | tions are dependent on the |
| • | | | May, June or | general state revenue situ- |
| | | | July, 1981 for | ation and may be reduced at |
| | X | | biennium 82-83 | a later date if necessary. |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | A | | breimium 02-03 | |
| Grant-In-Aid Flogram | | | | Based on projections es- |
| • | | | | tablished by the Higher |
| | | | | Education Coordinating |
| • | | | | Board. These appropria- |
| | | | | tions are dependent on the |
| | | | May, June or | general state revenue situ- |
| | | | July, 1981 for | ation and may be reduced at |
| | Х | | biennium 82-83 | |
| Wii | A | | DIEIMIUM 82-83 | a later date if necessary. |
| Missouri | | 77 | | |
| Student Grants | | X | | |
| Montana | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | • | X | | |
| Nebraska | | | | . / |
| Incentive Grants | | Х | | |
| Nevada | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| | | 37 | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| New Hampshire | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| New Jersey | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | | X | | • |
| Garden State Scholarships | | Х | | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund | | | | |
| Program | | х | | • |
| | | <u> </u> | | |
| Basic Scholarships, | | | | |
| Incentive Grants, | | _ | | |
| Public Tuition Aid Grants, | | X | | |
| "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | | | | |
| • | | | | |

If Yes:

| | Forw Fund Yes | | Forward Funding Affective Date | Criterion for Setting of Guaranteed Funding Amount |
|--|---------------------|-------------|---------------------------------------|--|
| New Mexico | | | TITLOCCTIVO DATO | Guaranteed Funding Amount |
| Incentive Grants | X | | July 1 | Approval by Legislature |
| New York | | | | ipprovat by negibiatere |
| Tuition Assistance Program | X | | April 1 | State Budget Process |
| Regents Scholarship Program | | _X | | |
| North Carolina | | | | |
| N.C. Student Incentive | | | | |
| Grant | | X | | |
| N.C. Legislative Tuition | | | | • |
| Grant | | X | | |
| North Dakota | | v | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant Student Financial Asst. | | <u>X</u> | | |
| Ohio | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Instructional Grants | | | | Based on funding require- |
| instructional Grants | | | | ments of table of grants |
| | X | | June 30 | that are approved. |
| Oregon | | | | and and approved. |
| Need Grant | | X | | |
| Cash Award | | X | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | |
| Higher Education Grants | | | | Level of prior year |
| | X | | March 15 | appropriation |
| Rhode Island | | | | |
| R.I. Scholarship and | | | | |
| Grant Program | | | October of | Appropriation is set by |
| | 77 | | year prior | fixed formula for initial |
| South Carolina | X | | to entry yr. | plus 3 continuing years. |
| Tuition Grant Program | | х | | |
| South Dakota | | <u>A</u> | | |
| State Indian Scholarship | | Х | | |
| Tuition Equilization | | | | |
| Grants | | X | | |
| Tennessee | | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards | | X | | |
| Texas | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | | | |
| Public Education Grants | X | | | |
| Utah | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| Vermont | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | X | | |
| Virginia | | | | |
| College Scholarship | | | | |
| Assistance Program | <u>X</u> | | March 15, 1980 | Appropriations Act |
| Tuition Assistance | 37 | | W1 15 1000 | |
| Grant Program Washington | X | | March 15, 1980 | Appropriations Act |
| Need Grant Program | | х | | |
| West Virginia | | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | Х | | |
| Wisconsin | - | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | | | July 1 of each | • |
| - 0 | X | | odd # year | Legislatively Established |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | | July 1 of each | |
| | X | | odd # year | Legislatively Established |
| Indian Student Assistance | | | July 1 of each | |
| | X | | odd # year | Legislatively Established |
| American Samoa | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | | _X | - 1000 | |

FINANCIAL AID PACKAGING PHILOSOPHY OF AGENCY

| State | Agency Makes State Awards And Lets School Package | Agency Packages With BEOG Only | Agency Develops Guidelines for All Campus Based Aid | Other |
|------------------------------|--|---|--|--|
| | | | | |
| Alabama | X | | | |
| Alaska | | | | Totally independent of programs. |
| Arizona | X | | | |
| Arkansas | X | | | |
| California | X | | | |
| Colorado | | | | Agency allocates to institutions which package. |
| Connecticut | X | | | |
| Delaware | · X | X | | |
| District of Columbia | X | | | |
| Florida | X | | · | |
| Georgia | <u>X</u> | | · | |
| Hawaii | X | | | |
| Idaho Illinois | X | v | v | |
| Illinois Indiana | v | X | X | |
| Indiana | X X | | | |
| Kansas | X | | | |
| Kentucky | <u>X</u> | | | |
| Louisiana | Λ | | | School packages along |
| | | | | state guidelines. |
| Maine | X | | | |
| Maryland | X | X | | |
| Massachusetts | X | | | *** |
| Michigan | X | | | |
| Minnesota | | X | | |
| Mississippi | X | · | | |
| Missouri | | X | | |
| Montana | | | | Institution allocations and distribution. |
| Nebraska | X | | | |
| Nevada | X | | | |
| New Hampshire | X | | | |
| New Jersey | | | | |
| New Mexico | | | X | |
| New York | X | | | |
| North Carolina | X | | | |
| North Dakota | | X | | |
| Ohio | X | | | |
| Oklahoma | v | | | |
| Oregon | X X | | | |
| Pennsylvania Rhode Island | X X | | | |
| South Carolina | <u>^</u> | X | X | |
| South Dakota | X | | | |
| Tennessee | Λ | <u>x</u> | | Institutions adjust if |
| | | ۸. | · | there is an overaward. |
| Texas | X | | | |
| Utah | X | | | |
| Vermont | | X | | |
| Virginia | X | | | |
| Washington | X | | | |
| West Virginia | Х | | | |
| Wisconsin | | X | | |
| Wyoming | | | | Agency makes federal distribution based on college request |
| | | | | under SSIG. |
| American Samoa | | X | | |

Eligibility Determined By:

Payments Made To:

Responsibility for determining overaward in packaging situation lies with:

| | | Determin | ned By: | Pa | iyments Ma | ide To: | sítu | ation li | ies with: |
|---|----------|----------|---|-------|---------------|--|--------|----------|---|
| State | Agency | School | Other S | chool | Student | Other | Agency | School | Other |
| Alabama | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Program | X | | | | X | | | X | |
| Arizona | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | Х | | X | | | | X | |
| Arkansas | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program | X | · | | X | | | | X | |
| California Cal Grant A | х | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant A | | | | х | | | | | Some schools formerly used coordination with commission, others not required. |
| Cal Grant B | Х | | | | X | Tuition and fee payments paid to school. | Х | | • |
| Cal Grant C | Х | | | Х | | | | | Cooperation of both Agency and school. |
| Bilingual Teacher Development Grant | Х | | | | Х | | Х | | Agency and School. |
| Cal State Graduate Fellowship | Х | | | X | | | | х | |
| Supervised Clinical Training Program | <u></u> | X | | X | | | | | |
| Law Enforcement Personnel | X | | | | | Payable to | x | x | Combined award |
| Dependents Scholarship | | | | | | student at school. | Λ | Λ. | coordination. |
| Program | | | | | | | | | coordinacton; |
| Colorado | | | | | - | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | х | | Х | | | | | School does all packaging |
| Student Grants | | Х | | X | | | | | Not applicable - |
| | | | | | | | | | school does all packaging |
| Graduate Grants | | X | | X | | | | | Not applicable - school does all packaging |
| Connecticut | | | | | | | | | F-+88 |
| State Scholarship Programs Undergraduate | Х | | | Х | | | | Х | |
| State Supplemental/Work- · study Grant | | X | | Х | | | | Х | |
| State Scholarship Graduate | X | | | | | | | X | |
| Award Program | | | | Λ. | | | | ^ | |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) PA-551 | | х | | X | | | | Х | |
| Delaware | | | | | | | | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | X | | | X | | | х | | |
| District of Columbia | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | Х | X | | X | | | X | X | |
| Florida Student Assistance Grants | x | | | | | Payments made to school in behalf of student. | _ | | х |
| Georgia Student Incentive Grant | x | х | School determines | | x | Through the school. | | х | |
| Program Hawaii | | | residency. | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | х | In accordance with pro- gram rules & regulations established by Agency. | | | | | Х | |
| Idaho Student Incentive Grants | | X | | X | | | | х | |
| Illinois Monetary Award Program | Х | | | х | | | | х | |
| Indiana | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarships | <u>X</u> | | | X | | | | X | |
| Educational Grants | X | | | X | | | | Х | |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | X | | | X | | | | Х | |

| -54- |
|----------|
| 4- |
| |
| |
| |

| Second S | | | Decermin | led by: | r | ayments na | de 10. | 310 | dation 1 | 41011 |
|--|-----------------------------|--------------|-------------|----------------------|--------------|------------|-----------------|-------------|--------------|----------------|
| Toylor Selection Toylor | State | Agency | School | Other | School | Student | Other | Agency | School | Other |
| Tricking Grant Frogram X | | | | | | | | | | |
| Secret Stock Sto | Scholarship Program | | | | | | | | | |
| Sear Select Sel | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarships | Voc/Tech. Tuition Grants | X | | | <u> </u> | | | x | X | |
| Trition Greate | | | | | | | | | v | |
| Count Coun | | | | | | <u>X</u> | | | | |
| Creat Frogram | | X | | | | X | | | | |
| | | ** | | | | v | | x | x | |
| Main | | X | | | | | | <u>_</u> | A | |
| Maryland Consent X | | | v | v | ¥ | | | | X | |
| Transmission | | | | | - | | | | - | |
| Mary Independent State Sholarships X | | v | | | x | | | | Х | |
| Content State Scholarships X | | | | | | | | | | |
| And Sentorial Scholarchips | | x | | | х | | | | X | |
| Committee X | | | | And Sepator or | | | | | X | |
| Not applicable Not | Senatorial Senoial Ships | ** | | | | | | | | |
| Massachusette | Proprietary School Grants | X | | | X | | | | X | |
| Second Scholarships Not applicable | | •• | - | | | | | | | |
| Not applicable Not | | х | • | | х | | | | X | |
| Michigan | | · | | Not applicable. | | | Not applicable | | | Not applicable |
| Comparison X | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grante | | X | | | | | | | X | |
| Minesota Scholarship Program X | | | | | Х | | | | X | |
| Check made out to student and school sent to echool. Check made out to sent to echool. | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sent to school. Sent to school. Sent to school. Student and school - sent to school. Student and school - sent to school. Student Grants | Scholarship Program | X | | | | | | X | | |
| Crant=in-Aid Program | | | | | | | | | | |
| Hississippi Student Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Crants | Grant-in-Aid Program | Х | | | | | | Х | | |
| Student Grants | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | | | | | | | sent to school. | | | |
| Minima | | | | | | | | | v | |
| Student Grants | | | X | | X | | | | A | |
| Noticentive Grants | | | | | | ** | | | v | |
| Nebraska | | X | | | | <u>^</u> | | | <u>A</u> | |
| Nevraks | | | v | | v | | | | x | |
| Nevada | | | х | | | | | | | |
| Nevada | | | | | ., | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | Incentive Grants | | X | | Х | | | | | |
| New Hampshire Incentive Grants X X X New Jersey Tuition Aid Grants X X X Garden State Scholarships X X X X Program Basic Scholarships, Incentive Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants X X X Garden State Graduate Fellowship X X X X Garden State Graduate Fellowship X X X X Garden State Grants X X X Garden State Grants Incentive Grants X X X X Sample Scholarship Now X X X Sample State Grants Incentive Grants X X X X Incentive Grants X X X X Now Mexico Incentive Grants X X X X New Mexico Incentive Grants X X X X New Mexico Incentive Grants X X X X New Orck Grants Scholarship Program X X X X Regents Scholarship Program X X X X Regents Scholarship Frogram X X X X Regents Grants X X X X X Regents Grants X X X X X Regents Grants X X X X X Regents Concerning X X X X X Regents Grant X X X X X X Regents Grant X X X X X X X Regents Grant X X X X X X X X X X Regents Grant X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | | | Agency. | | | | | | |
| Student therefore details X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | | | | | v | | | y | |
| New Jersey | | | X | | | | | | A_ | |
| New Jersey Tuition Aid Grants X X X Garden State Scholarships, Incentive Grants, Public Tuition Aid Grants X X X Graden State Graduate Fellowship X X X X Solventive Grants X X X Frogram Graden State Graduate Fellowship X X X X X X Regents Scholarships Program X X X X X X North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X X X Not possible. Student Incentive Grant X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | ** | | | v | | | | x | |
| Tuition Aid Grants X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | X | | | <u>^</u> | | | | | |
| Garden State Scholarships X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | ., | | | v | | | | x | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund X X X X Y Y Y X X Y X Y X Y X Y X Y X | | Х | | | | | | | | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund A | | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic Scholarships, Incentive Grants, Public Tuition Aid Grants | | | Λ. | | Λ. | | | | | |
| Grants, Public Tuition Aid Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants X X Garden State Graduate Fellowship X X New Mexico Incentive Grants X X X X New York Tuition Assistance Program X Regents Scholarship Program X North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grants X X N/A Garden State Graduate Fellowship X X N/A New Mexico Incentive Grants X X X X New York Tuition Assistance Program X To school. X X Regents Scholarship Program X X Not possible. North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X X X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X | Grants, rubiic Tultion Ald | | | | | | | | | |
| Garden State Graduate Fellowship X X X N/A New Mexico Incentive Grants X X X X New York Tuition Assistance Program X To school. X X X Regents Scholarship Program X Not possible. North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X X X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X | | x | | , | Х | | • | | X | |
| Fellowship X X N/A New Mexico Incentive Grants X X X X New York Tuition Assistance Program X To school. X X Regents Scholarship Program X Not possible. North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X X X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X | | | | | | | | | | |
| New Mexico Incentive Grants X X X New York Tuition Assistance Program X Regents Scholarship Program X North Carolina Student Incentive Grant Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for X and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | v | | | | x | | | | N/A |
| Incentive Grants X X X New York Tution Assistance Program X Regents Scholarship Program X X X North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X X X X X X X Not possible. Not possible. Not possible. X X X X X X | | ^_ | | | | | | | | |
| New York Tuition Assistance Program X To school. X X Regents Scholarship Program X X Not possible. North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for X and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X | | | | x | | х | | | X | |
| Tuition Assistance Program X To school. X X Regents Scholarship Program X X Not possible. North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X X X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for X and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X | | | | | | | | | | |
| Regents Scholarship Program X X Not possible. North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X X X X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X | | x | | | | | To school. | X | X | |
| North Carolina Student Incentive Grant X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for X and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X X X X X X X X X X | Regents Scholarshin Program | | | | X | | | | | Not possible. |
| Student Incentive Grant X X X X X Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for X and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X | North Carolina | | | | | | | | | |
| Legis. Tuition Grant General Assembly for X and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X Seneral Assembly for X and on behalf of X N/A X X | | x | | | х | | | | X | |
| and on behalf of individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X | | | | General Assembly for | | | | | | |
| individual students. Board of Governors Medical X X X X | Togato, tarraon orang | | | | | | | | | |
| Board of Governors Medical X X X | | | | | | | | | | N/A |
| | Board of Governors Medical | X | | | Х | | | Х | Х | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |

PROGRAM PROCEDURAL ARRANGEMENTS (1980-81)

Eligibility Determined By:

Payments Made To:

Responsibility for determining overaward in packaging situation lies with:

| Social of Governors Dental X | State | Agency | School_ | Other | School | Student | Other | Agency | School | Other |
|---|-------------------------------|--------|---------------------------------------|-----------------|--------|---------|--------------------|--------|--------|----------------|
| North Dakota | | Х | - | | Х | | | Х | Х | |
| Turentine Noundation | Brooks Foundation Scholarship | | | Trust Agreement | X | | | | x | |
| North Dakota | Turrentine Foundation | | Х | | X | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Orant | Scholarship | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Financial Assistance | North Dakota | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Financial Assistance | | X | | | | Х | | | х | |
| Distructional Grants | Student Financial Assistance | Х | | | | X | | | | |
| Oregon Need Grant X | | | | | | | | | | |
| Need Grant | | x | | | Х | | | | х | |
| Canal Avard | | | | | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | | Х | | | | х | |
| Higher Education Crants | | X | | | X | | | | Х | |
| R.1. Scholarship and R.1. Scholarship and R.1. Scholarship and Grant Program X | | | | | | | | | | |
| R.1. Scholarship and Crant Program X | | X | | | X | | | | Х | |
| Count Program | | | | | | | | | | |
| South Carolina X | | | | | | | | | | • |
| Tuition Grant Program | | X - | | | X | | | | X | |
| Nealth Professions Loan Program X | | | | | | | | | | |
| Realth Professions Loan Frogram X | | X | | | | Х | | X | х | |
| State Indian Scholership | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Indian Scholarship | | | | | | | Jointly to student | | | |
| Tenness | | X | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | and school. | | | Advisory Board |
| Tennese | | | | | Х | | | | X | |
| Student Assistance Grants | | | X | | X | X | | | Х | |
| Texas | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | X | | | | XX | | | X | |
| Public Education Grants | | x | x | | | х | At institution | | x | |
| Treviewed by State Agency. via school. | | | | | ıcy. | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | X | | ncy. | X | | | х | |
| Vermont | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | | Х | | X | | | | х | |
| Virginia College Scholarship Assistance Program | | | | | | | | | | |
| College Scholarship | | X | | | X | | | X | | |
| Assistance Program | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant X X X X X X Y Y Y Y X Y Y Y X Y Y Y Y | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant X X X X X X X X Washington Need Grant Program X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | | | | X | | | | Х | |
| Washington Need Grant Program X X X West Virginia Higher Ed. Grant Program X X X Wisconsin Tuition Grant Program X X X X Higher Ed. Grant Program X X X X Higher Ed. Grant Program X X X X Indian Student Assistance X Bureau of Indian X X Wyoming Incentive Grants X X X X American Samoa | | Х | | | X | | | | X | |
| Need Grant Program X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X | | | | | | | | | | |
| West Virginia Higher Ed. Grant Program X X X Wisconsin Tuition Grant Program X X X X Higher Ed. Grant Program X X X X Indian Student Assistance X Bureau of Indian X X X Wyoming Incentive Grants X X X X American Samoa | | | | | | | | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | X | | | | X | | | X | |
| Visconsin | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | Higher Ed. Grant Program | X | | | X | | | | X | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | | | | | | | | | |
| Indian Student Assistance X Bureau of Indian X X X Affairs Wyoming Incentive Grants X X X American Samoa | | | | | | | | | | |
| ## Affairs Wyoming | | | | | | X | | | X | |
| Incentive Grants X X X American Samoa | | x | | | | Х | | | Х | |
| American Samoa | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | X | · | Х | | | | X | |
| Scholarship Program X X | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Scholarship Program | X | | | X | | | Х | | |

METHOD OF INCORPORATING SSIG FUNDS INTO PROGRAM

| Alabama Student Assistance Program | Added to appropriations and distributed by |
|---|--|
| | individual checks along with state money. |
| Arizona Incentive Grant Program | Run 2 Programs: 1) With state funds and federal SSIG money 2) With institution funds and federal SSIG money |
| Arkansas State Scholarship Program | Added to appropriation and distributed with state money |
| California | |
| Cal Grant A | Added to appropriations and distributed with state money |
| Cal Grant B | Distributed along with state money |
| Cal Grant C | |
| Colorado Student Incentive Grants | Added to appropriation for distribution except for sectarian institutions that contribute their own match |
| Connecticut | |
| State Scholarship Programs Undergraduate | Added to appropriation and distributed along with state money |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) | SSIG funds are not incorporated in this program |
| Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships | Kept separate and issued only to undergraduate recipients |
| District of Columbia | |
| Incentive Grants | The D.C. State Student Incentive Grant Program is operated independently |
| Florida | |
| Student Assistance Grants | Added to appropriations, and distributed only with state money |
| Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program | Added to appropriations and distributed along with state money |
| Hawaii | |
| Student Incentive Grants | SSIG is the only student grant program administered by this agency |
| Idaho | |
| Student Incentive Grants | Federal and state funds distributed to institu- tions, who then add-on institution match to make complete award |
| Illinois | Compress divided |
| Monetary Award Program | Added and distributed generally within SSIG guidelines |
| Indiana | |
| State Scholarships | N/A in Scholarship Program |
| Educational Grants | W/A to Galada and to December 1 |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | N/A in Scholarship Program |
| Iowa Scholarship Program | Used to match each scholarship payment |
| Tuition Grant Program | Very few SSIG funds are used in this program |
| Voc/Tech Tuition Grants | Used to match each grant payment |
| Kansas | |
| State Scholarships | Added to appropriations & disbursed with state funds |
| Tuition Grants | |
| Kentucky | To local constants may be substituted funds added |
| Grant Program | Federal recipients may have other state funds added beyond the 50/50 match. All agency grants are issued as KHEAA State Grants whether federal or state SSIG or KTG or some combination |

METHOD OF INCORPORATING SSIG FUNDS INTO PROGRAM

| Maine | |
|---|--|
| Incentive Grants | Added to state money to make one fund |
| Maryland | raded to state money to make one fund |
| General State Scholarships | Added to state funds under General State Program and distributed along with state funds (50%/50%) |
| Senatorial Scholarships | No SSIG in Senatorial Program |
| Proprietary School Grants | None used at this point. Perhaps in future years. |
| Massachusetts | none does de this point. Ternaps in luture years. |
| General Scholarships | Added to state appropriation and distributed with state money - neither student nor institution know to whom SSIG funds are applied |
| Consortium Scholarships | Not Applicable |
| Michigan Competitive Scholarships | Added to appropriation and distributed along with state money |
| Tuition Grants | Tuition grant recipients receive no SSIG |
| Minnesota | referent grant recipients receive no 5516 |
| Scholarship Program Grant-in-Aid Program | Not eligible for the scholarship program SSIG is calculated at the end of the academic year and is awarded to students who meet the criteria. This avoids refunds and recalculations. |
| Mississippi | |
| Student Grants | Added to appropriations and distributed along with institutional matching funds |
| Missouri | |
| Student Grants | Distributed to specific applicants |
| Montana Incentive Grants | Added to the appropriation with non federal matching |
| Nebraska | funds requested from colleges |
| Incentive Grants | SSIG funds are the program. The institution sends its matching funds to the state and those funds plus the federal funds are returned to the institution for distribution to the students. |
| Student Incentive Grants | Kept separate and issued to specific applicants based on special parameters. |
| New Hampshire | based on special parameters. |
| Incentive Grants | Distributed with state funds |
| New Jersey | Distributed with state lungs |
| Tuition Aid Grants | Added to appropriation and distributed along with state money |
| Garden State Scholarships | Not incorporated |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | None |
| Basic Scholarships, Incentive Grants, Public Tuition Aid Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | Not incorporated |
| Garden State Graduate Fellowship New Mexico | |
| Incentive Grants | Added to appropriations and distributed along with |
| New York | state matching funds |
| Tuition Assistance Program | Add to appropriations and distributed with state dollars |
| Regents Scholarship Program | N/A |
| North Carolina | |
| N. C. Student Incentive Grant | |
| N. C. Legis. Tuition Grant | Does not apply |
| North Dakota Tuition Assistance Grant | 77/4 |
| Student Financial Assistance | N/A |
| seggit limincial ASSISTANCE | Added to state appropriation, distributed along with state dollars |

METHOD OF INCORPORATING SSIG FUNDS INTO PROGRAM

| Kept separate and issued to specific applicants |
|--|
| based on special parameter |
| SSIG funds are added to state appropriations and distributed under same parameters |
| Not incorporated into this program |
| Added to appropriation and distributed along with state money |
| Added to appropriation and distributed as part of awards |
| Separate accounts are maintained for state and SSIG dollars |
| |
| Not at all |
| Added to appropriations and distributed along with state money |
| |
| Kept separate and issued to specific applicants based on special parameters |
| SSIG is the key to size of program (which becomes SSIG + match) |
| |
| State appropriation alloted separately to institutions - SSIG funds (federally) are issued as requested |
| |
| Added to appropriation and distributed along with state money |
| |
| SSIG funds are added to the state appropriation and distributed with them |
| N/A (not funded through the SSIGP) |
| They are added to appropriations and distributed with state money. A file is kept showing the amount of SSIG funds utilized by each institution. |
| Funds are added to the state appropriations and awarded in customary fashion |
| and the Cabiomary Tabillon |
| Part of TIP component of WHEG - for Disadvantaged/ High Need Students |
| Included as part of the TIP component of the WHEG Program. Serves exceptionally needy, disadvantaged students. |
| Part of TIP component of WHEG - for Disadvantaged/ High Need Students |
| |
| They are the only state administered funds |
| |
| |

MAXIMUM AWARDS MADE TO INDIVIDUAL STUDENTS ARE BASED ON

School Tuition

and Fees

Amount of

Legislative Maximum Stipend

| State | and rees Figures | Amount of Need Present | Maximum Stipend Set | Other |
|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|-----------------------------|
| , | | TOTA TICOCHE | | Other |
| Alabama | | | | |
| Student Assistance Program | | | | Amount established |
| | | | | by Commission in |
| | | | | regulations. |
| Alaska | | | | 10841401010. |
| Scholarships | | | | |
| Arizona | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | | X | (Fed. limit of \$1,500.00). |
| Arkansas | | | | 41,500.007. |
| State Scholarship Program | 1/2 | | | |
| California | | , | | |
| Cal Grant A | X | X | X | |
| Cal Grant B | X | X | X | |
| Cal Grant C | X | X | X | |
| Bilingual Teacher | X | X | X | |
| Development Grant | | | | |
| Cal State Graduate | X | X | | |
| Fellowship | | | | |
| Supervised Clinical | *** | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | School incremental |
| Training Program | | | | cost data up to |
| • | | | • | \$1,500 legislative |
| | | | | maximum stipend set |
| Law Enforcement | | X | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | maximum stipend set |
| Personnel Dependent | | Α | | |
| Colorado | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| Student Grants | | <u>X</u> | | con : |
| orange of another | | Λ | | CSE is one compon- |
| | | | | ent of package |
| • | | | | amounts vary |
| | | | | according to in- |
| | | | | stitutional pack- |
| Constitution Constitution | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | aging policy. |
| Graduate Grants | | X | | Our policy limits |
| 0 | | | · | 1/2 budget. |
| Connecticut | | | | |
| State Scholarshp Program | X | X | X | |
| Undergraduate | | | | |
| State Supplemental/Work-Study | | | | All educationally |
| Award Program | | | | related costs. |
| State Scholarship Graduate | | | | |
| Award Program | X | X | X | |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. | | | | Determined by the |
| Colleges) - PA551 | | | | individual college. |
| Delaware | | | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | | X | X | |
| District of Columbia | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | X | |
| Florida | | | | |
| Student Assistance Grants | | | x | Tuition and fees |
| | | | 4. | or \$1,200.00 which- |
| | | | | ever is less. |
| | | | | ever 19 1688. |

| Qhh. | School Tuition and Fees | Amount of | Legislative Maximum Stipend | |
|---|-------------------------|--------------|--------------------------------|--|
| State | Figures | Need Present | <u>Set</u> | Other |
| Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program | x | x | X | |
| Hawaii | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants Idaho | | X | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| Illinois Monetary Award Program | X | x | X | Award cannot be greater or greater than \$1,900. |
| Indiana | | | | |
| State Scholarship | <u>X</u> | . X | X | |
| Educational Grants | X | X | X | |
| Freedom of Choice Grants Kansas | X | Х | X | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| State of Kansas Scholarships | X | X | X | • |
| Tuition Grants | X | X | X | |
| Kentucky | | | | |
| Grant Program | X | X | | Statutes for KTG |
| Louisiana | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | Х | | Amount of money available to school. |
| Maine | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | Х | X | Legislature funding. We prorate awards to stay within funding. |
| Maryland | | | | |
| General State Scholarship | X | X | X | |
| Senatorial Grants | X | X | X | |
| Proprietary School Grants | X | X | X | |
| Massachusetts General Scholarships | · · | | | Board sets award parameters at \$300, |
| Michigan | | | | \$600, \$900. |
| Competitive Scholarship | Х | X | X | Available funds. |
| Tuition Grants | X | X | X | Available lulus. |
| Minnesota | * | | | |
| Scholarship Program | | | X | • |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | | | X | |
| Mississippi | | | | |
| Student Grants Missouri | X | <u> </u> | | |
| Student Grants | X | Х | x | |
| Montana | | ** | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| Nebraska | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | X | | Federal Guidelines |
| Nevada Student Incentive Grants | | | | |
| New Hampshire | | <u> </u> | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | x | | |
| | | | | |

| Shaha | School Tuition and Fees | Amount of | Legislative Maximum Stipend | |
|---|---------------------------------------|--------------|--------------------------------|---|
| State | Figures | Need Present | Set | <u>Other</u> |
| New Jersey | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | | X | X | |
| Garden State Scholarships | | X | X | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | X | Х | х | Legislative maximum award set by insti- tutional type. |
| (Below Being Phased Out) | | | | |
| Basic Scholarship Program | | | | |
| Old Tuition Grant Program | <u> </u> | | X | |
| Public Tuition Aid Program Incentive Grants | | | | |
| Garden State Graduate | | | | |
| Fellowship | | | X | |
| New Mexico | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | . X | | |
| New York | | A | | |
| Tuition Assistance Program | | | | Tuition only. |
| Regents Scholarship Program | | | X | rateron only: |
| North Carolina | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant | | Х | | 1/2 of unmet neet after EFC and BEOG are applied. |
| Legis. Tuition Grant | | | X | are appried: |
| Board of Governors Medical | | | | By policy adoption, |
| School School | | | | Bd. of Governors. |
| Board of Governors Dental | X | | | Plus \$4,000 |
| School_ | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | stipend. |
| Brooks Foundation School | | | | Set by Board of Trustees. |
| Turrentine Foundation School | X | X | X | Misc. costs. |
| North Dakota | | · | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | | X | |
| Student Financial Assistance | | X | X | Awards are a flat |
| Ohio | | | | amount per recipi- ent, if eligible, grants are all same size. |
| Instructional Grants | | | v | |
| Oklahoma | | | X | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | | | | |
| Oregon | | | | |
| Need Grant | | x | | |
| Cash Award | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | |
| Higher Education Grants Rhode Island | X | X | X | ···· |
| Scholarship Program and Grant Program | | X | | Amount of funding vs. number of applicants may result in pro- |
| | | | | rated maximum |
| | | | | less than legi- slative maximum. |
| | | | | STALINE MAXIMUM. |

| State | School Tuition and Fees Figures | Amount of Need Present | Legislative Maximum Stipend Set | Other |
|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|
| | | | | |
| South Carolina Tuition Grant Program | х | х | | Average per student appropriation in- state supported college. |
| South Dakota | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | · | 77 | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants Health Profession Loan Progra | X | <u> </u> | X X | Loan awards are |
| Tennessee | | | | prorated with great amount going to the those students in the most advanced levels of study. Tuition and fees |
| Student Assistance Grants | X | | | or \$1,300; which- ever is less. |
| Texas | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | X | X | |
| Utah Incentive Grants | X | x | | |
| Vermont | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | x | X | | VSAC's maximum award is \$2,150 (minus BEOG & PC) except that students attending in-state private colleges can receive an additional \$1,100. |
| College Scholarship Assistance | e X | X | X | |
| Program Tuition Assistance Grant | X | | X | |
| Program (TAG) Washington | | | | |
| Need Grant Program | | <u> </u> | | Agency decision and available funds. |
| West Virginia Higher Education Grant Progra | am X | X | | 4 |
| Wisconsin | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Tuition Grant Program | X | | | This is a tuition equalization pro- gram for students in private schools. |
| Higher Education Grant Progra | | Х | x | Equity packaging ceiling |
| Indian Student Assistance | Х | Х | Х | |
| Wyoming Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| American Somoa Scholarship Program | x | x | | |
| | | | | |

AGENCY POLICY AREAS

| | BEOG Ap Requir Condit | | BEOG Data Utilization | | | | Concept in Nee | ilized vards | Independent Student Criteria Utilized | | | |
|---|-----------------------------|-------------|---|---|-------|-------------|-------------------|-----------------|--|---------|-------|------------------------------|
| State | Eligib | | Used in Calculation of State Award | Subtracted From Need Before State Award Is Calculated | Other | Not Used | Absolute | Relative | Other | Federal | Other | No Consideration Given |
| Alabama | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Program | X | | X | X | | | x | | | x | | |
| Alaska | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarships | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Arizona | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | X | | | | X | | X | | х | | |
| Arkansas | | | - | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program | | X | | None Listed | | | | x | | х | | |
| California | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Cal Grant A | X | | | X | | | | X | | | Х | |
| Cal Grant B | | X | | Х | | | | X | | | X | |
| Cal Grant C | X | | | X | | | | Х | | | X | |
| Bilingual Teacher Develop- | | | | - | | | | | | | | |
| ment Grant | · | X | | X | | | | . X | | | X | |
| Law Enforcement Personnel | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Dependent | <u> </u> | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Colorado | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | X | | _ | | X | | X | | |
| Student Grants | | X | | | | | | X | | Х | | |
| Graduate Grants Connecticut | | | | | | | | Х | | X | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarship Programs - | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Undergraduate | X | | | | | X | | X | _ | X | | |
| Contracted Study (Ind. | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Colleges) - PA551 Delaware | | X | | | | X | | | X | | | X |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | v | | | | | | | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | X | | | X | | | | X | | X | | |
| Incentive Grants | 37 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Florida | X | | | X | X | | | | X | | | X |
| Student Assistance Grants | | 37 | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | X | | | X | | | X | | X | | |
| Georgia | | | | | | | | | | | | , |
| Student Incentive Grant Program | 1 X | | X | X | | | | X | | х | | |
| Hawaii | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | <u> </u> | | | X | | | | Х | | X | | |
| Idaho | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | | | X | | Х | | X | | |
| Illinois | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Monetary Award Program | | X | X | X | X | | | X | | X | | |
| Indiana | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarships | | X | ···································· | | Х | | | Х | | Х | | |
| Educational Grants Freedom of Choice Grants | | X | | | Х | | | Х | | X | | |
| | | X | | | Х | | | Х | | X | | |
| Iowa | | ** | | | , | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | | X | | | Х | | | X | | X | X | |
| Tuition Grant Program Voc/Tech Tuition Grants | | X | | | Х | | | Х | | X | X | |
| voc/lech fullion Grants | | X | | | X | | | X | | Х | Х | |

| | Require | | BEOG Data Utilization | | | | | of Need Ut d Based Aw | | Independent Student Criteria Utilized | | | |
|---------------------------------|--------------------|----|------------------------------------|---|---------|------|----------|--------------------------|-------|--|----------|---------------------|--|
| | Conditi Eligibi | | Used in Calculation of State | Subtracted From Need Before State Award Is | | Not | | | | | | No Consideration | |
| State | Yes | No | Award | Calculated | Other | Used | Absolute | Relative | Other | Federal | Other | Given | |
| Kansas | | | ÷ | | | | | | - | | | | |
| State of Kansas Scholarships | | X | | | | X | | X | | X | | | |
| Tuition Grants | | X | | | | X | | X | | Х | | | |
| Kentucky | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Grant Program | Х | | | | X | | | | X | | X | | |
| Louisiana | - | | | | | | | | | | X | | |
| Incentive Grant | X | | | X | | | | X | | | | | |
| Maine | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant | X | | | X | | | | X | X | | X | | |
| Maryland | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| General State Scholarships | | X | X | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Senatorial Grants | | X | X | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Proprietary School Grants | | Х | X | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Massachusetts | | | | | | | Х | | | | | | |
| General Scholarships | X | | | | | X | | X | | | <u> </u> | | |
| Consortium Scholarships | Х | | X | | | | | | X | X | | | |
| Michigan | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Competitive Scholarships | | x | | | | X | | X | | X | | | |
| Tuition Grants | | X | | | | X | | Х | | X | | | |
| Minnesota | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | | Х | | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | | X | | X | | | | х | | X | | | |
| Mississippi | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | Х | | X | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Missouri | · | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | Х | | | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Mont ana | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | | | | | | X | | | | | | |
| Nebraska | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | Х | X | | | | | | Х | | X | | |
| Nevada | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| New Hampshire | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | | | | | | | X | | X | | | |
| New Jersey | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | X | | X | | | X | | X | | | X | | |
| Garden State Scholarships | | X | | | | X | | X | | X | | | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | X | | | | | X | | X | | Х | | | |
| (Below Being Phased Out) | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic Scholarship Program | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Old Tuition Grant Program | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Public Tuition Aid Program | | X | | | | | | X | | | X | | |
| Incentive Grants | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Garden State Graduate Fellowshi | P | Х | | | | X | | | | | | | |
| New Mexico | ~ | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | | | | | X | | | | | | |
| New York | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Program | | Х | | | | | X | X | | | | | |
| | | X | | | · · · · | X | Х | | | | | X | |
| Regents Scholarship Program | | 21 | | | | | | | | | | | |

 $\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}$

| 1 | |
|---|---|
| O | 7 |
| U | 7 |
| | |

| | Requir | | ВЕС | OG Data Utiliza | ation | | | of Need Ut d Based Aw | | Independent Student Criteria Utilized | | | |
|-----------------------------------|--------------|--|---------------------------------------|---|-------|----------|----------|--------------------------|-------------|--|-------|---------------------|--|
| | Eligib | | Used in Calculation of State | Subtracted From Need Before State Award Is | | Not | | | | | | No Consideration | |
| State | Yes | No | Award | Calculated | Other | Used | Absolute | Relative | Other | Federal | Other | Given | |
| North Carolina | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant | X | | X | | | | | Х | | X | | | |
| Legis. Tuition Grant | | X | | | | X | | | X | | N/A | | |
| Brooks Foundation Scholarship | | X | | | | | X | | | X | , | · | |
| Turrentine Foundation Scholarship | X | | | X | | | | Х | | X | | | |
| North Dakota | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | 37 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | X | | | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Student Financial Assistance | X | | | X | | | X | | | Х | | | |
| Ohio | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Instructional Grants | - | X | | | X | | | | X | | Х | | |
| Oklahoma | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Oregon | | | | | | | | | | | | · | |
| Need Grant | X | | | X | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Cash Award | Х | | | | | | X | | - | X | | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | | | | | | | • | | | |
| Higher Education Grants | X | | | X | | | | Х | | | Х | | |
| Rhode Island | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program Award and | х | | | X | | | | х | | х | | | |
| Grant Program | | | | | | | | | | ** | | | |
| South Carolina | | ······································ | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | х | | | X | | | | x | | x | | | |
| South Dakota | | | | | | | | ^ | | A | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | X | | X | | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Indian Scholarship Program | | | | | | X | | ^ | | ^ | | | |
| Tennessee | | | | · | | <u>^</u> | | | | | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards | X | | | X | | | | | v | T. | | | |
| Texas | | | | A | | | | | X | Х | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | х | | Х | | | | | | | | | |
| Utah | | | | A | | | | X | X | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | 7.7 | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Theelitive Grants | | X | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | | X | | X | | | |
| Vermont | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | X | | | X | | | | X | | | X | | |
| Virginia | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| College Scholarship Assistance | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Program | | X | | X | | X | | X | | X | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Program (TAG) | | X | | | | | | | х | | X | | |
| Washington | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Need Grant Program | Х | | | | х | | · X | | | | Х | | |
| West Virginia | | | | | | | · | · | | | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | x | | x | | | | X | | Х | | | |
| Wisconsin | | | | | | | | A | | A | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | | Х | | | | X | | X | | v | | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | Х | A | | <u> </u> | | | | X X | | X | | | |
| Indian Student Assistance | | | | | | | | | | A | | | |
| | Х | | | X | | | | Х | | Х | | | |
| Wyoming | v | | v | v | | | v | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | | X | X | | | <u> </u> | | | | | | |
| American Samoa | ** | | •• | | | | •- | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | Х | | X | | | | X | | | | X | | |

| STATE | OTHER BEOG APPLICATION REQUIRED AS CONDITION OF ELIGIBILITY |
|---|--|
| Colorado | - Required for all students who are potentially eligible. |
| Illinois | - But we assume they will apply. |
| Maryland | - But strongly urged. |
| Texas | - But recommended. |
| STATE | OTHER BEOG DATA UTILIZATION |
| California | |
| California State | 0.1 6: 6:6:1 |
| | o - Only for fifth year pharmacy or optometry students. |
| Colorado Student Incentive | • |
| Grants | - Subtracted from need before award package is calculated. |
| District of Columbia | - Verification of data reported on D.C. application. |
| Florida | - All students encouraged to apply. SEI is printed on student award |
| 101101 | and rejection letters. Student records are checked if there is a |
| | wide discrepancy in SEI and TFC. |
| Illinois | - Our BEOG estimate. |
| Indiana | |
| State Scholarships | - Subtracted from maximum additional aid allowed after state award, |
| | possibly reducing state award if maximum aid is smaller than BEOG. |
| Educational Grants | - Subtracted from maximum additional aid after state award, possibly |
| For the control | reducing state award Subtracted from maximum additional aid allowed after state award, |
| Freedom of Choice | |
| Grants Iowa | possibly reducing state award if maximum aid is smaller than BEOG. - Used to verify student's basic grant. |
| | - Verification of application. |
| Kentucky Nebraska | - This varies among institutions. |
| New York | - IIIIs varies among institutions. |
| Tuition Assistance | |
| Program | - Ruled duplicative only for incarcerated students. |
| Ohio | To identify students who have not applied to state program. Such students are sent state forms and encouraged to apply. |
| Oregon | stadenes are sene state forms and encouraged to appriy. |
| Need Grant | BEOG and state grant combination cannot exceed 50% of student's need. |
| Cash Award | The combination of BEOG and cash award may not exceed 100% of financial need. |
| Washington | - BEOG data is used only in studies and research done by the council. |
| STATE | OTHER NEED CONCEPTS USED |
| | |
| California | |
| Supervised Clinical Training Program | - Based on school furnished incremental cost data. |
| Connecticut | Based on School Idinioned Inciented Cook adda |
| | s - State law for this program provides that "the amount of aid to be given an individual student shall be determined by the individual |
| | college and shall be consistent with the student aid program as defined by the college." |
| istrict of Columbia | Award varies according to need after other aid and family contributions are considered. |
| lentucky | - Absolute for SSIG; relative for KTG portion. |
| ouisiana | - Maximum of \$700. |
| laine | - Award = Cost of Attendance - Family Contribution and BEOG : 2. |
| lassachusetts | Based on category of institution chosen: \$300 payment for public in-state; \$600 payment for public out-of-state; \$900 payment for private in-state or out-of-state. |
| lebraska | - This concept varies among institutions. |
| lew Jersey | |
| Garden State | New recovered |
| Graduate Fellowship New York | - Not required. |
| ew York Regents Scholarship | |
| Program | - Flat \$0 < 50 grant. |
| North Carolina | |
| Legislative Tuition Grant | - A capitation program not need based. |
| Board of Governors | - Pays all tuition and required fees plus a \$4,000 per year stipend. |
| Dental Scholarship | - rays are carrion and required roco pros a 4-3000 per year serpence. |

and the second of the second o

| STATE | OTHER NEED CONCEPTS USED |
|---|---|
| Ohio | - Awards are applied only to fees. If fees are less than award, |
| | the award is reduced. |
| South Dakota Health Professions | - Program not based on need. Incentive program to bring students |
| Loan Program | back to the state to practice health professions. |
| Tennessee | - Applicants are ranked by parental contribution. Awards vary |
| | depending on tuition and fees. Recipients may not receive more |
| | than amount of tuition and mandatory fees or \$1,300, whichever |
| Virginia | is less. |
| Tuition Assistance | |
| Grant Program | - N/A. Tuition Assistance Grant Program is not a need based program. |
| | |
| STATE | OTHER INDEPENDENT CRITERIA UTILIZED |
| | |
| California | |
| Cal Grant A | - Student must be independent for three prior years. |
| Cal Grant B | - Student must be independent for three prior years Student must be independent for three prior years. |
| Bilingual Teacher | 344 |
| Development Grant | - Student must be independent for three prior years. |
| California State | |
| Law Enforcement | - Student must be independent for three prior years. |
| | - California standards. |
| Iowa | - The dependent model and a revised budget is used for independent |
| | students over 30. |
| Louisiana | Not claimed on parental tax returns, not living with parents, not receiving funds from parents. |
| Maine | - Get status from the College Scholarship Service. |
| Massachusetts | - Basically federal except we consider married students independent. |
| Montana | - College Scholarship Service. |
| Nebraska | - This varies among institutions. |
| New Jersey | |
| Tuition Aid Grants Educational | - Federal plus \$1,400 income in base year Federal and criteria established by the New Jersey Educational |
| Opportunity Fund | Opportunity Fund Board of Directors. |
| Program | |
| Basic Scholarship | |
| Program, Old Tuitio | |
| Grant Program, Pub Tuition Aid Program | |
| Incentive Grants | - Federal plus special state requirements. |
| New York | |
| Tuition Assistance | Mary landary and in saled for only has some |
| Program Ohio | - Tax dependency question asked for only two years Student must not have resided with parents, been claimed as a tax |
| 01120 | exemption by parents, received no financial support from parents |
| | during previous year, current year, or subsequent year. - Veteran, out of high school six years or more, or compliance |
| Pennsylvania | - Veteran, out of high school six years or more, or compliance |
| | with three criteria demonstrating nonsupport from parents and demonstrating sufficient resources to be independent. |
| South Dakota | demonstrating sufficient resources to be independent |
| Indian Scholarship | |
| Program | - Indian by blood descent. |
| Vermont | - Financial independence must be demonstrated for one additional prior year than the federal requirement. |
| Virginia | prior year chan the rederar requirement. |
| Tuition Assistance | |
| Grant Program | financial dependence or independence is irrelevant to this program. |
| Washington | Students must be financially independent of their parents for five years. They may still apply if they submit parental data |
| | and meet other eligibility criteria. |
| American Samoa | - Agency developed criteria. |
| | |

COMMENTS TO AID SURVEY READERS TO BETTER UNDERSTAND YOUR AGENCY'S 1980-81 POSITION

| Alabama | Faced with insufficient income to meet the demand for education dollars, the legislature reduced grant funding in 1980-81 to the point that only 52% of allotted SSIG | | |
|---------------|---|--|--|
| | dollars will be matched. | | |
| Colorado | We continue to operate a decentralized program relying extensively upon higher education institutions for program administration. | | |
| Connecticut | We intend to submit legislation to the 1981 legislature which would consolidate state student aid programs. | | |
| elaware | This is the second year of operation for this program under centralized administration. | | |
| lorida | Approximately one out of five timely, eligible, needy applicants are awarded. | | |
| Georgia | SSIG program in Georgia is still underfunded. First priority is to secure full funding of this program. | | |
| daho | The state of Idaho is experiencing a rather dramatic loss in revenue, necessitating a holdback of state general account money. The SSIG has been assessed a holdback of \$2,600 so far. Any holdback of state matching funds can | | |
| Illinois | be made up with institutional matching funds. Limiting \$1,900 maximum to only those students with extensive financial need. About 13,000 applicants who would have applied after September 15, 1980, for 1980-81 will not be assisted. | | |
| ndiana | Our Agency did not have adequate funding to full fund grants or freedom of choice for the 1980-81 academic year. Freedom of choice was funded at 75% per student award and grants ranged from a 35% to a 75% funding level per studen based upon TFC categories. | | |
| owa | State is faced with a mandatory 3.6% cut in funds. Furthe prospects for additional funding for 1981-82 are not good. Agency will temporarily be in a status quo position. | | |
| entucky | Projected shortfall in state revenue necessitates budget cuts throughout state government. The KHEAA budget must be reduced by \$400,000 for the current fiscal year. Thus, some agency services have been reduced or cut altogether. Student grants have not been reduced. However, no school changes are being processed for the spring semester. Major data processing changes have been postponed for a year, and mass mailing of FAFs to high school seniors by KHEAA has been discontinued for 1980-81. | | |
| aryland | 1980-81 is our first year of total year computer services, so we will be happy after such transition year. No major problems but a lot of hard work. | | |
| lassachusetts | First year of change from portability to reciprocity. Separate awards for nursing eliminated; now part of general scholarship. | | |
| ichigan | Competitive scholarships had a \$6,000,000 shortfall. All awards reduced by \$250 per recipient. No funds available for late tuition grant awards; such awards have been made in most years. | | |
| innesota | General state budget reductions. Lost funds t replace BEOG reductions in order to save data processing. Create other savings from other programs. The scholarship and grant expenditures are reported to MHECB in lump sum in many cases. For the purpose of this survey, this total | | |
| | expenditure figure has been divided into 42% for scholar- ships for 1980-81 and 58% for grants for 1980-81. | | |
| fissouri | Changes in student enrollment patterns and increases in maximum award amounts will probably result in substantial numbers of unfunded eligibles after two years of full | | |

| State | |
|----------------|---|
| Nebraska | This agency acts in the capacity of a state coordinating agency with advisors, not governing authority. It also serves as the state 1202 commission and/or the administration of federal grants and passthrough funds. The agency addresses specific studies mandated by the legislature and develops studies and reports as it deems necessary to provide a statewide perspective of postsecondary education. The total agency budget over \$1 million with only \$75,000 appropriated by the state for operation. |
| Nevada | Nevada only has SSIG and operates on alternation matching structure. No state appropriation currently. Facing Proposition 13 type problem in near future. |
| New Jersey | Under restraining management and fiscal controls following a substantial 1979-80 overexpenditure. |
| North Carolina | With respect to the loan program, we have simply been inundated with applications. The grant programs have been operating smoothly for several years. |
| Ohio | Because of reduced state revenues, the state budget has been reduced 3% across the board. Another 5% cut is expected in January, 1981. An 8% cut in the OIG program may result in reductions of some students' awards. |
| Oregon | In the 1979-81 biennium the state of Oregon was short \$204 million in revenue, causing reductions in state expenditures. As a result, grant amounts were frozen at 1979-80 levels, and the application/award criteria were adjusted to make available funds cover the eligible pool of students. |
| Pennsylvania | Appropriation increase has not been sufficient to permit program adjustments in order to offset inflationary increases in income. This has resulted in rejection of an increasing percentage of applicants. |
| Rhode Island | RIHEAA has been phasing out an old scholarship program one year at a time and phasing in a new scholarship and grant program. 1980-81 seniors will be the last class covered by the old program. |
| South Carolina | 2,000 eligible students have applied but not received awards for 1980-81. |
| South Dakota | State funding is very low due to a lack of general fund revenues. The state has increased tax rates, broadened the tax base, and has cut budgets without being successful in meeting a lack of tax revenue. The state cannot go |
| Vermont | into debt. Many programs are not being funded as a result. In fiscal year 1981 we receive an 11% increase in applicants which is lowering our level of assistance by \$100. |
| Virginia | Although funding for the CSAP was not increased for the 1980-81 academic year, the number of applicants has increased by some 7,000. As a result, the number of students assisted and the size of awards offered have decreased. |
| Washington | Slightly more funding available; has allowed a 10% increase in grant amounts to neediest students. Number of students aided estimated to increase due to lower program attrition. |
| West Virginia | For the first time ever, the program failed to receive an increase in state funds. With no increase, coupled with increased costs, a decline in the number of selections has resulted. The current pool of eligible applicants for which no funds exist (approximately 1,000 currently) is the largest at this stage of the year in six years. |
| Wisconsin | Facing across-the-board cuts in state funded program of 4.4%. |

STUDENT, INSTITUTIONAL, OR AID PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED BY RESPONDING AGENCY THAT ARE NOT UNDERGRADUATE NEED BASED PROGRAMS WITH A NON-REFUNDABLE GRANT

| State | Name of Program or Programs | Funding |
|--|---|---|
| Alabama | Alabama Student Grant Program | |
| Alaska | Memorial Scholarship Loan Program | |
| Arizona | Wiche Student Exchange Program None | |
| Arkansas | N/A | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| California | Student Opportunity and Access Program Statewide Student Financial Aid Information | |
| | Program | |
| | Student Financial Aid Research and Evaluation | |
| | Program Supervised Clinical Training Grant Program | |
| | Guaranteed Student Loan Program | |
| Colorado | Work-Study | \$2,565,093 |
| | Loan Matching Scholarships | 266,215 951,392 |
| | Fellowships | 404,878 |
| | Athletic Awards | 1,001,110 |
| | Veterans Tuition Assistance National Guard Tuition Assistance | 813,827 58,100 |
| Connecticut | Aid to Dependents of Deceased or Disabled | |
| | Veterans | 1 500 000 |
| | State Supplemental Work-Study Grants State Scholarships Graduate Award Program | 1,500,000 86,000 |
| Delaware | None | |
| District of Columbia | N/A Florida Tuition Voucher Fund | |
| Florida | Florida College Level Examination Fee Waiver | |
| | Program | |
| | Florida Scholarship for Children of Deceased and Disabled Veterans | |
| | Florida Academic Scholars Fund | |
| | Florida Confederate Memorial Scholarship Fund | |
| Georgia | Florida Seminole/Miccosukee Indian Scholarship Private College Tuition Equalization Grant | |
| | Program | |
| | Law Enforcement Personnel Dependents Grant | |
| | Program North Georgia College ROTC Grant Program | |
| | North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship | |
| | Program | |
| Hawaii | State Direct Student Loan Program None | |
| Idaho | State of Idaho Scholarship Program | 143,000 (approximately 95 awards per year at \$1,500 |
| | | each) |
| | Paul L. Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program | 6,000 (4 awards at \$1,500 each in |
| Illinois | Illinois Guaranteed Student Loan Program | 1980-81) |
| | Illinois Designed Account Purchase Program | |
| | Academic Awards | |
| | Student-to-Student Grant Program Awards for Dependents of Correctional Workers/ | |
| | Policemen/Firemen Killed/Permanently Disabled | |
| | in Line of Duty | |
| Indiana | National Guard Educational Benefits Top 20 Hoosier Scholarships | 10,000 |
| | | (20 \$500 one- |
| Iowa | National Guard Education Benefits | time awards) |
| 10#4 | Optometric Training Program | |
| | Podiatric Training Program | |
| | Osteopathic Subvention Program Iowa Guaranteed Student Loan Program | |
| | Comprehensive Statewide Planning Grants | |
| | Educational Information Centers Grants | |
| | Construction Grants for Academic Facilities | |
| | (Title VII - A, HEA) Instructional Equipment Grants (Title VI - A, | |
| | HEA) | • |
| | Higher Education General Information Survey | |
| Kansas | State Student Financial Aid Training Grants Osteopathic Scholarships/Loans | 348,000 |
| Nalisas | N/A | 3,3,000 |
| Kentucky | M | |
| Kentucky Louisiana | None | |
| Kentucky Louisiana | Guaranteed Student Loan Program | |
| Kentucky Louisiana Maine | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Kentucky Louisiana Maine Maryland | Guaranteed Student Loan Program Health Professions Subsidy House of Delegate Program War Orphan Grants | |
| Kentucky Louisiana Maine | Guaranteed Student Loan Program Health Professions Subsidy House of Delegate Program War Orphan Grants POW Grants | |
| Kentucky Louisiana Maine | Guaranteed Student Loan Program Health Professions Subsidy House of Delegate Program War Orphan Grants | |

STUDENT, INSTITUTIONAL, OR AID PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED BY RESPONDING AGENCY THAT ARE NOT UNDERGRADUATE NEED BASED PROGRAMS WITH A NON-REFUNDABLE GRANT

| ame of Program or Programs | Funding |
|--|---|
| ial District Honor Scholarships | |
| olice/Corrections Scholarships | |
| phans Reimbursement Program | |
| Differential Grants | |
| tive Merit Awards | |
| College Degree Reimbursements | |
| eed Student Loan Program | |
| Pirect Student Loan Program | |
| s Dependents Assistance Program | |
| Guaranteed Student Loan | |
| lork-Study | |
| city Programs (Wisconsin, North Dakota, | |
| | |
| Student Loan | |
| and Osteopathy Loan Program | |
| | |
| e Professional Program | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| s Tuition Credit Program | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| UND | |
| and Chudant I and | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | 360,000 |
| f Governors Dental Scholarship | 82,500 |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| tional Guard Scholarship Program | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| endent Colleges Program | |
| Loan Guaranty Program | |
| tional Assistance Grants Program | |
| tional Matching Funds Program | |
| de Summer College Work-Study Program | |
| tudent Financial Assistance Training | |
| am | |
| ed Student Loan Program | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Professions Loan Program | 295,000 |
| | |
| | |
| eed Student Loan Program | |
| ee Student Loan Program | |
| - Hazlewood College Student Loan Program | |
| | |
| | — |
| | |
| cholarships | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program | |
| cholarships . Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program | 21,000 |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program ork-Study Program | 21,000 |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program ork-Study Program | |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) | 3,869,000 |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program ork-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students | 3,869,000 |
| cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students ional Undergraduate Scholarship Program | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| Cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students ional Undergraduate Scholarship Program broad parameters established by the Board | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| Cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students ional Undergraduate Scholarship Program broad parameters established by the Board ents each public college and university | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| Cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students ional Undergraduate Scholarship Program broad parameters established by the Board ents each public college and university ive certain tuition and fees for a | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| Cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students ional Undergraduate Scholarship Program broad parameters established by the Board ents each public college and university ive certain tuition and fees for a ated number of students. | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| Holarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students ional Undergraduate Scholarship Program broad parameters established by the Board ents each public college and university ive certain tuition and fees for a ated number of students. a - Wisconsin Reciprocity Agreement | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| Cholarships Guard Scholarships Veterinary Contract Program Assistance Grant Program (non-need based on equalization program) Shore Tuition Assistance Program (non-need tuition equalization program) Fowler Memorial Scholarship Program rk-Study Program Interstate Commission on Higher ion (Student Exhange Program in try) ce to Blind Students ional Undergraduate Scholarship Program broad parameters established by the Board ents each public college and university ive certain tuition and fees for a ated number of students. | 3,869,000 188,000 |
| | Guaranteed Student Loan Nork-Study Deity Programs (Wisconsin, North Dakota, and Iowa) In Student Loan I and Osteopathy Loan Program Professional Program Program Tuition Benefit Program Tuition Programs for Dependents of OWs eed Student Loan upplemental Health Loan Program arolina Insured Student Loan Program guaranteed loan program in this state) f Governors Medical Scholarship f Governors Dental Scholarship hans Scholarship Program ademic Scholarship Program ademic Scholarship Program tional Guard Scholarship Program tional Guard Scholarship Program tional Guard Scholarship Program tional Assistance Grants Program tional Assistance Grants Program tional Matching Funds Program tional Matching Funds Program tional Matching Funds Program de Summer College Work-Study Program tudent Financial Assistance Training am eed Student Loan Program ontract Program for Places in ssional Schools Professions Loan Program Loan/Scholarship Program e Nursing Loan/Scholarship Program |

STATE FUNDED STUDENT AID PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED BY STATE AGENCIES OTHER THAN THE RESPONDING AGENCY

| State | Program Title | Administering Agency | 1980-81 Appropriation | Need B Yes | ased No | # Awards |
|----------------------|----------------------------------|--|--|---------------|------------|-------------------|
| A 1 =1 = | D 1 C 1 1 1 | D 1 6 D 1 1 6 L 1 1 1 | | | _ | |
| Alabama | Dental Scholarships | Board of Dental Scholarships | \$ 228,000 | X | | 150 |
| | Medical Scholarships | Medical Schoolarship Board | \$ 711,000 | X | •• | 230 |
| | Nursing Scholarships | Alabama Board of Nursing | \$ 57,000 | | X | 57 |
| | American Legion Scholar- ship | American Legion Auxiliary | \$ 4,700 | | X | 47 |
| Alaska | None | | | | | |
| Arizona | None | | | | | |
| Arkansas | Student Guaranteed Loan | Loan Guarantee Foundation | partial | | | |
| | Program | Boan Guaranece Toungaeron | state | | | |
| | | | funding | | | |
| | Arkansas Student Loan | Loan Authority | no state | | | |
| | Authority | , | funding | | | |
| California | None listed | | | | | |
| Colorado | Colorado Energy Research | Colorado Energy Research | | | | |
| | Scholarships | Institute | \$ 213,000 | | Х | 200 |
| Connecticut | Tuition Waivers | Public College | \$1,700,000 | X | | 2,500 |
| Delaware | Aid to needy students | Delaware Technical/Comm | \$ 28,000 | X | | 50 |
| | | College | | | | |
| | Scholarships | Delaware State College | \$ 67,400 | | Х | 69 |
| | Aid to needy students | University of Delaware | \$1,566,000 | X | | 2,500 |
| | Sholarships | University of Delaware | \$ 300,000 | | X | 450 |
| District of Columbia | N/A | | | | | |
| Florida | Not applicable | | | | | |
| Georgia | Regents Opportunity | Board of Regents | \$ 500,000 | X | | 100 |
| | Grant Minority Students | | | | | |
| | Regents Cancelable | Board of Regents | \$ 200,000 | | Х | 500 |
| | Loan Scholarship | | | | | |
| | Medical, Cancelable | Medical Education | \$ 492,500 | | X | 131 |
| Hawaii | Loan Scholarship | Board | | | | |
| Idaho | | | | | | |
| Illinois | Veterans Scholarships | Department of Veteran Affairs | | | X | 15 000 |
| Indiana | | State Department of Vocational | \$6,000,000 unknown | | X | 15,000 unknown |
| riidraiid | vocational Renabilitation | Rehabilitation | unknown | | Λ. | unknown |
| _ | | | | | | |
| Iowa | Iowa Vocational Rehabil- | Vocational Rehabilitation | \$1,500,750 | | Х | 1,532 |
| | itation | Board | | | | |
| | War Orphan Benefits | Department of Veterans | \$ 28,000 | | X | 90 |
| V | N | Affairs | - | | | |
| Kansas | None Rehabilitation | <u> </u> | | : | | |
| Kentucky | Renabilitation | State Department of Occupational Education | N/A | Х | | N/A |
| | Rural Kentucky Medical | | N7 / A | | v | N1 / A |
| | Scholarship | Kentucky Medical Association | N/A | | X | N/A |
| | Rural Kentucky Dental | Kentucky Board of Dentistry | N/A | | 77 | 27./4 |
| | Scholarship | Rentdery Board of Dentistry | N/A | | Х | N/A |
| | VA Dependent Scholarship | Kentucky Veterans Affairs Office | N/A | | v | NI / A |
| Louisiana | T. H. Harris Scholarship | Scholarship Division, GSCES | \$ 32,328 | | X | N/A 8,320 |
| Maine | North American Indian | Commissioner Veterans Service | Ψ <u>32,320</u> | | | 0,320 |
| | Scholarship | The state of the s | | | Х | |
| | War Orphans | Veterans Services | | | X | |
| Maryland | Other Race Grants | State Board for Higher | approximately | | | |
| • | | Education | \$2,000,000 | Х | | |
| Massachusetts | Matching Grants | Administration and Finance | \$3,750,000 | <u>X</u> | | 4,000 |
| Michigan | None | | ······································ | | | |
| Minnesota | Minnesota Indian | State Department of | \$ 650,000 | X | | 1,100 |
| | Scholarship Program | Education | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

STATE FUNDED STUDENT AID PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED BY STATE AGENCIES OTHER THAN THE RESPONDING AGENCY

| State | Program Title | Administering Agency | 1980-81 Appropriation | Need Yes | Based <u>No</u> | # Awards |
|----------------|---|----------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------|--------------------|-------------|
| | | | | | | |
| Mississippi | | | | | | |
| Missouri | | | | | | |
| Montana | | | | | | |
| Nebraska | N/A | | | | | |
| Nevada | | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | | | | | | |
| New Jersey | | | | | | |
| New Mexico | None | | | | | |
| New York | | | —— <u>, —, —, —, —</u> | | | |
| North Carolina | Teachers Scholarship Loans for Prospective Teachers and Teachers of | Board of Education | \$ 275,000 | Х | | 550 |
| | Mentally Retarded | | | | | |
| | Educational Loans for Studies Medical and Related | Department of Human Resources | \$1,129,743 | X | | 350 |
| | Plan Assuring College Education in North Carolina, PACE, Inc. | Department of Human Resources | not known | Х | not | known |
| North Dakota | North Dakota Indian Scholarship | Indian Affairs Commission | \$ 50,000 | Х | | 54 |
| Ohio | None | | | | | |
| Oklahoma | | | | | | |
| Oregon | | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | | | | | | |
| South Carolina | Guaranteed Student Loan Program | South Carolina Loan Corp. | \$8,000,000 | | X | 5,000 |
| | State Grants Program | Comm. On Higher Education | \$68,000 | | X | 160 |
| | Medical and Dental | Dept. Health and Environ- | \$403,000 | | Х | 65 |
| | Scholarships | mental Control | 01// 070 | •• | | 2 000 |
| | South Carolina Defense Scholarship Fund | Com. on Higher Education | \$144,370 | Х | | 3,800 |
| South Dakota | Guaranteed Student Loan | South Dakota Education | None | X | | N/A |
| Bouth Dakota | Program | Assistance Corp. | Notic | Λ | | N/A |
| Tennessee | None | induction dolp. | | | · | |
| Texas | | | | | | |
| Utah | | | | | | |
| Vermont | Senatorial Scholarship | Vermont Department of Education | \$30,000 | Х | | 100-200 |
| Virginia | | | | | | |
| Washington | Tuition and Fees Waiver | | \$2,155,000 | Х | | 5,900 |
| West Virginia | None | | | | | |
| Wisconsin | `` | | | | | |
| Wyoming | Wyoming Superior Student | Legislature | unknown | | Х | 46 |
| American Samoa | | | | | | |

STATISTICS BASED ON LIMITED SAMPLE REPORTING

| # States Reporting | = | 32 | # States Reporting | = | 14 |
|--|---|-----------|-----------------------------|---|-----------|
| # Programs Involved | = | 47 | # Programs Involved | = | 18 |
| # Applicants | = | 1,776,737 | # Applicants | = | 566,378 |
| # Recipients | = | 795,749 | Average Dependent Applicant | | |
| # Rejects for Inability to Demonstrate Need | | | Gross Parent Income | = | \$ 18,621 |
| | = | 373,125 | # States Reporting | = | 14 |
| % of Applicants Who are Recipients | = | 44.8% | # Programs Involved | = | 18 |
| % of Applicants No-Need Rejects | = | 21.0% | # Recipients | = | 235,071 |
| | | | Average Dependent Applicant | | |
| | | | Gross Parent Income | = | \$ 15,855 |

Responsibility For Adjusting of Program Awards Lies With:

Program Reapplication Needed: Responsibility For Auditing School Performance in Program Administration Lies With:

State Private Audit Office Auditors Others Agency School Other Yearly Other Agency State Alabama Student Assistance Program Arizona Incentive Grant Program Arkansas State Scholarship Program California Cal Grant A Cal Grant B Each adjusts own Grant awarded for Cal Grant C award with colength of program. operation of others. Bilingual Teacher Development Grant Cal State Graduate Fellowship Supervised Clinical Training Program School determines Law Enforcement Personnel Combined level of credits: Dependents Scholarship federal, state, Program institutional. Colorado Student Incentive Grants Student Grants Graduate Grants X Connecticut Х State Scholarship Program -Undergraduate State Supplemental/Work-Study Grants No reapplication State Scholarship Graduate Award Program Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) Delaware Postsecondary Scholarships District of Columbia Incentive Grants Florida Student Assistance Grants Georgia Student Incentive Grant Program Hawaii Student Incentive Grants Idaho Student Incentive Grants Illinois Monetary Award Program Indiana State Scholarships Educational Grants Freedom of Choice Grants Iowa Scholarship Program Tuition Grant Program Voc/Tech. Tuition Grants

Responsibility For Adjusting of Program Awards Lies With:

Program Reapplication Needed:

Responsibility For Auditing School Performance in Program Administration Lies With:

| | | | | | | | State Audit | Private | |
|---|----------|-------------|----------------|--------------|---------------------------------------|--------------|----------------|-------------|---|
| State | Agency | School | Other | Yearly | Other | Agency | Office | Auditors | Others |
| Kansas | | | | | | | | | |
| State Scholarships | | Х | | Х | | x | | | |
| Tuition Grants | | x | | <u>x</u> | | X | | | |
| Kentucky | | | | | | | | | |
| Grant Program | Х | | | x | | x | | | |
| Louisiana | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grant | | Х | | X | | Х | | | |
| Maine | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | X | | | X | | Х | | | |
| Maryland | | | | | | | | | |
| General State Scholarships | X | | | X | | | X | | |
| Senatorial Scholarships | X | | And Senator | Х | If aid is to increase; other-wise no. | | Х . | | |
| Proprietary School Grants | X | | | X | | | <u>x</u> | | |
| Massachusetts | | | | | | | | | |
| General Scholarships | | X | | X | | | Х | X | |
| Consortium Scholarships Michigan | | | Not Applicable | | Not Applicable | | | | Not Applicable |
| Competitive Scholarships | х | | | х | | х | x | х | |
| Tuition Grants | <u>x</u> | | | <u>x</u> | | x | x | X | |
| Minnesota | | | | | | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | х | | | 5- X | | | x | | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | X | | | X | | | x | | |
| Mississippi | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | | x | | X | | X | Х | X | Depends on school. |
| Missouri | | | | | | | | | |
| Student Grants | | X | | X | | X | X | | |
| Montana | | | | | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | | X 👙 | | | Х | Х | For private schools. |
| Nebraska | | | | | | • | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | Х | | Х | | X | | | Institutions are having their SSIG program included in the audit of their other Title IV programs. |
| Nevada | | | | | | | | | ricit iv programs. |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | х | | x | | m. | |
| New Hampshire | | | | - | | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | х | | Х | | x | | | |
| New Jersey | | | | | | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | | X | | X | | X . | X | | |
| Garden State Scholarships | | Х | | X | | | X | | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | | X | | X | | X | | | |
| Basic Scholarships, Incentive Grants, Public Tuition Aid | | X | | X | | Х | х | | |
| Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | | | | | | | | | |
| Garden State Graduate Fellowship | | | | | Continued full- time enrollment. | X | X | | |
| New Mexico Incentive Grants | | Х | | v | | x | Х | | |

Responsibility For Adjusting of Program Awards Lies With:

Scholarship Program

Х

Program Reapplication Needed: Responsibility For Auditing School Performance in Program Administration Lies With:

State Audit Private State Agency School Other Yearly Other Office Auditors Others New York Tuition Assistance Program Regents Scholarship Program North Carolina Student Incentive Grant Legis. Tuition Grant Board of Governors Medical Once named a 3GMS Scholarships scholar, award is good for 4 years, if grades stay up. Board of Governors Dental Four year duration. Scholarship Brooks Foundation Scholarship Awarded for 4 years. Turrentine Foundation Scholarships North Dakota Tuition Assistance Grants Student Financial Assistance Ohio Instructional Grants Oregon Need Grant Cash Award Pennsylvania Higher Education Grants Rhode Island Scholarship and Grant Program South Carolina Tuition Grant Program South Dakota Health Professions Loan Program State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equalization Grants Tennessee Student Assistance Awards Texas Tuition Equalization Grants Public Education Grants Utah Incentive Grants Vermont Incentive Grant Program Virginia College Scholarship Assistance Program Tuition Assistance Grant Program Washington Need Grant Program West Virginia Higher Education Grant Program Wisconsin Tuition Grant Program Higher Education Grant Program Indian Student Assistance Wyoming Incentive Grants As required Federal American Samoa

Х

PERSONNEL DISTRIBUTION AS REPORTED IN ANSWER TO QUESTION:

C. Agency Personnel

1. Total Number of Personnel Employed for 1980-81

GROUP 1 - 1 to 5 FTE Employees (17 States Reporting)

| Type of Personnel | Average # FTE Personnel | Average % Civil Service | Average % Female | Average % Minorities |
|---------------------------|----------------------------|-------------------------|------------------|-------------------------|
| Professional Technical | 1.06 | 37.6 18.2 | 22.3 72.7 | 0 |
| Clerical | 1.13 | 61.8 | 100.0 | 5.8 |
| Part-Time Student/CWS | .07 | 100.0 | 100.0 | .0 |
| Other | .00 | .0 | .0 | .0 |
| TOTAL | 2.70 | 46.2 | 65.0 | 5.3 |

GROUP 2 - 6 to 20 FTE Employees (16 States Reporting)

| Type of Personnel | Average # FTE Personnel | Average % Civil Service | Average % Female | Average % Minorities |
|---|------------------------------------|------------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|
| Professional Technical Clerical Part-Time Student/CWS Other | 4.71 1.31 4.72 .88 .56 | 40.8 70.6 66.4 N/A N/A | 32.8 49.9 96.0 N/A N/A N/A | 18.7 16.7 32.8 N/A N/A |
| TOTAL | 12.21 | 55.7 | 62.7 | 24.7 |

GROUP 3 - 21 to 100 FTE Employees (11 States Reporting)

| Type of | Average # | Average % | Average % Female | Average % |
|---|---------------|---------------|------------------|------------|
| Personnel | FTE Personnel | Civil Service | | Minorities |
| Professional Technical Clerical Part-Time Student/CWS | 10.95 | 74.7 | 50.8 | 8.9 |
| | 4.09 | 73.7 | 60.2 | 40.9 |
| | 15.36 | 84.8 | 96.8 | 32.1 |
| | 3.11 | 32.0 | 67.1 | 30.5 |
| | 2.32 | 0.0 | 79.0 | 21.4 |
| Other | .64 | 50.0 | 77.5 | 12.5 |
| TOTAL | 36.47 | 70.0 | 74.9 | 25.0 |

GROUP 4 - 100 or more FTE Employees (7 States Reporting)

| Type of | Average # | Average % | Average % | Average % |
|---------------------------|----------------|---------------|--------------|-------------|
| Personnel | FTE Personnel | Civil Service | Female | Minorities |
| Professional Technical | 44.43 15.71 | 54.4 50.5 | 34.9 37.5 | 13.7 7.1 |
| Clerical | 106.50 | 80.1 | 87.5 | 13.9 |
| Part-Time | 39.30 | 49.9 | 78.1 58.4 | 12.9 |
| Student/CWS Other | .86 4.79 | 100.0 | 55.0 | 17.0 |
| ΨΩΨΑΤ. | 211.59 | 67.0 | 70.1 | 13.3 |

STATE AGENCIES INCLUDED IN PERSONNEL DISTRIBUTION GROUPS (FTE Employees in Parenthesis)

GROUP 1

| Alabama Arizona Connecticut Hawaii Idaho Kansas | (4.4) (5.0) (5.0) (1.0) (1.0) (4.0) | Louisiana Maine Mississippi Missouri Montana Nevada | (2.0) (2.0) (4.0) (5.0) (0.6) (0.7) | New Hampshire North Dakota South Dakota Wyoming American Samoa | (4.0) (2.0) (1.0) (3.0) (1.0) |
|--|---|--|---|--|--|
| | | GROUP 2 | | | |
| Colorado Delaware District of Columbia Iowa Maryland Massachusetts | (20.0) (5.5) (19.0) (17.0) (16.0) (12.0) | Nebraska New Mexico North Carolina Ohio Rhode Island South Carolina | (6.0) (11.0) (11.0) (17.0) (8.5) (8.0) | Utah Virginia Washington West Virginia | (19.0) (13.8) (8.5) (6.0) |
| | | GROUP 3 | | | |
| Alaska Arkansas Florida Georgia Indiana | (21.7) (26.0) (45.5) (23.0) (37.0) | Kentucky Michigan Oregon Tennessee Texas | (56.0) (22.2) (29.2) (23.0) (65.5) | Vermont | (44.0) |
| | | GROUP 4 | | | |
| California Illinois Minnesota | (142.0) (232.0) (108.0) | New Jersey New York Pennsylvania | (213.0) (338.0) (345.0) | Wisconsin | (103.0) |

Will new state

| | Is trend in | n your | Would in | creased | funds be | |
|----------------|-------------|----------|----------|---------|------------|----|
| | state towar | • | federal | | if federa | |
| | or less sta | | matched? | | are not in | |
| State | More | Less | Yes | No | Yes | No |
| Alabama | | x | | X | | X |
| Alaska | X | | x | | | |
| Arizona | X | | | Х | | X |
| III I BOILG | Slowly | | | •- | | |
| Arkansas | X | | X | | X | |
| California | X | | X | | | |
| Colorado | | Х | X | | | |
| Connecticut | | X | X | | | X |
| Delaware | X | | Х | | X | |
| District | | | | | | |
| of Columbia | | X | Х. | | | X |
| Florida | X | | | | X | |
| Georgia | | | X | | | X |
| Hawaii | | | | | | |
| Idaho | | X . | | X | | X |
| Illinois | X | | X | | X | |
| | Some | | | | | |
| Indiana | X | | ? | | | |
| Iowa | X | | X | | X | |
| Kansas | X | | Х | | X | |
| Kentucky | Same | | X | | ? | |
| Louisiana | X | | | | | X |
| Maine | Same | | X | | | |
| Maryland | X | | Х | | X | |
| • | | | | | Limited | |
| Massachusetts | X | | X | | X | |
| Michigan | ? | | ? | | | X |
| Minnesota | X | | | X | X | |
| Mississippi | X | | X | | | X |
| Missouri | X | | | X | X | |
| Montana | Х | | Х | | | X |
| Nebraska | | X | X | | | X |
| Nevada | | X | | X | | X |
| New Hampshire | X | | X | | | |
| New Jersey | Х | | X | X | X | |
| · | | | if SSIG | | | |
| New Mexico | Х | | | X | | |
| New York | X | | X | | X X | |
| North Carolina | | X | | X | | Х |
| North Dakota | | X | X | | ? | |
| Ohio | Х | | | X | | X |
| Oklahoma | | | | | | |
| Oregon | X | | X | | X | |
| Pennsylvania | <u>x</u> | | X | | | |
| Rhode Island | Х | | Х | | | |
| South Carolina | X | | X | X | | |
| South Dakota | | X | | X | | X |
| Tennessee | X | | X | | X | |
| Texas | <u>x</u> | | X | | X | |
| Utah | | X | | X | | X |
| Vermont | ? | | X | | ? | |
| Virginia | <u> </u> | | X | | x | |
| Washington | X | | X | | X | |
| West Virginia | X | | <u> </u> | | X | |
| Wisconsin | | <u>x</u> | ? | | ? | |
| WISCOUSID | | | | | | |
| Wyoming | | | | X | | X |

| | Comments |
|----------|---|
| Alabama | - Due to the fact that educational demands are increasing at a greater rate than tax income, only 52% of the allotted SSIG fund for 1980-81 will be matched. |
| Alaska | - State loan program is not related or dependent in any way upon federal funds. |
| Arkansas | We are seeking a rather large increase in state funding to accommodate our legislative recommendation of an increase in the maximum from \$300-\$900. |
| Colorado | - Not necessarily, but increased federal funds are likely to result in decreased state funds. |
| Delaware | - There is presently a great deal of interest in student aid in Delaware. We anticipate some action will be taken by the General Assembly in the |

next session (January - June, 1981). This is a high priority for the Postsecondary Education Commission.

| District | Comments |
|---|---|
| of Columbia | - It is anticipated that the state will match the 1980-81 allotment. If |
| Florida | this is not done, we expect to match it from third party resources. |
| riorida | - State funding has increased from \$360,000 (1972-73) to \$9 million (1980-81). |
| Georgia | - Probably not to any appreciable degree. At the present time, our |
| G | SSIG funds are overmatched. Due to problems with the economy, it |
| | is difficult to determine future possibilities. |
| Hawaii | - Depends on the fiscal resources of the state and the program prioritie |
| | established by the executive and legislative branches of government. |
| Idaho | - The State Board of Education has requested more state matching funds |
| | from the legislature, but with present revenue projections, the |
| | prognosis is not good. |
| Illinois | - Modest increases anticipated. |
| Indiana | - This will be discussed by the legislature this year. It seems the |
| | general opinion is "no." In order to fully fund our programs present? |
| | with no cutback in federal funds, we need additional funds. It does |
| | not seem reasonable to assume the state would be receptive to picking |
| Iowa | up a cutback from the federal government at this time. |
| IOWa | - Although Iowa may be in for a year or two of retrenchment, the trend |
| | in student aid appropriations has been steadily upward for the past |
| Kansas | ten years. |
| nano do | Our state has been modest in its programs, but has provided reasonable increases each year. |
| Kentucky | - Uncertain. |
| Maine | - State does not care about federal funds. At present level. |
| Maryland | - Federal SSIG is a good motivation for increased state effort and |
| | passage of new state legislation as needed. |
| Massachusetts | - Despite our historical underfunding, it is becoming more difficult to |
| | receive increases in legislative appropriations. This year, we were |
| | essentially level funded. |
| Michigan | - The future state economic fortunes are very unclear and unstable due |
| | in a large part to auto industry problems. |
| Minnesota | - Dependent upon general state revenue situation. |
| Missouri | - Already greatly overmatched by state funds. |
| Nebraska | - Currently, the state of Nebraska does not appropriate an amount equal |
| | to match the federal SSIG allotment. Those state owned or controlled |
| | institutions receive an amount that is designated for SSIG matching. |
| | However, this is incorporated in their budgets and no separate or |
| N T | direct appropriation is made for the federal SSIG program in total. |
| New Jersey | - State funding is controlled by the annual appropriations cycle. |
| | Additional funds tend to be approved as a result of tuition increases |
| New Mexico | and general cost of education increases. |
| | - This state is required to operate on a balanced budget. We do not |
| WILL OUIOIING | print "funny money." We must live within the limits of our financial |
| | print runny money: we must live within the limits of our financial |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher advertigations. |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an |
| lorth Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get anincreasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. |
| North Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any |
| Vorth Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. - With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the |
| North Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure |
| North Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up |
| | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported |
| Oregon . | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. |
| Oregon . | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest |
| Oregon . | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two |
| Oregon . | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however. |
| Oregon . | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the |
| Pregon Pennsylvania | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two |
| Pregon Pennsylvania Hode Island | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. |
| Pregon Pennsylvania Hode Island | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" |
| Pregon Pennsylvania Hode Island | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless |
| Pregon Pennsylvania Hode Island | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive |
| Pennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. |
| Pregon Pennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. |
| ennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but |
| ennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but little else. In effect, funding will remain constant. Increased |
| ennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but little else. In effect, funding will remain constant. Increased federal funds (through SSIG) would be matched through the overmatch |
| Pennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota ermont irginia | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but little else. In effect, funding will remain constant. Increased federal funds (through SSIG) would be matched through the overmatch found in the current appropriation. |
| Pennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota ermont irginia | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but little else. In effect, funding will remain constant. Increased federal funds (through SSIG) would be matched through the overmatch found in the current appropriation. Contingent on state revenues and increases in student charges. Funding |
| ennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota ermont irginia | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but little else. In effect, funding will remain constant. Increased federal funds (through SSIG) would be matched through the overmatch found in the current appropriation. Contingent on state revenues and increases in student charges. Funding could "level off" if state financial picture remains uncertain. |
| ennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota ermont irginia | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but little else. In effect, funding will remain constant. Increased federal funds (through SSIG) would be matched through the overmatch found in the current appropriation. Contingent on state revenues and increases in student charges. Funding could "level off" if state financial picture remains uncertain. Wisconsin, like most states, is having fiscal problems. How changes |
| ennsylvania hode Island outh Dakota ermont irginia | capabilities. It is not likely that higher education will get an increasing share of scarce tax revenues in the near term. With inflation and a statewide crop failure, it is unlikely that any agency will be given an increase. Our state does not like to have the heavy hammer of the federal government requiring more state expenditure with the ultimate possibility that the "soft" money will dig up and leave the states holding the entire bag. At the present time, the state's fiscal position is not good. All agencies have experienced a 15% reduction in state funds for 1980-81. However, the trend in higher education financing appears to be one of "high tuition, high financial aid." As tuition increases to keep up with inflation in the cost of instruction, increases in state supported financial aid appear likely to offset these cost increases for needy students. After four years of level state funding (1974-75 to 1979-80) modest increases (averaging 4%) were received during each of the last two years. Continued increases may be forthcoming regardless; however, increased federal funds requiring a state match would enhance the likelihood of increased state funds. Not necessarily. A shortfall in government revenues will continue a "tight money" appropriation situation for the next three to four years unless economic conditions improve. Most programs will be happy to survive the problem, let alone see any significant funding increases. Depends on state revenues. The increases in funding we anticipate will reflect inflation but little else. In effect, funding will remain constant. Increased federal funds (through SSIG) would be matched through the overmatch found in the current appropriation. Contingent on state revenues and increases in student charges. Funding could "level off" if state financial picture remains uncertain. |

| | Prefer More Federal Control or More State Involvement In Student Aid? | | | Y | Direction You Feel Schools in Your State Prefer For Control of Financial Aid: | | | |
|-------------------------|---|------------------------|-----------------------------------|----------------------------|---|--------------------|----------------------------|--|
| State | More Federal Control | Balance Good Now | More State Responsi- bility | More Federal Control | Like It Is | More State Control | More Institutional Control | |
| Alabama | | х | | : | | х | | |
| Alaska | | | х | | | | х | |
| Arizona | | | х | | | x | : | |
| Arkansas | | | ; X | 1 | х | x | | |
| California | | | x | <u> </u> | | x | | |
| Colorado | | ! | x | | | | | |
| Connecticut | | : : | : Х | <u>i</u> | _ | X | | |
| Delaware | | | х | i • | x | | | |
| District of Columbia | | x | | | Х | | | |
| Florida | | <u>x</u> | | | х | | : | |
| Georgia | | х | | | · x | | : | |
| Hawaii | | | Х | | | Х | | |
| Idaho | | Х | <u> </u> | | х | | | |
| Illinois | | | x | | | Х | | |
| Indiana | | X | | | х | | | |
| Iowa | | | <u> </u> | | Х | | x | |
| Kansas | | x | <u> </u> | | х | | | |
| Kentucky | | | x | | | <u>-</u> . | <u>x</u> . | |
| Louisiana | | х | : | | х | | | |
| Maine | | | , X | | | | : | |
| Maryland | | | х . | | | <u>-</u> | x | |
| Massachusetts | | | х | | х | | | |
| Michigan | | , | x | , | | хх | <u>x</u> . | |
| Minnesota | | | Х | | | | i : | |
| Mississippi | | ļ | х | | | x | : | |
| Missouri | | х | . . | | - | <u> </u> | | |
| Montana | | <u>.</u> | х | 1 | | х | | |
| Nebraska | | 1 | x | | | | X | |
| Nevada | | | X | <u> </u> | | | | |

Prefer More Federal Control Or More State Involvement In Student Aid

| Alabama | - | Prefer balance at present. If continuous charges and proposed changes could be eliminated for a period of time, the current could possibly be good. |
|--------------|---|--|
| Colorado | - | Prefer States assuming more responsibility. |
| Hawaii | - | Each State has its own unique problems/requirements/needs and should be given the flexibility to correct its problems and determine its needs without too much federal direction and control. |
| Illinois | - | Our State purposes are not necessarily the same as federal purposes. |
| Iowa | - | Federal contracts fail to allow for the vast differences among state programs and priorities. Federal direction creates a paperwork overload and unnecessary administrative expense at both State and Federal levels. |
| Maine | - | Feds too positive. States need more flexibility. |
| Maryland | - | The Federal has not yet motivated States and institutions to put forth reasonable aid efforts. The Federal far outweighs the other. |
| Michigan | - | Currently the Feds are calling most, if not all of the shots, which needs to be altered to provide greater "outside" participation. |
| Minnesota | - | State policy is designed for an effective partnership which we believe should involve less prescriptive regulation. |
| Nebraska | - | It is receptive to more Federal $\underline{\text{funds}}$ with less Federal $\underline{\text{control}}$, |
| New Jersey | - | Federal programs should continue as a National base with each State assuming responsibility for additional programs based on its own needs and commitments. |
| North Dakota | - | We know far better than the Feds what unique needs our State has, and what solutions may work. Let the Feds use the BEOG for their ends, and let us use SEOG, CWSP, NDSL, SSIG to further our needs. |
| Oregon | - | States such as our are committed to aiding our students and have a better understanding of the need for funds and how they should be distributed. |
| Pennsylvania | - | Impact of direct funding of students through BEOG and increasing BEOG per student is impacting on state determination of its higher education offering - should be more federal support directly to State Student Aid Program. |
| Rhode Island | - | Federal program tends to be formula oriented rather than real need oriented e.g. BEOG off-campus allowance of $\$1,100$ for living expenses. |
| South Dakota | - | We must remember the "Golden Rule"- he who has the gold makes the rules. Changes from the HEA reauthorization address many state concerns and we are satisfied with the federal/state balance as found in law. |
| Texas | - | Our stand on the "All non-profit institutions" issue is an example. |
| Washington | - | The balance is good but the States could provide more assistance in the FISAP process by conducting studies concerning distribution and utilization of funds, aggregate need by State and awarding of supplemental funds. |
| Wisconsin | - | State's should administer the BEOG Program. |
| Wyoming | - | States, based on local requirements should have more control over where funds go. |

Prefer More Federal Control or More State Involvement In
Student Aid?

Direction You Feel Schools in Your State Prefer For Control of Financial Aid:

| | Student A | id? | | Fi | inancial Ai | .d: | |
|-------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------|-------------------------|--------------|-----------------|-----------------------|----------------------------|
| State | More Federal Control | Balance Good Now | More State Responsi- | More : | Like It ' Is | More State Control | More Institutional Control |
| | CONLIGI | NOW | bility | Control | | | |
| Virginia | | | X | | | X | |
| Mashington | | Х | | | X | | |
| West Virginia | | Х | | | х | | |
| √isconsin | | | Х | | X | | Х |
| Wyoming | | | Х | - | | | |
| American Samoa | | х | | 1 | Х | | |
| New Hampshire | | х | | | Х | | |
| New Jersey | | | X | , | | | х |
| New Mexico | ···· | X | | ! | | х | |
| New York | Х | | | | | X | |
| North Carolina | | | Х | ! | | | X |
| North Dakota | | | Х | | | | |
| Ohio | | Х | | | Х | | |
| Oregon | | | Х | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | Х | | | | |
| Rhode Island | | | Х | | Х | | |
| South Carolina | | | Х | | | Х | |
| South Dakota | | х | | | | · · · · · · | |
| Tennessee | | | х | | | | <u> </u> |
| Texas | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | Х | | | | |
| Utah | | Х | | | Х | | |
| Vermont | | | Х | | | | |

Direction You Feel Schools In Your State Prefer For Control of Financial Aid

| Colorado | _ | Schools would prefer a reduction of both State and Federal direction and control. |
|--------------|---|---|
| Georgia | - | For schools the control does not seem to be the issue, but rather the timing of issuances from Washington. Last minute changes or directions certainly disrupt the Financial Aid Community. |
| Illinois | = | The state remains more sensitive to relative need and is helping families not helped by Federal Grant Programs. |
| Minnesota | _ | From the schools there are mixed reactions to this question. |
| Missouri | | The schools in our State are not certain how they feel about this issue. |
| North Dakota | - | Schools would prefer to strengthen the campus based program with the State Agency as a support system. |
| Oregon | - | Schools would prefer fewer outside controls with the schools being responsible for delivering Aid to students based on their own priorities. |
| Pennsylvania | _ | Increased flexibility for the Financial Aid Officer. |
| Rhode Island | _ | Maybe some variation between Private and Public Schools. |
| South Dakota | - | The State Association of Financial Aids Administrators would like to see more flexibility in the administration of campus-based programs and a greater role in setting the direction of programs at the State and Federal levels. |
| Texas | _ | Schools have a wide variety of opinion. |
| Wisconsin | _ | They (schools) would probably opt for more control themselves. |
| Wyoming | - | We are not in a position to know detailed views from schools. However, we |
| | | do see an antagonism toward programs that do not encourage student responsibility. |



IMPACT ANTICIPATED ON PROGRAMS FROM THE PROPOSED SINGLE FEDERAL NEEDS ANALYSIS

| Alabama | Limited effect. We currently utilize BEOG full data tape for |
|---------------|---|
| | needs analysis information. Obviously, programs will have to |
| | be adjusted/revised to meet new tape format of single federal |
| | needs analysis system if tape is available. |
| California | Probable student and parent confusion. Difficulty in packaging |
| | increased. |
| Colorado | To the extent that needs analysis produces family contribution |
| | expectations that are the same as those produced by uniform |
| | methodology, we expect no change. |
| Delaware | Impact will probably be minimal depending on the extent of |
| | computerization in the future. |
| lorida | The single federal needs analysis form will mandate our Agency |
| | to develop a supplemental application form to collect state |
| | specific data requird by Florida statute governing the Florida |
| | Student Assistance Grant. |
| Georgia | Probably; the comparisons have not yet been made. |
| llinois | The new taxation rate on assets will bring pressure upon our |
| | current system of needs assessment. May force change as to |
| | when applications are to be received. |
| ndiana | Our Agency has residency requirement for eligibility to our |
| | program. Currently, we have an overprint on the CSS form |
| | which allows us to collect specific data needed. From our |
| | understanding, the free form would not make provisions for |
| | this. |
| owa | ICAC contracts with ACT for data processing. The change in |
| | forms and the impact of a central processor will likely be |
| | significant. |
| ansas | If state agency overprints on applications becomes a problem, |
| | then we'll have problems. If that topic is resolved, then no |
| | problems. The impact on the analysis may be great but no way |
| | of knowing now. |
| entucky | Reevaluate our application procedure. |
| laine | We get good service from the College Scholarship Service. |
| | Federal program will be too inflexible. All states will have |
| | to do it their way. With small amount of money available, |
| | states may get out and go own way. |
| laryland | Would mean more applications, but perhaps greater difficulty in |
| • | controlling the timing of applications and in seeking the unique |
| | student information needed for our many state programs. |
| lassachusetts | There will be an impact on our operation whether we decide to |
| | use this format or not. |
| lichigan | Impact will depend upon final federal action. Depends upon if |
| Ü | a uniform methodology exists or just a "federal system." If |
| | federal need determination will change, it will be carefully |
| | reviewed by our office prior to a decision. |
| | |
| linnesota | We must obtain specialized information on residency high school |
| linnesota | We must obtain specialized information on residency, high school rank, and previous college attendance. The single form may not |

| State | |
|----------------|---|
| Missouri | By 1982-83, we will be prepared to use BEOG tape input if necessary but hope to have the option of state agency questions on the forms. We are also concerned about the impact of need. |
| New Hampshire | Depends on federal need analysis model. |
| New Jersey | Will have to reevaluate our eligibility and application relationship. |
| North Carolina | We'll be forced to accept the federal system and discard the present private systems. |
| North Dakota | We would have to use it and hope that it were more responsive to the real world than the BEOG system. Imperfect as it is, a needs assessment model is far preferable to the BEOG type of rationing system. |
| Oregon | The criteria for awarding and reviewing of the application will be altered. Less information available may necessitate an additional form or more validation requirements placed on schools by the state. |
| Pennsylvania | Increased pressure on PHEAA to adopt the single need analysis for use in state program. |
| Rhode Island | Can't tell at this point. |
| Tennessee | We don't know at this point the nature of the impact. |
| Texas | We do not yet know just how the single form will affect us. |
| Utah | Institutionally. |
| Vermont | Don't know. Will have to wait until Higher Education Act becomes law and impact is reviewed for 1982-83. |
| Virginia | Any change in procedure would affect the administration of our programs. It is possible that some changes would affect the policies behind our programs as well. If, for example, the schedule of expected family contribution changes significantly, the calculation of CSAP awards is likely to be adjusted to reflect that change. |
| Washington | Completely, unless states acquiesce to the methodology of needs assessment proposed by the federal system and use the measurement for the administration of state student financial aid, the process is complicated rather than simplified. States could end up using two independent measurements of need for student financial aid: one for state, and one for federal. |
| West Virginia | Unless there will be space available to incorporate state questions, it will necessitate reinstituting separate agency application forms. The adoption of the BEOG computating over the UM would directly impact on eligibility for state aid both in terms of eligible students and dollars required. |
| Wisconsin | Impact uncertain since federal plans and services to state are unknown at this time. |

MULTIPLE DATA ENTRY PARTICIPATION

Currently, Pennsylvania is the only state involved in Multiple Data Entry as an official MDE processor under contract with Basic Grants. In answer to the question "do you anticipate participating in the next three years" Connecticut answers "we will participate only if the Feds mandate that the BEOG needs analysis be used for the Federal campus-based programs" and the other respondents either checked "No" or left the question blank. All states using CSS, ACT, or Basic Grant applications to drive their state programs are participating in Multiple Data Entry in a passive way, but there is apparently little sentiment for active participation outside of Pennsylvania in the near future.

STATES WHO WOULD USE THE SINGLE FEDERAL NEED ANALYSIS TO DRIVE ITS PROGRAMS

| State | |
|----------------------|--|
| Alabama | If available. |
| Arkansas | Probably. |
| Colorado | Institutions conduct our needs analyses. |
| Connecticut | Yes. |
| Delaware | Yes. |
| District of Columbia | If it does not conflict with our current procedures. |
| Florida | Yes. |
| | |
| Hawaii | Based on current understanding of program. |
| Indiana | It seems that in addition to the form, we would have to reinstate a state scholarship and grant application. |
| Iowa | If possible, ICAC will cooperate. The processor, of course, must |
| 254 | be able to deliver comparable services. We will require adequate |
| | provision for the state data needs. |
| Kansas | I don't see how we can do otherwise. Our legislation requires |
| Rations | a nationally recognized system. |
| Kentucky | Provided additional information can be gathered by using |
| Retredery | overprinted questions on the forms. |
| Louisiana | It would require a change in policies and procedures, but it |
| Bodisiana | could be arranged. |
| Maryland | But we would still need certain information unique to Maryland |
| , | state grant programs. |
| Minnesota | If this could be adapted to our needs. |
| Missouri | If ACT and CSS are not reasonable alternatives, Processing our |
| | own forms is less desirable than using the federal form, but |
| | just barely! |
| Montana | Yes. |
| New Hampshire | Yes. |
| North Dakota | If that is the only option, of course we would use it. |
| Oregon | The benefits of a single form for all programs have been |
| oregon | established in our state. It would be a top priority to |
| | maintain those benefits. |
| South Dakota | Only to the extent that end-product data is used in making |
| Boden Bakota | state-based student financial aid awards. |
| Virginia | Yes. |
| West Virginia | The federal system would be adopted providing there was not |
| HODE VII BIHIN | a drastic alteration in the amount the family is expected to |
| | contribute as compared to current expectations. |
| Wisconsin | If federal government could provide the same level and quality |
| WISCOUSIN | of service as private agencies (for example, CSS/ACT). |
| | of service as private agencies (for example, obs/hor). |

STATES WHO WOULD CONSIDER USE OF THE SINGLE FEDERAL NEED ANALYSIS TO DRIVE ITS PROGRAMS BUT WOULD REQUIRE FURTHER ANALYSIS

| State | |
|----------------|--|
| Arizona | This would be up to the institution's financial aid officer. |
| Georgia | Unknown at this time. |
| Maine | Maybe. If we have to, we will consider it. |
| Massachusetts | Unclear at this time. |
| Michigan | Depends upon the system. |
| New Mexico | Possibly. |
| North Carolina | Uncertain at this time, but probably would be forced to |
| | adopt the federal standard. Most schools in the state |
| | would use the federal standard and, thus, would we. |
| Pennsylvania | Close evaluation of single need would be made in light of |
| | state objections. Modifications would be required to target |
| | state dollars and special categories. |
| Rhode Island | Probably, but could choose option of continuing uniform |
| | methodology if provided. |
| Tennessee | Possibly. |
| Utah | Unknown at this time. |
| Vermont | Depends on the components and results of the new system. |
| Washington | Unknown at this time |

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES PLANNED FOR PROGRAM OR OPERATIONS IN 1980-81

| ς. | ۲ | а | t | ۵ |
|----|---|---|---|---|
| | | | | |

| Alaska Arizona Possible inclusion of part-time students in SSIG. Arkansas Increase maximum award from \$300 to \$900. Change name of program from Arkansas State Scholarship Program to Arkansas State Grant Program. Academic requirement from high school and college GPA to satisfactory academic progress as define by the institution. California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. None None None Plorida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information but line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Alabama | None. |
|---|----------------------|---|
| Arizona Possible inclusion of part-time students in SSIG. Arkansas Increase maximum award from \$300 to \$900. Change name of program from Arkansas State Scholarship Program to Arkansas State Grant Program. Academic requirement from high school and college GPA to satisfactory academic progress as define by the institution. California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Florida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. A new graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts Massachusetts Massachusetts | | |
| Arkansas Increase maximum award from \$300 to \$900. Change name of program from Arkansas State Scholarship Program to Arkansas State Grant Program. Academic requirement from high school and college GPA to satisfactory academic progress as define by the institution. California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. None Plorida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. None. Hawaii None. Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts | Arizona | |
| State Grant Program. Academic requirement from high school and college GPA to satisfactory academic progress as define by the institution. California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Florida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. None. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student selfhelp component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a totl-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program | | |
| State Grant Program. Academic requirement from high school and college GPA to satisfactory academic progress as define by the institution. California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. None District of Columbia None District of Columbia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. A new graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| and college GPA to satisfactory academic progress as define by the institution. California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Florida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self—help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Mopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. None Florida Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student selfhelp component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| California Legislation was enacted this year authorizing a fifth year in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Florida Unknown. Georgía Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Iowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Fentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | • • • • |
| in the Cal Grant A and B programs for students in fifth year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Plorida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Towa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | California | |
| year undergraduate programs. Legislation was also enacted that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Florida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Lowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| that requires institutions to participate in at least two of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Florida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | • • |
| Of the three federal aid programs in order to be eligible to participate in state programs. None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. None Florida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | · | |
| Colorado None. Delaware We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. District of Columbia None Florida Unknown. Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Lowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| Delaware | | |
| to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. None Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Iowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Colorado | |
| to automate the evaluation of applicant's need. None Florida Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Delaware | We plan to make use of ACT and CSS magnetic tape services |
| District of Columbia Florida | | |
| Florida Georgia Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self- help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Iowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | District of Columbia | |
| Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Florida | Unknown. |
| Reauthorization Bill. The North Georgia College ROTC Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Lowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Georgia | Program changes will be made in accordance with Federal |
| Military Scholarship Program will be implemented for the 1981-82 award year. None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Iowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Č | |
| Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student selfhelp component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Iowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Hawaii None. Illinois Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Iowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Hawaii | |
| awards in 1980-81. Significant increase in student self-help component. Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Illinois | Legislative change - First year of 2,000 (\$1,000) academic |
| Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. Iowa None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| Indiana Decentralization is being discussed. This would be an administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | • |
| administrative change. There will be a bill proposed to legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Indiana | |
| legislature to package a state award after federal monies and give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| And give each student an equal purchasing power. None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | legislature to package a state award after federal monies |
| None. Kansas Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Iowa | None. |
| direct computer corrections, changes, etc. Kentucky The implementation of a toll-free education financial aid information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Kansas | Planning on instituting an on-line hookup with ACT for |
| information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| Education Information Center. Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Kentucky | |
| Louisiana Hopefully, increase in state funding. Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | information hot line in connection with Kentucky's new |
| Maine To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in statute but will be phased in at that time. Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | Education Information Center. |
| Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Louisiana | Hopefully, increase in state funding. |
| Maryland A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Maine | To include part-time undergraduates. It is already in |
| for graduate and professional students will appear. First trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | statute but will be phased in at that time. |
| trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | Maryland | A new graduate nursing program will be added. More awards |
| to eight states. Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | for graduate and professional students will appear. First |
| Massachusetts New Board of Regents assumes responsibility in March, 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | trial run in 1981-82 for reciprocity of awards with six |
| 1981, for fall BHE program, including scholarship. | | |
| | Massachusetts | |
| 1981-82 plans not formalized at present. | | |
| | | 1981-82 plans not formalized at present. |
| | | |
| Michigan Award reduction plan for competitive scholarships and | Michigan | |
| tuition grants based on anticipated funding shortfalls. | | |
| Minnesota Legislative change - Maximum scholarship and grant award | Minnesota | |
| will be increased to \$1,400. | | will be increased to \$1,400. |
| Missouri None. | | |
| | Montana | N/A |
| | Montana | N/A |

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES PLANNED FOR PROGRAM OR OPERATIONS IN 1980-81

| Nebraska | The change are unlarged in the change of the |
|----------------|--|
| Nebraska | The changes are unknown at this time. They will be based |
| | on the status of the Nebraska State Scholarship Program. |
| | The SSIG Program will change from a decentralized |
| | (alternative match) program to a state funded centralized program. |
| Nevada | None. |
| New Jersey | Reducing out-of-state awards. Changing independent |
| , | student eligibility. |
| New Mexico | None. |
| North Carolina | Depends upon the provisions of the Reauthorization Act |
| | now pending in Congress. |
| North Dakota | No major changes contemplated. |
| Ohio | None. However, agency will seek expansion of OIG program. |
| | Because of the economy and drop in state revenues, chances |
| | of success are slim. |
| Oregon | In the past, awards have been made year round. Because of |
| | significant increases in applicants and eligible students, |
| | there will be a priority cutoff date in 1981-82. Those |
| | applying after the date will be placed on an alternate |
| | list. Independent students will be considered using prior |
| | year income similar to BEOG, and the BEOG supplement will |
| | be used for base year charges. |
| Pennsylvania | No legislative changes. Administrative changes will |
| | depend on funding level. |
| Rhode Island | Change in formula for determining appropriation. Will |
| | apply to freshmen only in 1981-82. Should result in |
| | \$500,000 additional to base \$1.5 million appropriation. |
| South Carolina | None. |
| South Dakota | The department will substantially revise regulations |
| | governing the state's SSIG program. The change is |
| | administrative and is general towards less paper work |
| | involved in the awards process. |
| Tennessee | We plan to go to BEOG Student Eligibility Index rather |
| | than parental contribution as measure of need and possibly |
| | eliminate freshmen and renewal priority. Administrative |
| | change. |
| l'exas | Awaiting passage of Higher Education Amendments to decide |
| Th -1. | upon changes needed. |
| Jtah Zamant | None. |
| /ermont | None. |
| /irginia | No legislative changes are anticipated for the 1981-82 |
| | award year. Administrative changes will be made as needed |
| | in order to improve the efficiency of our service. It |
| | is hoped that a new system of computer support for our |
| | programs will be in place for the 1982-83 award year. |
| | |
| Washington | There are no major changes in programs for the next year. |
| Vest Virginia | None. |
| Visconsin | Anticipate additional cuts in state funding due to fiscal |
| | situation of state. |
| American Samoa | All awardees will attend local community college for two |
| | years prior to transfer to four year college. |

| | Dept. of Education | 1202 Commission | State Planning Board | Other (Explain) |
|---------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------|----------------------------|---|
| Alabama Student Assistance Program | Buddetsii | X | Х | State Higher Education Planning Board and the 1202 Comm. in Alabama are the same. |
| Arizona | | | | are the same. |
| | | х | | |
| Arkansas | | | | |
| State Scholarship Program California | - . <u> </u> | X | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Cal Grant A | | Х | | |
| Cal Grant B | | X | | |
| Cal Grant C | | X | | |
| Bilingual Teacher | | | | |
| Development Grant Cal State Graduate | | X | | |
| Fellowship | | Х | | |
| Supervised Clinical | | | | |
| Training Program | | X | | SSIG not applicable |
| Law Enforcement Personnel | | | | |
| Dependents Scholarship | | Х | | |
| Program Colorado | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | | | Our commission |
| Student Grants | | | | N/A |
| Connecticut State Scholarship | | | | |
| Programs - Undergraduate | | _ X | x | |
| State Supplemental/Work | | | - A | |
| Study Grant | | X | X | |
| Contracted Stud. | | | | |
| (Ind. Colleges) Delaware | | X | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | | | Х | |
| District of Columbia | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | Х | | |
| Florida Student Assistance Grants | Х | | | 1202 Commission, State Univ. System, Division Community Colleges and Division of Vocational Education are part of the Florida Dept. of Education. |
| Georgia | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grant Program | | v | v | |
| Hawaii | | <u>X</u> | <u>X</u> | |
| Student Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| Idaho | | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants Illinois | | X | | |
| Monetary Award Program | | X | | IBHE (the same body) |
| Indiana | | | | THE (the same body) |
| State Scholarships | X | | | |
| Educational Grants | X | | | |
| Freedom of Choice Grants Iowa | X | ···· | | |
| Scholarship Program | X | X | X | Iowa has no one agency charged with statewide planning for all post- |
| Tuition Grant Program | X | Х | X | secondary education. (same as above) |
| Voc/Tech Tuition Grants | X | X | - X | (same as above) |
| Kansas | | | | |
| State Scholarships Tuition Grants | | X | | |
| Kentucky | · · - · - · | X | | |
| Grant Program | | | | Council on Higher Educa- tion, a coordinating board |
| Louisiana | | | ,,, <u>4.</u> | |
| Incentive Grant | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | Board of Regents for Higher Education |

| | Dept. of Education | 1202 Commission | State Planning Board | Other (Explain) |
|--|---------------------------------------|--------------------|----------------------------|--|
| Maine | | | | other (Bapiain) |
| Incentive Grants | X | X | X | |
| Maryland General State Scholarships | | | | State Board for Higher Education |
| Senatorial Scholarships | | | - | State Board for Higher |
| Proprietary School Grants | | | | Education State Board for Higher Education |
| Massachusetts | | · | | 200000000000000000000000000000000000000 |
| General Scholarships | | X | X | |
| Michigan Competitive Scholarships | X | | | |
| Tuition Grants | X | | | |
| Minnesota | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | | X | X | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program Mississippi | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | X | X | |
| Student Grants | | | | There have a Communication |
| Missouri | · | | | Thru Board of Trustees |
| Student Grants | | | | Coordinating Board for Higher Education is also the 1202 Commission |
| Montana Crents | | 47 | | |
| Incentive Grants Nebraska | | <u> </u> | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Incentive Grants | | | | Agency - Nebraska Coordin- |
| | | | | ating Commission for |
| Nevada | | | | Postsecondary Education |
| Student Incentive Grants | | | | Board of Regents |
| New Hampshire | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | | X | | |
| New Jersey | | | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants Garden State Scholarships | | X X | - , | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | | <u>^</u> | | |
| Basic Scholarships, | | | - | |
| Incentive Grants, | | | | |
| Public Tuition Aid Grants, | | | | |
| "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | | X | | |
| New Jersey (cont'd) | | | | • |
| Garden State Graduate Fellowship | | v | • | |
| New Mexico | | X | | |
| Incentive Grants | • | X | | |
| New York | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Program | X | Х | | |
| Regents Scholarship Program | X | | | |
| North Carolina | | | | |
| N.C. Student Incentive Grant | | | | Dept. of Community Colleges, the Board of Governors of the Univ. of North Carolina |
| N.C. Legislative Tuition | | | | |
| Grant Board of Governors Medical | | | X | |
| School | | | | Dept. of Community Colleges, the Board of Governors of the Univ. |
| Board of Governors Dental | | | | of North Carolina |
| School School | | _ | Х | |
| North Dakota | | | | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | | | X | |
| Student Financial Asst. | | | X | North Dakota Postsecondary Commission |
| Ohio | | | | |
| Instructional Grants Oregon | | | | Ohio Board of Regents |
| Need Grant | | Х | | |
| Cash Award | | <u>X</u> | | |
| | | | | |

| | | | State | |
|---|---------------------------------------|--|----------|--|
| | Dept. of | 1202 | Planning | |
| | Education | Commission | Board | Other (Explain) |
| Pennsylvania | | | | |
| Higher Education Grants | | X | | |
| Rhode Island | | | | |
| Scholarship and | | | | |
| Grant Program | X | X | | |
| South Carolina | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program South Dakota | | X | -·· | |
| | | | | |
| State Indian Scholarship Tuition Equilization | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Grants Tennessee | | X | | |
| | | 37 | | |
| Student Assistance Awards Texas | | X | | |
| | | | | (a 1: |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | | | | (Coordinating Board, TX |
| | | • | ** | College and University |
| Public Education Grants | | | X | system) |
| Utah | | | X | (same as above) |
| Incentive Grants | | | | D 1 CD |
| Vermont | | ······································ | | Board of Regents |
| | | v | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | | X | | |
| Virginia | | | | |
| College Scholarships | | | | m |
| Assistance Program | | | | The State Council of |
| | | | | Higher Education for VA |
| | | | | is a coordinating board |
| | | | | which also serves as the |
| Tuition Assistance | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | *** | state's 1202 Commission. |
| | | | | (|
| Grant Program Washington | · · · · - | | | (same as above) |
| • | | 77 | | |
| Need Grant Program West Virginia | | X | | |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | | | Decard of Decards where |
| nigher Ed. Grant Frogram | | | | Board of Regents whose members also serve on |
| | | | | WV 1202 Commission. |
| Wisconsin | | | <u>-</u> | WV 12U2 COMMISSION. |
| Tuition Grant Program | | | | None exists |
| Higher Ed. Grant Program | | | | No coordinating agency |
| "Tener pa, orant trogram | | | | exists |
| Indian Student Assistance | ···· | | | None exists |
| Wyoming | | | | NOIS CYTSES |
| Incentive Grants | | | | The Commission |
| American Samoa | | | | THE COMMITSSION |
| Scholarship Program | | | | American Samoa Community |
| ocuotatouth troktam | | | | College |
| | | | | COTTERE |

| ALABAMA Student Assistance Program | Planning, coordination, budget recommendation and new program approval |
|---|---|
| ARIZONA | and then program approvar |
| Incentive Grant Program ARKANSAS | We are the 1202 Commission |
| State_Scholarship Program | Coordinating agency |
| CALIFORNIA | |
| Cal Grant A | Cooperative relationship with Postsecondary Education Commission |
| Cal Grant B | Cooperative relationship with Postsecondary Education Commission |
| Cal Grant C | Cooperative relationship with Postsecondary Education Commission |
| Bilingual Teacher Development Grant | Cooperative relationship with Postsecondary Education Commission |
| Cal State Graduate Fellowship | Cooperative relationship with Postsecondary Education Commission |
| Supervised Clinical Training | Cooperative relationship with Postsecondary |
| Program | Education Commission |
| Law Enforcement Personnel | Cooperative relationship with Postsecondary |
| Dependents Scholarship Program | Education Commission |
| CONNECTICUT | |
| State Scholarship Programs _(Undergraduate) | The planning and our agency are the same entity |
| State Supplemental Work Grant | The planning board and this agency are the same entity |
| Contracted Stud. (Ind. Colleges) | The Board of Education is in charge of such |
| (2m2) 00220900, | planning. Its staff does most of the planning |
| | and coordinates the planning activities of all |
| | involved. |
| DELAWARE | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | Recommend action to State Budget Office, Govern General Assembly; review budgets |
| DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA | othogae hosembly, review budgees |
| Incentive Grants | The Office of State Education Affairs provides staff support to the 1202 Commission |
| FLORIDA | |
| Student Assistance Grants GEORGIA | Not applicable |
| Student Incentive Grant Program | Agency works with the Board of Regents (control public institutions), privates (control themselves), 1202 Commission (makes recommendations and Governor and legislators (make decisions as regard public institutions and money. |
| HAWAII | regard public institutions and money. |
| Student Incentive Grants IDAHO | This agency, Hawaii's 1202 Commission, with Sec. 1203 Comprehensive Planning Grant funds, undertakes planning activities covering the public and private sectors of higher education. This agency does not, however, have any legal authority to enforce implementation. |
| Student Incentive Grants | Mhia agaray is muiwawil 11 |
| Stadent incentive Grants | This agency is primarily the support staff for the State Board of Education, which is also the 1202 Commission |
| LINOIS | 1202 COMMISSION |
| Monetary Award Program DIANA | Advisory to IBHE (informal understanding) |
| DIANA State Scholarships | Providing financial accietance to 11 117 |
| Educational Grants | Providing financial assistance to eligible students attending approved public and private |
| Freedom of Choice Grants | institutions within the state. |
| VA | |
| The Communication of the Communication Grant Program For Tech Tuition Grants | ICAC, as the 1202 Commission by Governor's designation, coordinates planning projects which |
| Turbum Grunds | involve all sectors of higher education. ICAC serves all sectors in the collection and compilation of information, as the state representative on the SHEEO/NCES Communications Network, and as the administrative body for state student aid programs and certain federal programs of assistance to all types of postsecondary institutions. |

| CANSAS | 73 | | |
|--|---|--|--|
| State Scholarships | Planning for the six state universities and Kansas Technical Institute. | | |
| Tuition Grants | Planning for the six state universities and | | |
| Turcion Grants | Kansas Technical Institute. | | |
| ENTUCKY | | | |
| Grant Program | Coordinate with the Council on Higher Education for planning Student Financial Assistance. | | |
| AINE | Wa sakhan data | | |
| Incentive Grants ARYLAND | We gather data. | | |
| General State Scholarships | We impact on any matters related to financial aid budgets and legislation, etc. | | |
| Senatorial Scholarships | We impact on any matters related to financial aid budgets and legislation, etc. | | |
| Proprietary School Grants | We impact on any matters related to financial aid budgets and legislation, etc. | | |
| MASSACHUSETTS | | | |
| General Scholarships | Central and will be even stronger under new Board of Regents | | |
| MICHIGAN | multiplicate April 6th and 10 and 20 and 20 and | | |
| Competitive Scholarships | Primarily student financial aid. Some advisory role in overall planning on part of 1202 Commission | | |
| Tuition Grants | Primarily student financial aid. Some advisory | | |
| | role in overall planning on part of 1202 Commission | | |
| 4I NNESOTA | | | |
| Scholarship Program | Make recommendations of policy to the legislature and the Governor. Administer state and higher education programs. Coordinates public and private higher education systems. | | |
| Grant-in-Aid Program | Make recommendations of policy to the legislature and the Governor. Administer state and higher education programs. Coordinates public and private higher education systems. | | |
| MISSISSIPPI | , | | |
| Student Grants | Board of Trustees | | |
| MISSOURI Student Grants | A division of the Department of Higher Education Advises the department on student financial aid matters. | | |
| MONTANA | | | |
| Incentive Grants | Agency does higher education planning as well as financial aid program administration. | | |
| NEBRASKA | mbi- among has a goodinating and advices. | | |
| Incentive Grants | This agency has a coordinating and advisory capacity role for planning and recommendations, | | |
| | it is not a governing board. | | |
| NEVADA Student Incentive Grants | Cooperation effort | | |
| NEW HAMPSHIRE | Come agency | | |
| Incentive Grants NEW JERSEY | Same agency | | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | Statutory responsibility for higher education planning. | | |
| Garden State Scholarships | Statutory responsibility for higher education planning. | | |
| Ed. Opportunity Fund Program | Statutory responsibility for higher education planning. | | |
| Basic Scholarships, Incentive | Statutory responsibility for higher education | | |
| Grants, Public Tuition Aid Grants, "Old" Tuition Aid Grants | planning. | | |
| Garden State Graduate Fellowship | Statutory responsibility for higher education planning. | | |
| NEW MEXICO Incentive Grants | Solely responsible. | | |
| | | | |

| NEW YORK | |
|---|--|
| Tuition Assistance Program | None |
| Regents Scholarship Program | None |
| NORTH CAROLINA | |
| North Carolina Student Incentive Grant | Advisory role |
| North Carolina Legislative Tuition | Advisory role |
| Grant | |
| Board of Governor's Medical Scholarship | Advisory role |
| Board of Governor's Dental Scholarship | Advisory role |
| NORTH DAKOTA | |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | Agency is part of SBHE, SBHE is part of planning commission (1202) |
| Student Financial Assistance | Agency is part of SBHE, SBHE is part of planning commission (1202) |
| OHIO | COMMITS 31011 (1202) |
| Instructional Grants | It is the agency responsible for planning |
| OREGON | 10 the agency responsible for planning |
| Need Grant | The Scholarship Commission is, by statute, advisory |
| | to the Educational Coordinating Commission. |
| Cash Award | The Scholarship Commission is, by statute, advisory |
| | to the Educational Coordinating Commission. |
| RHODE ISLAND | to the Eddetichal Coolainating Commission. |
| Rhode Island Scholarship and Grant | Contribute data on need/cost/other funding sources, |
| Program | etc. |
| SOUTH CAROLINA | |
| Tuition Grant Program | Involved with student aid for the independent |
| | college sector. |
| SOUTH DAKOTA | Jordan School |
| State Indian Scholarship | None granted |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | The Secretary provides administrative support to |
| , | the 1202 Commission which is charged by law with |
| | higher education planning. |
| TENNESSEE | |
| Student Assistance Awards | Cooperative |
| TEXAS | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Coordinate and oversee higher educationalso |
| | serve as 1202 Commission |
| Public Education Grants | Coordinate and oversee higher educationalso |
| | serve as 1202 Commission |
| UTAH | SCIVE US 1202 COMMISSION |
| Incentive Grants | Central coordination, planning, budgeting, |
| -11-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1- | administration, etc. |
| VERMONT | administration, etc. |
| Incentive Grant Program | Members of the 1202 Commission |
| VIRGINIA | THE TENED CONTINUES TO IT |
| College Scholarship Assistance | The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia |
| Program | is a coordinating board which also serves as the |
| y | state's 1202 Commission |
| Tuition Assistance Grant Program | The State Council of Higher Education for Virginia |
| 11-11-11 Hestobalist Stalle Hogiali | is a coordinating board which also serves as the |
| | state's 1202 Commission |
| WASHINGTON | State 5 1202 COMMISSION |
| Need Grant Program | We are the higher education planning agency. |
| WEST VIRGINIA | we are the higher education planning agency. |
| Higher Education Grant Program | Higher Education Grant Program has input through |
| | its parent agencythe West Virginia Board of Regents |
| WISCONSIN | nogeneo |
| Tuition Grant Program | Student financial aid only |
| Higher Education Grant Program | Student financial aid only. |
| Indian Student Assistance | Student financial aid only. |
| WYOMING | Student financial aid only. |
| Incentive Grants | In general to resulting the second |
| THOCHETVE GLAHES | In general, to coordinate with the Governor, |
| AMERICAN SAMOA | legislature, and the schools. |
| Scholarship Program | Adviso and projet in south to |
| | Advise and assist in continuity of program. |

| STATE | PERSON IN CHARGE | ROLE |
|--|---|--|
| ALABAMA Student Assistance Program | Alabama Commission on Higher Education | Planning, coordination, budget recommendation, and new program approval. |
| ARIZONA | 1202 Commission | |
| ARKANSAS State Scholarship Program | Tom Spencer | Supervisor |
| CALIFORNIA | Postsecondary Education Commission | Planning |
| COLORADO Student Incentive Grants Student Grants | N/A | We develop statewide master plan for higher education and approve institutional master plans. |
| CONNECTICUT | Board of Higher Education | Directs agency staff, consultants, advisory committees, etc. |
| DELAWARE | | |
| Postsecondary Scholarships | John F. Corrozl | Executive Director of the Postsecondary Education Commission |
| DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA Incentive Grants | Eloise S. Turner | Chief, Office of State Educational Affairs. Serves as Executive Secretary of 1202 Commission. |
| FLORIDA Student Assistance Grants . | Department of Education (1202 Commission, State University System, Divi Community Colleges & Di of Vocational Education all part of the Departm | sion vision are |
| GEORGIA Student Incentive Grant Program | Diversified - Board of Regents control public institutions; privates control themselves; 120 Commission makes recommunitions; Governor and legitors make decisions as public institutions and | nenda- yisla- regard |
| HAWAII | public institutions and | i morrey. |
| Student Incentive Grants | Board of Regents, Univ. of Hawaii | |
| IDAHO Student Incentive Grants | Milton Small, Executive Director | Charge of postsecondary education planning since the office of Program Administrator was vacated in 1979 |
| ILLINOIS Monetary Award Program | IBHE | Coordination, program approval, and budget recommendations |
| INDIANA State Scholarships Educational Grants Freedom of Choice Grants | Dr. George Weathersby (Commissioner of Higher Education) | Approval of educational programs and institutional budgets at the public-supported institutions. |
| IOWA | State Board of Regents Department of Public Instruction | For state universities For public two-year institutions |

| STATE | PERSON IN CHARGE | ROLE | |
|---|--|--|--|
| KANSAS | 1202 Commission | | |
| KENTUCKY | | | |
| Grant Program | Council on Higher Education | Coordinate statewide planning for institutions of higher education | |
| LOUISIANA | | | |
| Incentive Grant | Board of Regents for Higher Education | Commissioner - Dr. William Arceneaux | |
| MAINE | | | |
| Incentive Grants | No one | | |
| MARYLAND | | | |
| | State Board for Higher Education | | |
| MASSACHUSETTS General Scholarships | Chancellor of Higher Education also chairs the 1202 Commission | | |
| MICHIGAN | | | |
| | State Board of Education | Serves as 1202 Commission for Michigan | |
| MINNESOTA | Minnesota Higher Educa- tion Coordinating Board | | |
| MISSISSIPPI | | | |
| Student Grants | Board of Trustees | | |
| MISSOURI | | | |
| Student Grants | Coordinating Board for Higher Education | Master planning, budgetary responsibilities | |
| MONTANA | | | |
| Incentive Grants | Commissioners of Higher Education | | |
| NEBRASKA | | | |
| Incentive Grants | Agency | | |
| NEVADA | | | |
| Student Incentive Grants | Dr. Al Stoess | , | |
| NEW HAMPSHIRE | | - | |
| Incentive Grants | James Busselle | | |
| NEW JERSEY | | | |
| | Board of Higher Education | Coordinating role | |
| NEW MEXICO | | | |
| Incentive Grants | Dr. Donald Stuart | Executive Secretary for the Board of Educational Finance | |
| NEW YORK | | | |
| | State Board of Regents/ | | |
| | Ouadsemial Long Range F | lan | |
| NORTH CAROLINA North Carolina Student Incentive Grants | The respective boards a presidents of Departmen | | |
| | of Community Colleges and the Board of Governors of | | |
| | the University of North | Carolina | |
| North Carolina Legislative Tuition Grants | Department of Community Colleges, the Board of Governors of the University | | |
| | of North Carolina | ~1 | |
| NORTH DAKOTA | | | |
| | The Associate Commissio | | |
| | for curriculum and rese | | |
| | for SBHE is executive o | f | |
| | 1202 Commission | | |

| STATE | PERSON IN CHARGE | ROLE | | |
|--------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|--|--|
| OHIO | | | | |
| Instructional Grants | The Chancellor of the Board | | | |
| OREGON | | | | |
| Need Grant | T. K. Olson | Executive Director | | |
| Cash Award | | Educational Coordinating | | |
| | | Commission | | |
| RHODE ISLAND | | | | |
| Rhode Island Scholarship | Board of Regents, | Research - appropriation for | | |
| and Grant Program | Commissioner of | public institutions, etc. | | |
| - | Education | • | | |
| SOUTH CAROLINA | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | South Carolina | Coordinating body | | |
| • | Commission on | • | | |
| | Higher Education | | | |
| SOUTH DAKOTA | | - | | |
| State Indian Scholarship | | • | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Dr. Harris J. | Secretary of Education and | | |
| - <u>-</u> | Wollman | Cultural Affairs | | |
| TENNESSEE | | | | |
| Student Assistance Awards | G. Wayne Brown | Executive Director of the | | |
| | - . | Tennessee Higher Education | | |
| · | | Commission | | |
| TEXAS | | | | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Commissioner of Higher | | | |
| Public Education Grants | Education - Chief Exec | | | |
| | of Coordinating Board | | | |
| UTAH | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | Commissioner T. H. Bel | 1 | | |
| | and staff of the Syste | | | |
| | of Higher Education | ••• | | |
| VERMONT | | | | |
| Incentive Grant Program | 1202 Commission | | | |
| VIRGINIA | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| | The State Council of | Coordinating board which also | | |
| | Higher Education for | serves as the state's 1202 | | |
| | Virginia | Commission | | |
| WASHINGTON | | | | |
| Need Grant Program | The Council for Post- | Engages in comprehensive planning | | |
| , | secondary Education | for Washington higher education | | |
| WEST VIRGINIA | | January State Control of the Control | | |
| Higher Education Grant Program | Board of Regents in | | | |
| | conjunction with 1202 | | | |
| | Commission. Board of Regents | | | |
| | statewide governing body for | | | |
| | public colleges and universities | | | |
| | and degree-granting au | | | |
| | all institutions | | | |
| WISCONSIN | | | | |
| Tuition Grant Program | Each governing board | | | |
| Higher Education Grant Program | Each governing board | | | |
| Indian Student Assistance | Each governing board | | | |
| WYOMING | | | | |
| Incentive Grants | No formal designation | | | |
| AMERICAN SAMOA | | | | |
| Scholarship Program | President of Community | | | |
| 1 3 | College - Chief Executive | | | |
| | Officer Higher Educati | | | |
| | | | | |

COURT ACTION PENDING

| State | |
|----------------|--|
| Alaska | Only in the collections area for 120+ day delinquent loans. Small Claims and District Courts, about 140 cases. |
| California | Cases involving overawards are handled in Small Claims Court and usually uncontested. Decisions have always been made in favor of the state. |
| Colorado | Denver District Court; to prohibit the distribution of state funds to students attending Regis College. |
| Indiana | 1979-80; U.S. District Court; incarcerated person was denied the opportunity to submit an application for state assistance due to the Commission's "good moral character" policy. Case is pending. |
| Missouri | Missourians for Separation of Church and State vs. the Coordinating Board for Higher Education, et. al. (State Circuit Court). Plaintiff is challenging participation by nine church-related institutions of higher education. |
| Nebraska | Currently, the Nebraska State Scholarship Program (L.B. 743) 1978, is being tried in the Supreme Court of Nebraska. It was appealed from the District Court of Lancaster County in which the District Judge upheld the Attorney General's opinion that the law was unconstitutional. The plaintiff, postsecondary students from various institutional sectors, are seeking a declaratory judgement of the constitutionality of the Act requiring that the defendants, the Governor, Attorney General, State Treasurer, State Auditor and Commission Members implement, administer and enforce the Act. |
| North Carolina | Judgement claims against student loan defaulters too numerous to describe here. No court action under the grant programs for several years. |
| Texas | None, other then suits for judgement in loan collections. |
| Vermont | State Court; legality of one year residency requirement to be eligible for assistance from Agency. |

| State | |
|---|---|
| Alabama | The \$300 awards are sufficient to cover the cost of tuition at state/junior community colleges. Therefore, reasonable access is assumed. |
| Arizona | All Arizona residents who are attending full-time a properly accredited program in an Arizona institution are eligible for SSIG. |
| Arkansas | Proposed increase in the maximum award will enable the student to choose the college of his/her choice, public or private. |
| California | |
| Cal Grant B | Taking into consideration the student's low income and disadvantaged background in the selection process. |
| Cal State Graduate Fellowship | Needy graduate or professional students demonstrating academic ability who may be from disadvantaged backgrounds. |
| Colorado | Decentralized administration. |
| Connecticut | |
| State Scholarship Undergraduate Programs | Awards tendered on basis of ascending TFC to limit of appropriation. |
| District of Columbia | Students must only show financial and academic progress |
| Florida | Students are allowed to attend the accredited Florida postsecondary institution of their choice and are selected on the basis of unmet need. |
| Georgia | The requirements of "substantial unmet need" and the purpose of the program to meet a portion of that amount to help assure "access" to some postsecondary school is emphasized on the application forms, brochures, etc. |
| Idaho | The decision to decentralize the SSIG program allows access to all students who apply for financial aid at any postsecondary school in Idaho. |
| Illinois | Extended deadline into award year. Half-time awards. Information Services Division. |
| Indiana | The age and citizenship requirements have made our awards available to a greater number of students. |
| Kansas | Open to all postsecondary institutions, including proprietary, AVTS, health education, and two and four year colleges. |
| Kentucky | The comprehensive SSIG program is operated as an access program. |
| Louisiana | Funds are allocated to schools whose financial aid officers determine recipients based on criteria established by state and approved by FAOs. Schools award as only one of their programs of student |
| laine | Awards to all students with need. |
| Maryland | |
| General State Scholarships | State award combined with BEOG should provide access. |
| Senatorial Scholarships | State award combined with BEOG should provide access. |
| Proprietary School Grant | Hope aid combined with BEOG, etc., to give access. |
| Massachusetts | Use of parental contribution to determine recipients gives first priority to access to higher education for the largest group with choice of institution |
| dichigan | setting award levels. Available at public two and four year colleges and universities and nonprofit, nondegree schools. Based on relative need. |
| dissouri . | We have expanded the program to include hospital schools of nursing and nonprofit area vo-tech schools. |
| lontana | Allowing schools to use SSIG in packaging awards. |
| New Jersey | |
| Tuition Aid Grants | Higher awards given to students with high financial need. |
| Garden State Scholarships | Demonstrated financial need required for selection. |
| Educational Opportunity Fund Program | Designed to provide an opportunity for higher education to disadvantaged New Jersey residents who would not be able to attend college without the remedial/developmental instruction, special services (counseling/tutoring), and financial assistance that are part of this program. |

| State | |
|-------------------------------------|---|
| Basic Scholarships, | Supported students in public and private sectors of |
| Incentive Grants, | higher education. |
| Public Tuition Aid | • |
| Grants, "Old" Tuition | |
| Aid Grants | F-11 |
| Garden State Fellowships New Mexico | Fellowship award of \$4,000. |
| North Carolina | Student need. |
| Student Incentive Grant | Program is directed to neediest students who apply |
| | within the deadline dates. |
| Legislative Tuition Grant | Designed by General Assembly to make private colleges |
| | accessible. |
| North Dakota | Access and choice go hand in hand since all schools |
| | are eligible and all students are assigned an equal |
| Ohio | Priority to low income students. Larger grants to |
| | low income students. |
| Oregon | 204 Madric Stadened |
| Need Grant | The decision to always give priority to needlest |
| | students emphasizes and continues the state's |
| | commitment to providing access. |
| Cash Grant | The program assists high academic achievers with |
| | minimal financial need. |
| Pennsylvania | Subtracting only a portion of BEOG (rather than all) |
| | from computed need (rather than from State grant) |
| | allows high need applicant substantial Basic grant |
| Rhode Island | and State grant regardless of institution choice. Agency programs build on BEOG. Limited academic |
| Midde 131aiid | requirements. Need based. Many eligible institutions. |
| South Carolina | Coordination of Basic Grant and South Carolina |
| | Tuition Grants do not allow for overawards. More |
| | students assisted. |
| South Dakota | |
| State Indian Scholarship | Need as determined by financial aid officer and |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | degree of Indian blood. This program is designed to facilitate "access" to |
| Idicion Equalization Granes | private higher education by helping to fill the void |
| | between public and private college costs of attendance. |
| Tennessee | In ranking, neediest students are assisted first. |
| Texas | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Need criterion. |
| Public Education Grants | Acceptance of BEOG need analysis. Use of need as |
| Vermont | basis of award. For students attending colleges whose charges are |
| VELMOIT | equal to or less than Vermont State Colleges (\$3,350), |
| | we are able to award in combination with BEOG and |
| | parents' contributions so a student has no more than |
| | \$1,550 remaining need. |
| Virginia | |
| College Scholarship | The CSAP is designed to assist the needlest students |
| Assistance Program | at both public and private schools. |
| Tuition Assistance Grant Program | Tuition Assistance Grant awards are available to all Virginia residents, regardless of their financial |
| orant irogram | circumstances. |
| Washington | Eligibility was broadened in last two years to include |
| | students attending proprietary schools and students |
| • | attending an institution outside the state under a |
| | tuition and fee reciprocity agreement. Also, applicants |
| U. S. W. C. C. | may apply as late as October. |
| West Virginia | The practice of ranking applicants on the basis of |
| | contribution rather than straight relative need assures access to a postsecondary school. |
| Wisconsin | access to a postsecondary school. |
| Tuition Grant Program | The TIP component of WHEG and the Indian Student |
| | Assistance Program. |
| Higher Education Grant | A component of the WHEG Program called TIP (Talent |
| Program | Incentive Program) provides supplemental awards to |
| | needy disadvantaged students. |
| Indian Student Assistance | The TIP component of WHEG and the Indian Student |
| Wyoming | Assistance Program. These are institutional decisions. If a school asks |
| whomriff | for the grants, the state provides them based on the |
| | proper qualifications. |
| | |

| Alabama | None |
|--|---|
| Arizona | All types of institutions are eligible. |
| Arkansas | It is our belief that the state of Arkansas can achieve |
| | its full economic and social potential only if every |
| | individual has the opportunity to contribute to the full |
| • | extent of his or her capabilities and only when financial |
| | barriers to his or her economic, social, and educational |
| | goals are removed. |
| California | |
| Cal Grant A | Awards can be used at any school with a 2 or four year |
| | program which is eligible to participate in the BEOG |
| • | Program. |
| Cal Grant B | Allowing students to choose among the various types of |
| : | eligible postsecondary institutions for use of their |
| · | grants. |
| Cal Grant C | Awards can be used at any school with a program of four |
| | months to two years which is eligible to participate in |
| | the BEOG Program. |
| Colorado | Inclusion of all qualified educational institutions. |
| Connecticut | |
| State Scholarship | |
| Undergraduate Programs | Awards based on cost of institution and are portable. |
| Contracted Stud. | |
| (Ind. Colleges) | Defined by each college. |
| Delaware | Reciprocity with Pennsylvania and New Jersey; considering |
| | agreement with Maryland. |
| District of Columbia | Students may attend any eligible institution in the |
| | continental U. S. |
| lorida | Florida Student Assistance Grant recipients are selected |
| Tottua | on the basis of relative financial need, thus students |
| | attending higher cost private institutions benefit. |
| Georgia | SSIG is not publicized as being the program which affords |
| seorgia | |
| | reasonable choice due to its inadequate funding. The use |
| | of actual school costs does, however, tend to broaden the |
| • | "choice" to include the more expensive private institution |
| | The state funded Tuition Equalization Grant Program would |
| Illinois | fall into this category. |
| IIIInois, | Award limited to tuition and fees and \$1,900 maximum. |
| | Transfer to another college permitted. |
| Indiana | Our Freedom of Choice Program has attempted to equalize |
| | student costs. |
| | Ones to all |
| State Scholarships | Open to all postsecondary institutions, including |
| | proprietary, AVTS, health education, and two and four |
| ## / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / | year colleges. |
| Tuition Grants | Legislative intent by passing legislation was to provide |
| • | a choice to Kansas residents to attend private colleges |
| | without undue dependence on loan or work. Grant is equal |
| | to differential in public/private tuition less about \$200. |
| Kentucky | Program provides for tuition assistance to students |
| **** | attending private colleges and may be combined with above |
| | (SSIG) into KHEAA Grant and is operated as a "choice" |
| | program. |
| ouisiana | Tuition and fees are a factor in budget. |
| laine | Cost of attendance is the factor in figuring awards. |
| Maryland | coot of attendance is the factor in righting awards. |
| General State Scholarships | State awards are a precentage of need (33% or more) and |
| sensial scare benefatablish | this promotes "reasonable choice" if the colleges do |
| • | their bit. |
| Senatorial Scholarships | Senatorial awards (if too small for more expensive schools |
| | can be replaced by a larger General state award. Law does |
| | |
| Proprietory Cabast Court | not permit holding both state awards. |
| Proprietary School Grants | Bigger grants go to more expensive educational budgets, |
| | so aids student to have choice. |
| lassachusetts | Strong effort made to establish reciprocal agreements with |
| | other states to offer students a choice of institution, |
| | as well as a modestly increased grant to those students |
| | attending more costly independent institutions. |
| lichigan | |
| Competitive Scholarships | Awards are available in three major educational sectors. |
| Tuition Grants | Limited, by statute, to private institutions. |
| | Awards are one-half prior year tuition and fees (maximum |
| lissouri | Awards are one-half prior year fulfion and rees (maximum |

| State | |
|---|---|
| Nevada | None. |
| New Jersey Tuition Aid Grants | Wasial 1a and a second |
| fulction Aid Grants | Variable award amounts based on tuition charge in each educational sector. |
| Garden State Scholarships | Award amount ranges from \$200 to \$500. |
| Educational Opportunity | Grant amount varies according to the institutional sector |
| Fund Program | |
| Basic Scholarships, Incentive Grants, | The amount of the award varies. |
| Public Tuition Aid | |
| Grants, "Old" Tuition | |
| Aid Grants | |
| Garden State Graduate | Recipient can attend graduate school at any New Jersey |
| Fellowship New Mexico | institution. Student need. |
| North Carolina | Scudent need. |
| Student Incentive Grant | Program uses relative need method to arrive at award |
| | up to a maximum. |
| Legislative Tuition Grant | General Assembly created this program to make the |
| | state's private colleges remain an affordable choice |
| North Dakota | to those who prefer them. |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | Law requires that this program be limited to four year |
| · · | private liberal arts colleges. |
| Student Financial Assistance | All schools except proprietary are eligible to receive |
| | students with state grants. |
| Oh io | Tables of grants. One table for public institutions; |
| | one for private. Table for private provided larger |
| | grants based on higher fees in the private sector. |
| Oregon Need Grant | Deletion install at a control of the |
| weed Grant | Relating individual grant amounts to the cost of education at the institutions affords a choice factor. |
| Cash Award | Each individual grant amount is related to the cost of |
| | education at the institution which the student attends. |
| Pennsylvania | Considering only 30% of the BEOG as an offset when |
| | student attends school with tuition and fees in excess |
| | of \$2,800. |
| Rhode Island | Budgets include varying institutional costs. Full |
| South Carolina | portable. All types of institutions eligible. The program was designed as a program of choice between |
| Journ Carolina | public and private colleges. Direct state aid goes |
| | to public colleges. This student aid program provides |
| | assistance primarily for private college students. |
| South Dakota | |
| State Indian Scholarship | Early application. Suggestion of financial aid officer of institution of higher education. Board of review. |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Awards are based on total costs of attendance and tend |
| rate for Equality desires | to "equalize" costs between public and private colleges. |
| Cennessee | The maximum amount of the grant (\$1,300) relates to |
| | the tuition charged at the institution. |
| lexas | |
| Tuition Equalization Grants | Limitation to independent school students. |
| Public Education Grants | Use of uniform methodology. In addition to an Incentive Grant, students attending |
| - Camonic | Vermont independent colleges can receive up to \$1,100 |
| | additional in a tuition differntial grant. Also, |
| | students can receive grants for attendance at out-of- |
| · | state colleges. |
| /irginia | |
| College Scholarship Assistance Program | The CSAP awards are based, in part, on the costs of attending a particular institution. Higher cost |
| Assistance Frogram | institutions, therefore, generate larger awards. |
| Tuition Assistance Grant | The Tuition Assistance Grant Program is a tuition |
| Program | equalization program designed to lessen the difference |
| | between the tuitions at private and public institutions. |
| Mashington | Complete portability of grants among eligible institutions |
| lest Virginia | The award differential enhances fredom of choice. Award |
| | limited to tuition and fees or \$1,700. Students attending |
| | high cost schools may receive \$1,700 whereas maximum |
| | |
| /isconsin | public award is approximately \$500. |
| Visconsin Tuition Grant Program | |
| | public award is approximately \$500. Provides freedom of choice for students seeking private educational opportunities. |
| Tuition Grant Program Higher Education Grant | public award is approximately \$500. Provides freedom of choice for students seeking private educational opportunities. The purpose of the Tuition Grant Program is to provide |
| Tuition Grant Program | public award is approximately \$500. Provides freedom of choice for students seeking private educational opportunities. |

AGENCY SURVEYS OF CAMPUSES

| | Does Agency survey campuses? | | Would Agency work with NASSGP to develop national resources document? | | Would Agency work with NASSGP as a pilot state? | |
|------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---|--------------|---|-------------|
| State | Yes | No | Yes | No | Yes | No |
| Alabama | | х | | | х | |
| Alaska | X | | | <u> </u> | | X |
| Arizona | Х | | X | | X | |
| Arkansas | X | | X | | X | |
| California | X | | X | | | |
| Colorado | X | | X | | | |
| Connecticut | · | X | | X | | X |
| Delaware | ··· | X | | | X | |
| District | | | | | | |
| of Columbia | | X | <u> </u> | | X | |
| Florida | | X | X | | X | |
| Georgia | X | | X | | X | |
| Hawaii | X | | | X | | X |
| Idaho Illinois | X X | | | X | | Х |
| Indiana | ^ | X | | | X | |
| Iowa | X | <u>X</u> | <u>X</u> | | X | |
| Kansas | <u>X</u> | | X | | X | |
| Kentucky | <u>X</u> | X | Λ | X | <u>^</u> | X |
| Louisiana | | <u>X</u> | | <u>_</u> | | A |
| Maine | | <u> </u> | | X | X | |
| Maryland | | X | | | | X |
| Massachusetts | | X | X | | X | |
| Michigan | X | | . X | | X | |
| Minnesota | | X | | | X | |
| Mississippi | | X | | | | |
| Missouri | X | | X | | X | |
| Montana | | X | X | | | X |
| Nebraska | | X | X | | X | |
| Nevada | X | | X | | X | |
| New Hampshire | ····· | X | | | X | |
| New Jersey | X | | X | | , | |
| New Mexico | | X | | | X | |
| New York | | X | | | X | |
| North Carolina | X | | X | | | |
| North Dakota | X | | X | | X | 37 |
| Ohio | X | X | X | | | X |
| Oregon Pennsylvania | Λ | X | X | | X | |
| Rhode Island | | X X | ^ | | <u>X</u> | |
| South Carolina | | X X | X | | <u>X</u> | |
| South Dakota | X | A | <u>X</u> | · | <u>X</u> | |
| Tennessee | <u>X</u> | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | <u>X</u> | | <u>X</u> | |
| Texas | | X | X | | <u>X</u> | |
| Utah | | X | | | | |
| Vermont | X | · when it is | | | | |
| Virginia | <u> </u> | <u> </u> | | | X | |
| Washington | X | Α | X | | Λ | X |
| West Virginia | <u>X</u> | | <u>X</u> | | X | A |
| | | | | | A | |
| Wisconsin | X | | X | | | |
| Wisconsin Wyoming | Х | X | X | | | X |

State

Alabama Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Delaware

District of Columbia

Florida Georgia Indiana Iowa Kansas Maine

Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota

Missouri Nebraska Nevada New Mexico North Dakota

0regon

Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota Tennessee Vermont Virginia West Virginia

Contact Person

William H. Wall R. R. Erbschloe Cynthia Johnson Don Hills

Lindsay Winsor

Jane Anderson

Marilyn Anderson-Baker

Don Smading Robert G. McCants Sheryl Tindal Willis Ann Wolff

Gerald R. Bergen Harold Grodinsky

Elizabeth Barrett Balis

Lee Peterson

Cheryl Maplethorpe or Bill Hall

Steve Dougherty or Richard Stillwagon

Kathryn E. Hayes Mary Lou Moser A. Austin Basham Clark J. Wold Thomas F. Turner James McKelvey John E. Madigan Edward M. Shannon Stan Heffner

Julie Guthrie Don Vickers Barry M. Dorsey John F. Thralls

STATES PREFERRING FALL DISTRIBUTION

| State | Comments | | | | |
|-------------------|---|--|--|--|--|
| Alabama | | | | | |
| Alaska | | | | | |
| Delaware | | | | | |
| Florida | | | | | |
| Idaho | See prior years figures. | | | | |
| Illinois | | | | | |
| Iowa | | | | | |
| Kansas | Spring figures would be estimates so no better hard data from us. | | | | |
| Maryland | | | | | |
| Massachusetts | | | | | |
| Michigan | | | | | |
| Minnesota | | | | | |
| Mississippi | | | | | |
| Missouri | Fall distribution is more useful for state legislative purposes, | | | | |
| the second second | even though Spring data would be more accurate. | | | | |
| Montana | | | | | |
| Nebraska | | | | | |
| New Hampshire | | | | | |
| New Jersey | | | | | |
| New Mexico | | | | | |
| Ohio | | | | | |
| Oregon | | | | | |
| Rhode Island | | | | | |
| South Carolina | | | | | |
| South Dakota | | | | | |
| Tennessee | | | | | |
| Utah | | | | | |
| Washington | The survey should be conducted in late summer and report actual | | | | |
| | information for previous year, as well as estimates for the | | | | |
| | forthcoming year, for distribution at the fall meeting. | | | | |
| Wyoming | | | | | |
| American Samoa | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

STATES PREFERRING SPRING DISTRIBUTION

| State | Comments | | | | |
|----------------------|---|--|--|--|--|
| Arkansas | | | | | |
| California | | | | | |
| Connecticut | | | | | |
| District of Columbia | | | | | |
| Georgia | Due to in-house weekland shows to winting | | | | |
| Georgia | Due to in-house workload characteristics, there is less | | | | |
| | staff time available for preparation of reports of this | | | | |
| | nature during the late summer and early fall periods. In | | | | |
| | addition, some of the statistics needed in order to make | | | | |
| | this report complete and comparable with other states is | | | | |
| | not available this early in the academic year. | | | | |
| Indiana | | | | | |
| Kentucky | | | | | |
| Louisiana | | | | | |
| Maine | More exact figures and better time to fill out questionnaire. | | | | |
| Mississippi | | | | | |
| Nevada | | | | | |
| New York | | | | | |
| North Carolina | | | | | |
| North Dakota | | | | | |
| Pennsylvania | | | | | |
| Texas | | | | | |
| Vermont | | | | | |
| Virginia | | | | | |
| West Virginia | | | | | |

1980-81 NASSGP DIRECTORY

ALABAMA CALIFORNIA Alabama Commission on Higher Education California Student Aid Commission One Court Square, Suite 221 1410 Fifth Street Montgomery, Alabama 36116 Sacramento, California 95814 Tel: 205-832-6555 Tel: 916-445-0880 Dr. John F. Porter, Jr. Arthur S. Marmaduke Executive Director Director Mr. Tom A. Roberson Dortha L. Morrison Associate Director for Student Deputy Director Assistance Peter D. Prentiss Dr. William H. Wall Program Manager Assistant Director for Student Cal Grant A Program Assistance Albert Salgado Cal Grant B Program **ALASKA** Linda Lucas Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Program Supervisor Education Cal Grant C Program Division of Student Financial Aids Carl Nelson Pouch F Graduate Fellowship Program Juneau, Alaska 99811 Program Supervisor Tel: 907-465-2962 Kenneth Tarr Dr. Kerry Romesburg Program Manager Executive Director Guaranteed Loan Program Dr. Paul Gulyas Don Hills Director for Administration Director of Research Billie Jean Hall Awards Officer COLORADO Barbara Hanon Colorado Commission on Higher Education Repayment Officer 1550 Lincoln Street, 2nd Floor Julie Bennett Denver, Colorado 80203 GSL Accounts Officer Te1: 303-839-2723 Lindsay Winsor ARIZONA Assistant Executive Director Arizona Commission for Postsecondary for Student Services Education Dr. Lee Kerschner 1937 West Jefferson Executive Director Phoenix, Arizona 85009 Elinor Miller Tel: 602-255-3109 Director of Financial Aid Dr. R. R. Erbschloe Executive Director CONNECTICUT Dr. Robert Bowman Board of Higher Education Assistant Director 61 Woodland Street Hartford, Connecticut 06105 ARKANSAS Te1: 203-566-2618 Arkansas Department of Higher Education John J. Siegrist 1301 West Seventh Street Staff Associate Little Rock, Arkansas 72201 Michael Usdan Tel: 501-371-1441 Commissioner Elizabeth N. Taylor Coordinator Debbie Pierce Analyst T. Michael Elliott

Director John Cooper

Associate Director for Finance

DELAWARE

Delaware Postsecondary Education Commission 1228 North Scott Street, Suite 1 Wilmington, Delaware 19806 Tel: 302-571-3240 John F. Corrozi Executive Director Marilyn Anderson-Baker

Scholarship Coordinator

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Office of State Education Affairs
420 Seventh Street, N.W., Room 206
Washington, D.C. 20004
Tel: 202-727-3685
Eloise S. Turner
Chief, Office of State
Education Affairs

FLORIDA

Florida Student Financial Assistance Commission Department of Education, Knott Building Tallahassee, Florida 32301 Tel: 904-487-1800 Ernest E. Smith, Jr. Executive Director Don Smading Associate Executive Director Blair Shuford Administrator, Program Operations Jensen Audioun Administrator, Fiscal Operations James Wilson Administrator, Financial Planning and Control Mary Willis Coordinator, Scholarship and Grant Unit Valeree Allen Coordinator, State Programs John Pullen Coordinator, Claims/Collections Shirley Galloway Coordinator, Guaranteed Loans Sandra Marshall Coordinator, Accounting Unit

GEORGIA

Georgia Student Finance Authority 9 LaVista Permiter Park, Suite 110 2187 Northlake Parkway Tucker, Georgia 30084 Tel: 404-393-7108 Dr. Donald E. Payton Executive Director Eugene W. Owens Deputy Director Robert E. McCants Director, State Loans and Grants Division Ralph Roberts Director, Administrative Services Division Ron Lauver Director, Computer Services Division

HAWAII

State Postsecondary Education Commission
University of Hawaii
124F Bachman Hall
2444 Dole Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96822
Tel: 808-948-6862
Dr. Fujio Matsuda
Administrative Officer

IDAHO

Office of the State Board of Education
650 West State Street
Len B. Jordan Office Building, Room 307
Boise, Idaho 83720
Tel: 208-334-2270
Milton Small
Executive Director
Delia M. McManus
Personnel, Scholarship/Student
Assistance Officer

ILLINOIS

Illinois State Scholarship Commission
102 Wilmot Road
Deerfield, Illinois 60015
Tel: 312-948-8500
Larry E. Matejka
Executive Director
Ralph Godzicki
Assistant Executive Division
Director of Student Grant Programs
Carol Wennerdahl
Assistant Executive Division
Director of Student Loan Programs
Sybil Francis
Director of Agency Services and
Organizational Planning

INDIANA State Student Assistance Commission of Indiana 219 North Senate Avenue Indianapolis, Indiana 46202 Tel: 317-232-2350 Mr. James Sunday Executive Director Miss Sheryl Tindal

IOWA

Iowa College Aid Commission
201 Jewett Building
Ninth and Grand Avenues
Des Moines, Iowa 50309
Tel: 515-281-3501
Willis Ann Wolff
Executive Director
Gary W. Nichols
Director, Student Aid Programs
Betty J. Johnson
Administrative Assistant
Charles W. Irvin, Jr.
Administrative Assistant

Assistant Director

KANSAS

Board of Regents - State of Kansas 1100 Merchants National Bank Topeka, Kansas 66612 Tel: 913-296-3517 Dr. Gerald R. Bergen Student Assistance Officer

KENTUCKY

Kentucky Higher Education Assistance
Authority
691 Teton Trail
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
Tel: 502-564-7990
Paul P. Borden
Executive Director
Marleen B. Ingle
Director of Grant Programs
Joyce A. Bryan
Deputy Director, Grants

LOUISIANA

Director

Governor's Special Commission on Education Services, Loan/Grant Division P.O. Box 44127 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804 Tel: 504-925-3630 Richard W. Petrie

MAINE

Education Building, Station 23
Augusta, Maine 04333
Tel: 207-289-2183
Harold Grodinsky
Coordinator, Financial Aid Programs
Fred Douglas
Director, Higher Education Services

Higher Education Services

MARYLAND

Maryland State Scholarship Board
2100 Guilford Avenue
Baltimore, Maryland 21218
Tel: 301-659-6420
Dr. H. Kenneth Shook
Executive Director
Mr. Richard Underwood
Administrative Specialist

MASSACHUSETTS

Massachusetts Board of Higher Education
31 St. James Avenue, Room 323
Boston, Massachusetts 02116
Tel: 617-727-5360
Laura Clausen
Chancellor
Conrad Kohler
Scholarship Officer
Elizabeth Barrett Balis
Staff Associate for Scholarship
Programs

MICHIGAN

Michigan Higher Education Assistance
Authority
P.O. Box 30008
Lansing, Michigan 48909
Tel: 517-373-3394
Ronald J. Jursa
Executive Director
Aaron C. Hall
Supervisor, Scholarships and Grants
Lee Peterson
Supervisor, Information Services

MINNESOTA

Minnesota Higher Education
Coordinating Board
550 Cedar Street, Suite 400
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
Tel: 612-296-5715
Clyde R. Ingle
Executive Director
David B. Laird
Deputy Executive Director
H. James Leskee
Director of Financial Aid
Cheryl Maplethorpe
Manager, Scholarship and Grant

MISSISSIPPI

Board of Trustees of State
Institution of Higher Learning
P.O. Box 2336
Jackson, Mississippi 39205
Tel: 601-982-6611
Jesse Martin
Director of Financial Aid

MISSOURI

Missouri Student Grant Program
P.O. Box 1437
Jefferson City, Missouri 65201
Tel: 314-751-3940
Richard C. Stillwagon
Director, Division of Student
Financial Aid
Stephen Dougherty
Program Director
Donna Bonney
Grant Coordinator
Barbara Miller
Grant Coordinator

MONTANA

Montana University System, Office of Commission of Higher Education 33 South Last Chance Gulch Helena, Montana 59601 Tel: 406-449-3024 William J. Lannan Director of Special Project

NEBRASKA

Nebraska Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education 301 Centennial Mall, S. P.O. Box 95005
Lincoln, Nebraska 68509
Tel: 402-471-2847
Kathryn E. Hayes
Administrative Assistant

NEVADA

Chancellor's Office
405 Marsh Avenue
Reno, Nevada 89509
Tel: 702-784-4952
Donald H. Baepler
Chancellor
Mary Lou Moser
Budget and Research Analyst

NEW HAMPSHIRE

New Hampshire Postsecondary Education
Commission
61 South Spring Street
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Tel: 603-271-2555
James A. Busselle
Executive Director
Ronald Wilson
Financial Assistance Coordinator

NEW JERSEY

New Jersey Department of Higher Education Office of Student Assistance CN 540, 4 Quakerbridge Plaza Trenton, New Jersey 08625 Tel: 609-292-8770 Dr. Haskell Rhett Assistant Chancellor Mr. John Reeves Director, Grant and Scholarship Programs Dr. Rupert Jemmott Director, Educational Opportunity Mr. William Nester Director, Higher Education Assistance Authority Ms. Trudy Glemza Director, Office of Information

NEW MEXICO

Systems

Board of Educational Finance 1068 Cerrillos Road Santa Fe, New Mexico 87503 Tel: 505-827-2115 A. Austin Basham Administrative Assistant Donald S. Stuart Executive Secretary NEW YORK New York State Higher Education Service Corporation 99 Washington Avenue Albany, New York 12255 Tel: 518-474-8336 Eileen D. Dickinson President Charles G. Treadwell Vice President, Research and Policy Analysis Michael P. Cruskie Vice President for Operations Peter J. Keitel Vice Presdient for Loan Division Francis J. Hynes Vice President, Tuition Assistance and Scholarship Program

NORTH CAROLINA

North Carolina State Education Assistance
Authority
P.O. Box 2688
Chapel Hill, North Carolina 27514
Tel: 919-549-8618
Stan F. Broadway
Executive Director
Charles F. George, Jr.
Associate Director

Mr. Duffy L. Paul
1307 Glenwood Avenue
Raleigh, North Carolina 27605
Executive Director
College Foundation, Inc.

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Student Financial Assistance Program Capitol Building, 10th Floor Bismarck, North Dakota 58505 Tel: 701-224-4114 Clark J. Wold Director

OHIO

Ohio Board of Regents
Student Assistance Office
30 East Broad Street, 36th Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43215
Tel: 614-466-7420
Charles W. Seward III
Director, Student Assistance

OREGON

Oregon State Scholarship Commission
1445 Willamette Street
Eugene, Oregon 97401
Tel: 503-686-4166
Jeffrey M. Lee
Executive Director
Gary K. Weeks
Deputy Director
Robert Macy
Grant Program Director
Thomas Turner
Special Services Director
James Beyer
Executive Assistant

PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency Towne House Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17102 Tel: 717-787-1937 Kenneth R. Reeher Executive Director Thomas R. Fabian Executive Deputy Director Gary D. Smith Deputy for Grants Barbara T. Williams Deputy Director for Federal and Special Affairs James T. McKelvey Special Assistant for Planning Thomas Kugle Director of Public Information

RHODE ISLAND

Rhode Island Higher Education
Assistance Authority
274 Weybosset Street
Providence, Rhode Island 02903
Tel: 401-277-2050
John E. Madigan
Executive Director
Anthony M. Ferraro
Chief, Scholarship and
Grant Division

SOUTH CAROLINA

South Carolina Higher Education Tuition
Grant Agency
P.O. Box 11638
1310 Lady Street, Suite 411
Columbia, South Carolina 29211
Tel: 803-758-7070
Mr. Edward M. Shannon III
Director

SOUTH DAKOTA

Office of the Secretary, Department of Education and Cultural Affairs Kneip Office Building Pierre, South Dakota 57501 Te1: 605-773-3134

Harris J. Wollman, Ed.D. Secretary of Education and Cultural Affairs

TENNESSEE

Tennessee Student Assistance Corporation B-3 Capitol Towers, Suite 9 Nashville, Tennessee 37219 Tel: 615-741-1346 Kenneth Barber Executive Director Julie Guthrie

> Assistant Director for Program Operations Emma Wilson Fiscal Officer

TEXAS

Coordinating Board, Texas College and University System Division of Student Services 200 East Riverside Drive P.O. Box 12788, Capitol Station Austin, Texas 78711 Tel: 512-475-8169 Mack C. Adams Head, Division of Student Services Jane Innis Director of Grants

Utah Higher Education Assistance Authority 807 East South Temple Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 Tel: 801-533-5617 T. H. Bell', Ed.D. Commissioner of Higher Education I. E. Bradley Associate Commissioner and Director of Finance

VERMONT

Vermont Student Assistance Corporation 5 Burlington Square Burlington, Vermont 05401 Tel: 802-658-4530 Ronald Iverson Executive Director Donald Vickers Assistant Executive Director Tim Wick Director of Outreach Programs David Sola Director of Loan Programs Donald Bernier Director of Grant Programs Herbert Kingsland Director of Fiscal Affairs

VIRGINIA

State Council of Higher Education for Virginia, Financial Aid Programs 700 Fidelity Building Ninth and Main Streets Richmond, Virginia 23226 Tel: 804-786-2143 Gordon K. Davies Director Barry M. Dorsey Associate Director David J. Carr Coordinator, Financial Aid Programs

WASHINGTON

Council for Postsecondary Education 908 East Fifth Olympia, Washington 98504 Te1: 206-753-3571 Denis J. Curry Deputy Coordinator Chalmers Gail Norris Executive Coordinator Shirley A. Ort Associate Coordinator, Financial Assistance Linda Lamar Program Officer Lew Dibble Program Officer

WEST VIRGINIA

West Virginia Board of Regents 950 Kanawha Boulevard, E.

Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Tel: 304-348-0112 John F. Thralls

Director of Student Services

Robert E. Long

Grant Program Coordinator

Betty L. MacQueen

Grant Program Administrator

WISCONSIN

State of Wisconsin Higher Educational Aids Board 137 East Wilson Street Madison, Wisconsin 53702

Tel: 608-266-2897
Richard H. Johnston
Administrator, Division of
Student Support
Donovan K. Fowler
Assistant Administrator,
Division of Student Support

WYOMING

Wyoming Community College Commission 1720 Carey Avenue, 5th Floor Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002

Tel: 307-777-7763 Russell A. Hansen Executive Secretary

AMERICAN SAMOA

Department of Education American Samoa Government Pago Pago, American Samoa 96799

Tel: Overseas Operator 633-5237

S. E. Sala

Deputy Director for Public Affairs Bessie Danielsok Scholarship Coordinator